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Financial Highlights

FINANCIAL HiIGHLIGHTS '
Key Indlcators‘ 2003
Return on equrty after taxes % 2.8
. Cost/income ratlo (based on operatmg revenues) % 35.2 T
Performance Flgures “2003 7
6berat|ng resulvf" - N €m 226 T
Result of ordmary activities/result before taxes €m 156 o
NétThEome r T £€m 16 e o
Earnmgs pér share T o £ 0.86 7
‘ Key bankmg superwsorymdlcators accordmgto ms? T Dec 31 2003
' Tiera capltal T €bn 4. T
Eqwty Fund | - a €bn 6 2 T i
Ciok aicats .»“ e e 54 e . -
e e g 76 e et et e -
: Eqwtyfund ratro i e et s » . e e "5 S -
‘ Invenidr?ﬁgures Dec 31 2003 " Tan. 1 zoo; Ehangein%
Total assets €bn 152.9 T *169.9 I
Equtty caprtal as per ‘balance sheet - - €bn Y f7 o ”299 ‘ —75
| Shares B 2003 T )
Market price: Reporting date T € 1979 o
H‘ig‘h'eéfwmfmwm € 19.79 o T o
Clowest T o € 1240 o
: Iv\/\arke;fcépit'ali‘sét"ic')nw T T em T s .
Sersonmal T o i O
'E'ni;Sl”oyée“s‘“WT“ T
Portfoliofigures
© Volume of international real estafé?ihancing €bn
. Volume of German real estate financing T €bn
Volume of public sector financing €bn

1) based on approv%d financial statements (reporting date as at De:ém ber 31,2003, covnsolidaté& fyigures).“

RATINGS | )
; As at March zoo4 ‘
f Hypo Real Estate Bank lnternatlonal puc ‘ Moody's S&P Fltch Ratlngs
! Long term/short ‘term/financial s strength Ag/StabIe/P 2 A- /neg/A 2 T
Wurttemberglsche Hypothekenbank a7 T Moodys T S'&PWW“ Fitch ﬁaiingé
' Long {'érr‘n7~s'hc)1rt -term /ﬂna nmal strength WM“ ‘hw ~mm A3/Stable/ P-2 A /n eg/A 2 -
Hypo Real Estate Bank G Moody s S&P  Fitch Ratings
" Baa/Stablesp2 BBB/Stable/F3

i

Long- -term /short term/financial strength

BéB/neg/A—g o




Mission Statement

@ 1 We are a leading international real estate financing company with European
roots, com bmmg commercnal real estate financing with modern investment banking. Qur competence in exe-
cuting high-volume transactions rests on the lean organization within a clearly structured group featuring short
decision paths and a well-established know-how in real estate. We take on risks and manage them in a highly
professional way.

Fosdore e Unn Vet peoiiin. We will be judged by our success. Our foremost aim is to provide a long-
term, attractxve return on our shareholders capital. Our internationally diversified portfolio and solid capital
structure makes us an investment with a stable risk-return profile.

2 s 725 We are a reliable partner for our customers, providing them with
highest-quality professmnal transaction-oriented banking. We are committed to customers and markets that
meet our standards in terms of risk and return.

Rl eecitiied wribgie e We expect our employees to commit themselves to our company. Each one
of them, on aH |evels bnngs excellent qualifications to the respective task. Our concept of leadership allies
clarity with freedom for individually responsible action as well as the willingness to learn from past mistakes. We
are committed to fostering performance. Accordingly, above-average effort will be adequately rewarded. Open

\j"

communication, an international mindset, transparency, reliability, teamwork and respect for colleagues and sub-

ordinates are all central elements of our corporate culture.
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Real Estate Holding AG was reglstersd in the Commercial Reglster
of Munich on September 29, 2003. And just a few days later, on
Octoler 8, the holding company’s shares were guoted on the Frank-
furt and Vienna Stock Bxchenges for the first time. This was the
conclusion of the complste ssparation from HVE Group. After the
spin-off the sharsholder structure changed, turning all shares into
fres float.
Having implemented the spin-oif, it has been vital to main-
tain momentum i:m_ t@w\@mé up the Group. The purchese of the
HVB Group’s US commercial real estate financing portiolio in
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WelatelalleadinglinternationalleeallestatelfinancinglcorpanyawithlEurapeaniicotNcombininglcommercialliea festatelfmanenplwich
Frocern investment bernldng® | Frank Lamby, Executive Director of the Board of Hypo Real Estate Bank International

Hypo Real Estate Bank International
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iy e sysiamaie resiusring of cur een periiclie, we will mele prapareions (o wilke new budhiess it 2005 | Johann Berger,

Spokesman of the Executive Board of Hypo Real Estate Bank AG

Hypo Real Estate Bank Germany
Imitially Hypo Real Estate Bamlk will
continue fo focus on restructuring its
Germen real estats portiolio. How-
ever, it will soon start to acquire new
business. A restructured Hypo Real
Estate Bank will be ideally pla
exploit this potential to the ful
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Letter from the Executive Board

Frank Lamby Dr. Paul Eisele Georg Funke Chairman

Johann Berger

Dr. Markus Fell



To Our Shareholders 13
Letter from the Executive Board

Dear Shareholders,

Speed has been the defining factor in the birth of the Hypo Real Estate Group. Within
a record period of just half a year we have created a Group that is counted among
Europe’s leading providers of commercial real estate financing. Obviously, a number of
difficult requirements had to be met along the way. Nevertheless in March 2003 the
executive bodies of HVB Group decided to spin-off large parts of its commercial real estate
financing operations and as early as October 6 of thé same year shares in Hypo Real
Estate Holding AG were being traded for the first time on the Frankfurt and Vienna Stock
Exchanges.

After the first few months we can confirm that the Hypo Real Estate Group had a good
start. We can be very pleased with our achievements thus far. The highly complex spin-off
process required a number of individual transactions but was completed within the tight
schedule allowed; we started our existence as an independent entity on time and in a
very good position. Despite the extreme pressures of time, the newly formed Group was
always careful to ensure thoroughness and reliability.

The performance of our shares during the first few months has been most encourag-
ing; it shows that the market understands our strategy and is rewarding this accordingly.
Despite the unavoidable burdens resulting from the spin-off process in 2003, the Hypo
Real Estate Group’s consolidated net income was € 115 million, which is above our origi-
nal forecast.

The enormous workload during our company'’s first year has placed great demands
on all employees of the new Hypo Real Estate Group. We would like to extend our heart-
felt thanks to them for their untiring commitment and excellent work.



We are particularly pleased that on the road towards independence we have succeeded

‘in familiarising the public with the Hypo Real Estate Group'’s profile and informing them

of the opportunities and prospects presented by our company. The market has under-
stood that we have adopted a special business model with stringent risk standards that

is based on high-volume cash-flow-driven transactions for professional clients — a model
that has alréady proven to be highly profitable and durable outside of Germany in the
past years. Consequently, we do not allow ourselves to be measured by the same criteria
as a traditional German mortgage bank. Instead, the Hypo Real Estate Group is focusing
increasingly on structured finance in the true sense of the word — with its core business
centred on real estate financing transactions.

Now it is important to maintain the same speed and quality in driving the Hypo Real
Estate Group forwards and even to increase the momentum in some places. We have many
tasks to accomplish over the next few years and cannot afford any dithering.

In 2004, for example, we will address our traditional international markets more
systematically than was possible in 2003. At the same time, we will broaden the Group’s
geographical presence. Our strategic aim still consists in achieving an internationally
balanced loan portfolio within the next three years, thereby ensuring healthy risk diversi-
fication within the Hypo Real Estate Group. Our core markets will comprise the US,
Great Britain, France and Germany. In December 2003 we took an important step towards
geographical diversification with the purchase of the HVB Group’s US commercial real
estate financing portfolio. In 2004 Hypo Real Estate Bank International will open a
branch in the Netherlands. However, we are also looking towards Asia and more particu-
larly to Japan.

As announced, we will pursue the same momentum in restructuring the German
portfolio that is pooled within Hypo Real Estate Bank AG. In the short to medium-term,
top priority will be given to a rapid reduction in the loan portfolio and a simultaneous
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improvement in results for the remaining portfolio, the successive abandonment of
municipal loan financing, and also personnel reductions and process optimisation.

Good progress has been made through the measures adopted in Germany in 2003.
The overall loan portfolio of Hypo Real Estate Bank AG including municipal business fell
by 16.2 % from € 88.8 billion to € 74.4 billion. We aim to further reduce the portfolio in
the course of 2004. The merger of Westfilische Hypothekenbank AG into Hypo Real Estate
Bank AG in 2003 has created far leaner structures within our German operation. As a group
company, Hypo Real Estate Bank AG will operate from offices in Munich and Dortmund;
former branch offices and sales centres have been closed.

Our stated aim for 2004 remains the completion of the restructuring of Hypo Real
Estate Bank AG. After this, we will pursue new business; such business will only be secured
at prices with an adequate risk return profile.

As far as the Hypo Real Estate Group’s role as an capital market player is concerned,
we intend to position ourselves as a provider of innovative products, particularly regard-

- ing the syndication or securitisation of individual loans and portfolios. Securitisation
transactions will represent a key instrument in improving the risk-return profile of our
Group. We aim to be in a leading position in this area; in order to improve our capacities
and expertise, we have adopted a carefully targeted staff recruitment policy and we aim
to continue with this approach. In addition to providing refinancing funds, the new
“Capital Markets” division created by Hypo Real Estate International at the beginning of
2004 will expand our value-added chain. Trading in risks extending beyond our own
credit risks provides us with new opportunities for generating commission income to
relieve the strain on equity. As far as refinancing our activities through the issue of
mortgage bonds is concerned, we can rely on two efficient and experienced providers
within our Group, namely Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG and Hypo Real Estate
Bank AG.



The new Hypo Real Estate Group has all the credentials for a successful future:
| By expanding its successful business model and focussing on the customer, Hypo Real
Estate Bank International will achieve sustained earnings growth.
I Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG will continue its long-established, first-class
international mortgage financing business.
| Hypo Real Estate Bank AG will exploit the potential offered by the planned restructuring
of its loan portfolio and will then secure new risk- and price-adjusted business. It will take
its opportunity to transform itself to a successful German mortgage bank.

With a tier-1 ratio of over 7 %, the Group already has a very sound equity base. Re-

'structuring our domestic business will release equity that is currently still tied up and will

further increase our entrepreneurial scope. An organisation based on a leanly structured
holding company and three operating units ensures short decision paths, a consistent focus
on profitability and maximum possible transparency in terms of portfolio structure, per-
formance and earning capacity.

The Hypo Real Estate Group has been created in record time and is built on very
firm foundations. However, our success will also depend on the rapid development of
a uniform corporate culture. The Hypo Real Estate Group is a modern, international and
cosmopolitan company characterised by professionalism, a quest for innovation, rapid
decision-making and commercial reliability.

We have no time to lose. Although we still have a risk shelter from the HVB Group
for domestic business in 2004, our Group should already be profitable in its own right
by the end of the year. By 2007 at the latest the Hypo Real Estate Group will be earning
its cost of capital for the first time. We will measure our success by our ability to achieve
this goal even earlier and to pay an attractive return on the equity entrusted to us.
This is the key to enabling you, our shareholders, to enjoy a stable dividend policy in the
future.
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We will strive to achieve these objectives just as tirelessly as we have worked to
secure the successful flotation of our Group. We are pleased that you have placed your
trust in us and that you will accompany us along the way.

Yours faithfully,

M , g@gw Powe CY

Georg Funke, Chairman Johann Berger Dr. Paul Eisele

Sa s g{/‘— Fonl 4%‘/‘4%

Dr. Markus Fell Frank Lamby
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Report of the Supervisory Board

Kurt F. Viermetz Chairman
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Report of the Supervisory Board

Dear Shareholders,

“Let the future begin.” In the autumn of 2003, this was the statement used by the Hypo
Real Estate Group to herald its first appearance on the international real estate finance mar-
ket as a new, independent company. It is now presenting its first annual report containing
an account of the fiscal year 2003, and we can announce: “The future has begun.”

It is a remarkable achievement that just one year after HVB Group’s decision to effect the
spin-off and just half a year on from its enactment, Hypo Real Estate Group has successfully
started up and carried out its business activities in accordance with the planned structure
and proposed mandates. Our optimism regarding our ability to meet future requirements and
secure the further development of the Company is therefore justified.

The complex spin-off process would not have been possible without the extensive
support received from HVB Group. Throughout the process it provided advice and assistance,
playing a key role in ensuring that from the moment of its spin-off, the Hypo Real Estate
Group was able to establish itself in the international markets as an independent group.
We extend our thanks to the HVB Group for its energetic assistance in implementing the
spin-off. We are also grateful for the decisive vote by the executive bodies of HVB Group and
its shareholders in favour of effecting the spin-off and thus for the high degree of confidence
expressed in the management and in the employees of the new Group.

As part of the preparatory work for the spin-off, the three members of the Supervisory
Board of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG — Dr. Graf von Ballestrem, Dr. Wricke and myself —
were appointed by HypoVereinsbank on March 26, 2003 and the positions were confirmed
at the Annual General Meeting of HypoVereinsbank on May 14.

During 2003, the Supervisory Board acted as a Supervisory Board with me as its
Chairman. The period of duty of the current Supervisory Board will now terminate at the
end of the Company’s first Annual General Meeting on June 4, 2004.
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The malin function of this start-up Supervisory Board was to actively accompany and
support the creation and incorporation of the new Hypo Real Estate Group in close coopera-
tion with the/ Executive Board. To this end, the Supervisory Board met on three occasions
in 2003. No committee meetings were held because the Supervisory Board only comprises
three members. Parallel to this, the members of the Supervisory Board also held numerous
talks with members of the Executive Board to discuss the measures required to ensure a
successful spin-off from the HVB Group and to secure a start as smooth as possible for the
new Group. We can thus confirm that this close cooperation developed in an atmosphere
of mutual understanding, that the Executive Board provided the Supervisory Board
with detailed information on all relevant matters and that the Supervisory Board has
established and carried out the “checks and balances” function bestowed on it. When
voting on decisions, the interests of shareholders and those of the Company always took
precedence.

In its first constituent meeting on July 28, 2003, the Supervisory Board appointed the
members of the Executive Board. In two additional meetings in September and November
the Supervisory Board agreed to the planned transactions by the Company and also discussed
key matters relating to the control of the Group.

A key agenda at each meeting was the development of our share price. At first, the
capital markets reacted with caution. We are pleased that analysts and investors increasingly
adopted a mare positive view regarding the potential offered by our shares, a fact clearly
evidenced by the favourable development in our share price.

As a real estate financer, the Group relies on making the best possible use of each com-
pany’s refinancing opportunities. The Group’s liquidity planning was therefore another
important matter for discussion with the Executive Board.

The composition and quality of the loan portfolio is crucial for the Group. In particular,
improving the risk position of Hypo Real Estate Germany is pivotal to the Company’s
progress. In this connection, the Executive Board has provided the Supervisory Board with
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detailed information and we are pleased about the initial successes recorded with the two
portfolio sales by Hypo Real Estate Germany at the end of 2003.

As a modern, internationally operating company Hypo Real Estate Holding is com-
mitted to transparency. We have therefore decided to comply with the recommendations of
the German Corporate Governance Code and to provide individual disclosures on the
remuneration of Executive Board members. .

The overall remuneration paid to the members of the Executive Board is in line with
market practice to ensure that highly qualified and motivated executives are recruited by
our Company and can be retained. The Hypo Real Estate Group has a unique business model
making it difficult to define a clear peer group for the purposes of a market comparison.
Indicators are therefore the compensation paid to Executive Board members of European
banks, companies involved in the real estate business and investment banks dealing in real
estate transactions. The remuneration structure comprises basic salary and a discretionary
bonus. The calculation of bonuses not only takes into account individual performance targets
but also places great emphasis on corporate performance goals. As well as successful and
swift implementation of the spin-off transaction, in 2003 bonuses were also measured
against the annual result and share price performance. In the coming years, remuneration
will increasingly focus on achievement of the Group’s longer-term objectives. v

Another important task for the Supervisory Board included reviewing the Executive
Board’s proposed structures for the Hypo Real Estate Group and monitoring their implemen-
tation. The Supervisory Board was also involved in developing and formulating the business
objectives of the individual Group entities and in developing the overall strategy for the Group.

In addition to the Supervisory Board of the Company that acts as a financial holding
company, each individual bank belonging to the Group has its own control body. The German
companies have supervisory boards in accordance with the German corporate law system;
at Hypo Real Estate Bank International, which is headquartered in Ireland, supervisory
functions are performed by the non-executive members of the Board in accordance with the
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Anglo-Saxon board structure. As well as appointing representatives from within the Group
to these supervisory posts, Supervisory Boards also comprise external individuals adding
important and valuable outside perspectives.

In the context of corporate governance, the Supervisory Board focussed considerable
attention on the holding company’s internal rules. It issued itself with rules of procedure in
accordance with the principles of the German Corporate Governance Code and the Executive
Board’s rules of procedure were also based on this Code. Almost all of the Code’s recommen-
dations were implemented in full; the few minor deviations are listed in our declaration of
compliance.

As founder of the Hypo Real Estate Group, the HVB Group appointed KPMG Deutsche
Treuhand-Gesellschaft AG Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft, Munich, as auditors. This com-
pany has audited the annual financial statements and the management report with risk report
prepared by the Executive Board and issued an unqualified audit opinion. The same applies
to the consolidated financial statements and the Group management report. As part of its
audit obligations pursuant to section 317 of the German Commercial Code (HGB), the auditor
also examined the monitoring systems deployed by the Company for early identification of
risks. The auditor has confirmed that the methods defined by the Company are appropriate
for managing, identifying and monitoring the risks assumed by the Group and that the
management reports for the Company and the Group adequately outline the risks associated
with future development. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board attended the Executive
Board’s final meeting in the presence of the auditor.

The auditor’s report was forwarded to the members of the Supervisory Board for
inspection. The meeting of the Supervisory Board on the financial statements, which was
also attended by the auditor, included a detailed discussion of the report and also the
annual financial statements and management report of the Company and the Group as well
as the Executive Board’s proposal for appropriation of the net income. The Supervisory
Board concurred with the results of the audit conducted by the auditor and decided that, on
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the basis of its own examination of the annual financial statements and the management
report with risk report, no objections were to be raised. The Supervisory Board therefore

approved the Company’s annual financial statements. It also approved the consolidated

financial statements of the Group.

The annual financial statements of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG and those of the Hypo
Real Estate Group are therefore formally stated.

, The Supervisory Board is aware that the completion of the extensive work required to
establish the new Hypo Real Estate Group only was possible thanks to the high levels of
dedication and commitment on the part of all those involved. It therefore extends its sincere
gratitude to the Executive Board and to all employees of the Group.

In the course of the current year the Supervisory Board will prepare to expand the
Supervisory Board to six members. It was practical for the Board to comprise of only three
members during the formation phase. The desire for international expansion and the volume
of work involved mean that in future it will be appropriate for the Board to have six mem-
bers. The Supervisory Board is currently working to identify German and international high
profile individuals who possess the necessary qualifications and are available for election
at the Annual General Meeting. In terms of future organisation, it is planned that the work of
the Supervisory Board will be supported by two committees, in order to allow more inten-
sive cooperation with the Executive Board.

Munich, March 2004
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance means responsible
corporate management and control geared towards
favourable long-term corporate development. As
an internationally focussed group of companies, we
attach utmost importance to responsible dealings
with our shareholders, close and trusting coopera-
tion within the Executive Board and the Supervisory
Board as well as between these executive bodies,
and also transparent corporate communication.

To achieve these goals we comply with the
recommendations contained in the German Corpo-
rate Governance Code, apart from a few exceptions
that are listed in the Declaration of Compliance
issued by the Executive Board and Supervisory
Board and published on our website in December
2003. The Declaration reads as follows:

“Declaration by the Executive Board and
Supervisory Board of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG
on Compliance with the German Corporate Gover-
nance Code in accordance with section 161 of the
German Stock Corporation Act [AktG]

Apart from the exceptions listed below, Hypo
Real Estate Holding AG complies with the recom-
mendations of the Government Commission on the
German Corporate Governance Code:

Code No.2.3.3 We draw attention to the fact
that our company has issued bearer shares and
therefore does not keep a register of names that can
be used as the basis for an electronic system of iden-
tification. At present, it is therefore not possible ta
issue voting instructions, for example via the Inter-
net. However, our General Meeting will be attended
by members of our staff to whom shareholders may
issue a power of attorney with instructions attached
authorising the exercising of voting rights.

Code No.3.8 D&O insurance has been taken
out for the Executive Board and Supervisory Board.
No retention clause has been agreed. The company
assumes that all executive bodies will fulfil their
obligations vis-a-vis the Company in full and will
therefore give no cause for regress claims. The D&O
insurance primarily serves to avoid financial losses
for the Company.

Code No.5.1.2 Notwithstanding the Code’s
recommendation, a contractual term of five years
was agreed for the initial appointments of all the
present members of the Executive Board. This step
was reasonable as it is the first Executive Board of
a new public limited company. In future, it is pro-
posed that the Code will also be complied with here
as far as possible.

Code No.5.4.5 When disclosing the remuner-
ation received by the members of the Supervisory
Board, the Company shows only ane sum in each
case because at present the Articles of Association
do not provide for any variable remuneration com-
ponents. An amendment to the Articles of Associa-
tion introducing variable remuneration components
will be considered for presentation at the 2004
Annual General Meeting.”

Munich, December 3, 2003

The Executive Board
The Supervisory Board



This declaration shows that we are conscien-
tiously implementing the recommendations con-
tained in the Code. In particular, we draw attention
to the fact that the Supervisory Board has issued
rules of procedure for itself that are complying with
the Code’s requirements and which already list the
committees that will be established after the first
Annual General Meeting when the Supervisory
Board will comprise six members.The committees
have not been practicable for the start-up Super-
visory Board with only 3 members appointed at the
time of the company’s formation.

Similarly, the Executive Board has issued
rules of procedure for itself, in consultation with the
Supervisory Board. These rules prescribe close co-
operation with the Supervisory Board. The rules of
procedure also contain a list of those transactions
for which the Executive Board requires the approval
of the Supervisory Board. This list is also geared to
the requirements of the German Corporate Gover-
nance Code.

To ensure that our investors and shareholders
receive up-to-date information we shall continue to
publish all relevant Company disclosures and
reports without delay on our website.

We have drawn up a financial calendar for our
Company’s regular publications and events; this can
be accessed via our website.

In accordance with section 15a of the German
Securities Trading Act [WpHG], the members of our
Executive Board and Supervisory Beard and their
close relatives are obliged to disclose details of
purchases and sales of shares in our Company ora

To Qur Shareholders
Corporate Governance

listed subsidiary as well as of purchases and sales
of options and other derivatives based on such
shares. Such disclosures will then be incorporated
within our website and displayed for one month.
During the year under review, one director’s dealing
was reported to the company.
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Group Structure and Management Structure

The new Group requires a strong and efficient
management team to enable the individual Group
entities with their differing business directions to
be managed in accordance with the Group’s overall
strategy while also ensuring that decision paths are
as short as possible. The highest executive level
therefore compi'ises the five members of the Execu-
tive Board of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG, each
of whom has been asigned a number of management
and supervisory functions.

Thus, Mr. Georg Funke is the Chairman of
the Executive Board of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG
and Chief Executive Officer of Hypo Real Estate
Bank International. He is also Chairman of the
Supervisory Boards of Hypo Real Estate Bank AG
and Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG.

Mr. Johann Berger is a member of the Execu-
tive Board of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG and
Spokesman for the Executive Board of Hypo Real
Estate Bank AG.

Dr. Paul Eisele belongs to the Executive Board
of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG. In this position
he is responsible for the asset-liability management
Additionally, he is Spokesman for the Executive
Board of Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG.

He is also a member of the Supervisory Board of
Hypo Real Estate Bank AG.

In addition to being a member of the Execu-
tive Board of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG, Dr.
Markus Fell, who is the Chief Financial Officer and
Chief Operating Officer, is also a member of the
Supervisory Boards of Hypo Real Estate Bank AG
and of Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG. In
addition, he is a member of the Supervisory Boards
of the Hypo Real Estate capital corporations in
France, Great Britain and the US, and of the
Administrative Board of PB! Pfandbrief Bank Inter-
national S.A. in Luxembourg. As of April 1, 2004
Dr. Fell was appointed Executive member of the
Board of Hypo Real Estate Bank International.

As well as being a member of the Executive
Boards of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG and of Hypo
Real Estate Bank International, Mr. Frank Lamby,
the Chief Risk Officer, is Vice-Chairman of the
Supervisory Boards of Hypo Real Estate Bank AG
and of Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG. He
is also a member of the Supervisory Boards of the
Hypo Real Estate capital corporations in France,
Great Britain, Spain and the US.

Group functions of the Management Board of Hypo Real Estate Holding ac

Management Board of Hypo Real Estate Holdiﬁgic

Johann Berger
Spokesmarn of the

“Executive Board of Hypo ™
Real Estate Bank ac

Georg Funke

Chairman of the
Executive Board of Hypo
Real Estate Holding A

Dr. Paul Eisele
Spokesman of the
Executive Board of
Wiirttembergische

Dr. Markus Fell Frank Lamby
CFQ/CO0 CRO

Hypothekenbank ac

Additional: Executive Director in the Board |
of Hypo Real Estate Bank Internationai 5
Georg Funke, CE0 f bank ac
Frank Lamby, cro ‘

|

i

|

Dr. Markus Fell, cro, coo since 1.4.2004

Additional: Member of the Supervisory
Board of Wiirttembergischen Hypotheken-

Georg Funke, Chairman
i Frank Lamby, Vice-Chairman
: Dr. Markus Fell

Additional: Member of the Supervisory
Board of Hypo Real Estate Bank ac
Georg Funke, Chairman

Frank Lamby, Vice-Chairman

Dr. Paul Eisele

Dr. Markus Fell




Hypo Real Estate Holdihg’s Shares

Market environment: the international markets
recover from the downturn In 2003 and at the begin-
ning of 2004, the international capital markets
showed a marked recovery from the downturn that
had persisted since the year 2000. The major indices
revealed significant growth for the year, despite
remaining well below the highs recorded in earlier
years. The recovery on the stock markets really
began to take hold during the second half of the year
2003, after the end of the war in Iraq.

On December 30, 2003, the German stock
market index {DAX) closed at 3965 points, repre-
senting a 37.1 % increase as compared with the
same date in 2002 and the first growth for three
years. This meant that with the exception of the
Nasdaq Composite, the DAX outperformed all lead-
ing share indices. The Prime Banks sub-index
(+59.9% over the course of the year) also performed
extremely well. The MDAX (+47.8 %), SDAX
{(+51.3%) and TecDAX (+50.9 %) indices also
showed a very favourable development during 2003.
The Dow Jones index rose by 25 %, the Dow Jones
Euro Stoxx 50 by 16 % and the CDAX by 38 %.

KEY DATA ON HYPO REAL ESTATE SHARES IN 2003

Number of listed shares

Market capitalisation as at 31.12.2003

Number of ordinary shares as at 31.12.2003
Number of preference shares as at 31.12.2003
Pre-tax earnings per share

Operating result per share

Year's highest stock market quotation?

Year's lowest stock market quotation?

First quotation on 6.10.2003

Closing price at end of year?

Securities identification number - ordinary shares
1sIN — ordinary shares

sEcode

1) Closing Xetra prices on the Frankfurt stock exchange.

To Our Shareholders
Group Structure and Management Structure
Hypo Real Estate Holding’s Shares

Successful flotation of Hypo Real Estate shares
The midyear brightening of the mood on the capital
markets also benefited the flotation of Hypo Real
Estate Holding AG’s shares.
In the course of the spin-off of the real estate financ-
ing segments, each HVB shareholder received one
additional share in Hypo Real Estate Holding AG for
every four HVB shares held; the new shares were
posted to the accounts after the close of trading on
October 3. The first official trading day for Hypo
Real Estate shares on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange
(Prime Standard segment) and on the Vienna
Stock Exchange (Standard Market Continuous) was
October 6, 2003. The shares were first quoted at
€ 11.25 per share. At the end of trading on their first
day, the shares were priced at € 12.85, representing
a good 14 % rise during the course of the day.

Number 130,433,775
€bn 258
Number 130,433,775
° Number 3,638,400
£ 116

€ 0.86

€ 19.79

€ 12.40

€ .25

€ 19.79
802770

DE 000 8027707
HRX
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Index: 6.10.2003 = 100
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6.10.2003" 31.10.2003 28.11.2003 30.12.2003
& CXPB (Prime Banks) O MDAX {1 HRX

1) The presentation is based on daily closing values of the indices and the share. in additien to this, the starting prices of the share and the indices were added on October 6 in
order to record the complete history of the price development in 2003.

ALL SHARES ORDINARY SHARES

As of December 31, 2003 As of December 31, 2003

preference shares|3,638,400 - 9.09 % Brandes Investment

listed ordinary shares
130,433,775 :

90.91% other free float




76 % rise in value in the first year Following
their successful initial listing, the shares continued
to perform well up to the end of 2003. The share
value showed a continuous upwards trend. At the
end of the year the shares were priced at € 19.79,
representing a 76 % rise in value. During the com-
parative period from October 6 to the end of 2003,
Germany’s DAX index rose by 16 % Y, so that Hypo
Real Estate Holding shares had clearly outper-
formed Germany’s leading index. A similar picture
was revealed for the MDAX index, which recorded
a growth of 10.5 % for the same period.

International shareholder structure When the
spin-off was completed the shareholder structures
of HVB Group and Hypo Real Estate Holding AG were
identical.

However, as early as October 2, 2003 - i.e.
even before the first trading day for Hypo Real
Estate shares — Miinchener Riickversicherungs-
Gesellschaft AG (Munich Re) announced that it had
sold its 26.3 % share of voting rights in Hypo Real
Estate Holding AG over the counter to institutional
investors. The transaction eliminated market
uncertainties about the future actions of the major
shareholder of Hypo Real Estate Holding.

At the same time, the sale of Munich Re’s
holding produced a more diversified investor base.
With the Privatstiftung zur Verwaltung von Anteils-
rechten (owned by the City of Vienna) reducing its

1) The calculation is based on daily closing values of the indices and the share. in
addition to this, the starting prices of the share and the indices were considered on
October 6 in order to record the complete history of the price development in 2003.

To Our Shareholders
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5.13 % holding to under 5 % at the time of the spin-
off, the Company is now aware of only one share-
holder that holds more than 5 % of the voting rights.
Brandes Investment Partners holds a total 0£9.09 %
of listed ordinary shares. According to Deutsche
Birsels definition, however, Hypo Real Estate
Holding AG’s free-float still amounts to 100% as
the investor’s structure means that it can sell at any
time and it has also not specified any long-term
holding period.

Open and intensive communication with the
capital market Ensuring that the management main-
tained intensive communication with the various
market participants was a key objective when
preparing the spin-off prior to the commencement
of trading in the shares. Priority was given to making
market participants and journalists aware of the
spin-off process and explaining the Hypo Real Estate
Group’s specific business model, its strengths and
prospects. For this purpose the management has
held & number of separate meetings with investors
and analysts in Germany and other countries since
the beginning of March 2003.

The general public was given a first
overview of the new Hypo Real Estate Group at
HypoVereinsbank’s press conference in March
2003 when the future Executive Board of Hypo
Real Estate Holding AG outlined the basic structure
of the new company. The spin-off and also the
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structure and jobjectives of the future Hypo Real
Estate Group were explained in detail to share-
holders at the 'annual general meetings of Hypo-
Vereinsbank inh May and of HVB Real Estate Bank
in June. Roadshows were held in Europe and the
US in June and September. At two analysts’ con-
ferences held in London and Munich at the begin-
ning of Septerﬁber more than 50 analysts were
given detailediinformation on the Group’s strategy
and business model.

By maintaining close contacts with the
capital market'and the media, the Executive Board
will continue to provide market participants with
needed information. The Company is committed to
a policy of open, transparent and up-to-date report-
ing as this will further consolidate and strengthen
the market’s confidence in our shares.

Broad analyst interest in the Hypo Real Estate
Group On the balance-sheet date Hypo Real Estate
Holding shares were analysed by a total of 12 banks;
by the date of publication of the annual financial
statements, thelnumber of analysts’ ratings had
already risen to 17. At the beginning, the risk from
the planned restructuring of Hypo Real Estate Bank
Germany'’s real estate loan portfolio led to a consid-
erable valuation markdown; whereas now attention
is now focussing on the Group’s opportunities and
prospects. The successful story of Hypo Real Estate
Group’s business model is being acknowledged.

inclusion in the Mpax on 22 March 2004
Following their successful flotation, the shares
were included in the MDAX index on March 22 by
resolution of the Executive Board of the Deutsche
Borse passed on February 17, 2004. The Hypo Real
Estate Holding is therefore one of the largest listed
institutions in the MDAX. Inclusion in the index
symbolises quality recognition for the shares and
improves the way the shares are perceived within
the market as a whole.

Dividends The Executive Board and Super-
visory Board will propose at the Annual General
Meeting, which will be held on June 4, 2004, that
no dividend should be paid out. This decision
reflects the Executive Board’s endeavours to further
strengthen the Hypo Real Estate Group’s equity
base during its first year.

Participation Certificates of Hypo Real Estate
Holding Ac When the spin-off became effective,
Hypo Real Estate Holding assumed, on a pro-rata
basis, the HVB Group’s obligation to service and
redeem participation certificates issued by Bayeri-
sche Hypotheken- und Wechsel-Bank AG in 1997.

In accordance with the 4:1 share allotment
ratio, Hypo Real Estate Holding assumed a pro-rata
obligation to service and redeem the participation
certificates. To this end, the HVB Group will provide
Hypo Real Estate Holding with the corresponding



funds to fulfil the obligations relating to participa-
tory rights. By way of adjustment of the HVB partici-
patory rights in connection with the spin-off process,
the holders of participatory certificates received par-
ticipatory rights amounting to bM 800.00 (€ 409.03)
from the HVB Group and participatory certificates
from Hypo Real Estate Holding with a total nominal
amount of DM 200.00 (€ 102.26), divided into two
participatory certificates in an amount of € 51.13
each, for every participatory certificate with an
original nominal value of DM 1,000.00 (correspon-
ding to € 511.29). The terms of the Hypo Real Estate
Holding participatory rights correspond to the
terms specified by the HVB Group when it issued its
participatory rights.

To Our Shareholders
Hypo Real Estate Holding's Shares
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Corporaté Measures Adopted in 2003

A new G?oup is created The spin-off approved
by the General Meeting of Bayerische Hypo- und
Vereinsbank on May 14, 2003 was enacted on
September 29, 2003 when it was recorded in the
Commercial Register. Thus Hypo Real Estate
Holding AG came into being as a new company.

The spin-off tock effect retroactively as from Janu-
ary 1, 2003.

‘The holding company was the sole share-
holder of DIA Vermdgensverwaltungs-GmbH, under
which the operating units of the new Group had
been pooled asisubsidiaries in the run-up to the
spin-off. The DIA functioned as vehicle for the spin-
off, so that it was possible to prepare the structure of
the future Group to a large extent in advance during
the year 2003. As a logical consequence of this pro-
cedure, DIA was then merged with the holding com-
pany, so that the latter now holds the shares of the
banks directly.

Achieving this lean and highly transparent
corporate structure as fast as possible necessitated
a number of corporate restructuring measures and
portfolio changes in the months preceding the
spin-off. ‘

On May 26, 2003, in response to a proposal
by the majorityishareholder, DIA Vermdgensverwal-
tungs-GmbH, the Annual General Meeting of HVB
Real Estate Bank AG passed a resolution to squeeze
out the minority shareholders by paying them com-
pensation in the amount of € 21 per share. The

squeeze out was recorded in the Commercial Register
on September 3, 2003. In this way, DIA Vermégens-
verwaltungs-GmbH increased its holding to 100 %.

Hypo Real Estate Bank AG sold FGH-Bank, of
Utrecht, to Rabobank of the Netherlands on October
24, 2003. Economically the transaction took retro-
active effect as of January 1, 2003. The parties had
already agreed on this sale in a letter of intent issued
in July 2003.

In July 2003, HVB AG increased its participa-
ting interest in Westfilische Hypothekenbank AG,
Dortmund from 75 % to 100 %. On August 29, 2003,
an extraordinary General Meeting of Westfilische
Hypothekenbank AG resolved to merge with HVB
Real Estate Bank AG with financial effect as from
January 1, 2003. This merger was effected by means
of entries in the commercial registers on November 3,
2003.

Hypo Real Estate Bank International acquired
the HVB Group’s holdings in Hypo Real Estate
Capital Limited, London (99.99%), Hypo Real
Estate Capital France S.A., Paris (99.99%) and
Hypo Real Estate Capital Italia S.p.A., Milan
(100 %). It purchased all shares in Hypo Real Estate
Capital Iberia S. A., Madrid, from HVB AG and a
second shareholder. In addition, Hypo Real Estate
Capital Corporation, New York, was founded in
May and its shares are now held by Hypo Real
Estate Bank International. As part of the spin-
off Pfandbrief Bank International (PBI) was also



transferred to Hypo Real Estate Bank International
and is specialised in refinancing services for Hypo
Real Estate Bank International.

In addition, with the exception of the US port-
folio, Hypo Real Estate Bank International acquired,
on a contractual basis (i.e. not as part of the spin-
off), all the foreign real estate finance portfolios of
HVB AG. A small proportion of the portfolios was
physically transferred through assumption of the
loans and a change of creditor, but the majority
was transferred synthetically — in other words, the
loans have remained on the books of HVB AG with
assumption of the loan risks by Hypo Real Estate
Bank International under a loan transfer agreement
and of the day-to-day processing of these loans. In
a second step implemented under an agreement
dated November 27, 2003, Hypo Real Estate Bank

Hypo Real Estate Holding aG
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International also acquired HVB AG’s US commercial
real estate financing portfolio.

The shareholding in Wiirttembergische
Hypothekenbank AG was increased in several steps
from around 76 % to approximately 97 %. A profit
and loss pooling agreement was concluded between
Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG and Hypo
Real Estate Holding AG and this was approved
by the Extraordinary General Meeting of Wiirttem-
bergische Hypothekenbank on October 30, 2003.
The agreement was recorded in the Commercial
Register on December 29. At present there are still .
two actions of opposition pending with the regional
court in Stuttgart.

The Hypo Real Estate Group thus has the
following structure:

Hypo Real Estate Bank International Wilrttembergische
99.99% Hypothekenbank ag
97.38%

L"‘Ti U
I Pfandbrief Bank Hypo Real Estate |

international S. A, Capital tondon, Madrid, !

100% Milan, New York, Paris) |

99.99% I

Hypo Real Estate Bank ac
(Germany)
100%

h

i
|
|
|
|

S M ——
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General Economic Development 2003

The start of 2003 was overshadowed by eco-
nomic and political crises; in particular, the war in
Iraq and the SARS virus had a noticeable detrimental
impact on world economic development. Conse-
quently, global interest rates fell to historic lows.
During the course of the year, however, the US and
Japan began to experience clear signs of economic
recovery; improved sentiment amongst businesses
and consumers was accompanied by strong rises in
share prices. However, the relatively high level of
growth withinithe US economy during the second
half of the year had hardly any favourable knock-on
effects for employment.

The marked rise in production in the emer-
ging countries of Asia provided a stimulus for
the industrialised economies. The rapid pace of
economic development in China in particular ena-
bled the region to regain its status as a global motor
for growth. Rises in raw material prices bolstered
production in Russia and in Latin America in
particular.

Europe, on the other hand, again lagged
behind in terms of global economic growth. It
failed to generate any economic turnaround of its
own and was able to gain only a marginal benefit
from the favourable developments in the US.

The only stimulants to growth were provided by
an expansionary monetary policy, which has not
had any negative impact on prices to date, and
the robust economic climate in the EU accession
countries.

The euro’s sharp rise against the US dollar
also had a negative impact on economic develop-
ment. The discussion on the necessary restructuring
of the social security systems in key European coun-
tries failed to produce positive results and economic
and fiscal policy provided comparatively little
impetus.

Germany experienced a third year of economic
stagnation. The continuing economic uncertainty
meant that companies’ business expectations were
muted and households were very reluctant in terms
of their propensity to consume. The second half of
the year revealed a slight improvement in the form
of moderate increases in domestic demand, but
there is not yet any proof that this will be sustained.

Faced with continuing general frailty of the
economy, both the Federal Reserve and the European
Central Bank pursued a cautious policy and either
kept interest rates low or reduced them further. The
central banks believe that current interest rate levels
are appropriate. However, with forecasts predicting
economic recovery in 2004, a rise in interest rates
aver the remaining course of the year would seem
inevitable, particularly in the US.
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Real Estate Markets

Market and Competition

Germany The continuing weakness of the
German economy also had a detrimental impact on
the country’s réal estate market in 2003. We do not
expect the sector to experience a noticeable recovery
until 2005. However, the historically intense com-
petition between private banks and public financial

institutions is now beginning to abate, with signs of .

an increase in dttainable margins.

OFFICE MARKET Germany’s office property
market is characterised by rising vacancy rates, res-
trained demand and falling rents. This applies
throughout Germany, particularly in prime loca-
tions. With planned new constructions that are
scheduled for completion over the next few years
fuelling the excess supply, it is inevitable that the
market will stagnate in 2004.

RETAIL MARKET Consumer behaviour in
Germany remains restrained. Consequently, retail
sales fell again last year. However, changes in pur-
chasing behaviour are benefiting discount stores,
which succeeded in taking further market shares
from traditional retailers in 2003. Overall, the
industry reveals a preference for locations in major
cities, where top locations will continue to expe-
rience stable demand in 2004.

INDUSTRIAL, WAREHOUSING AND LOGIS-
TICS MARKET There is a continuing demand for
warehousing and logistics property in Germany.
In this respect Germany is benefiting from the EU’s
continuous expansion to the East. Suppliers of
international logistics services are increasing their
presence in Germany. Last year, the most buoyant
regional markets were the Ruhr, the Rhein-Neckar
region, and areas around Kassel, Hannover and
Landshut. This sector will continue to grow this
year, dominated by Anglo-American companies
developing prime properties.

HOUSING MARKET In Germany, new hou-
sing construction is still in a state of decline. This
is particularly true for rental accommodation. It is
expected that the population of Eastern Germany
will continue to migrate and that people will con-
tinue to move from inner city areas to the outskirts
of towns. In Western Germany, structurally weak
regions in particular are affected by rising vacancy
rates, while there are continuing shortages of
housing accommodation available to rent in conur-
bations.

Great Britain In Great Britain, growth in the
real estate market began to stabilise during the
fourth quarter of 2003. Despite continuing overall
low levels of demand, a number of promising signs
indicate a recovery in the market for office accom-
modation. The finance sector is characterised by



intense competition, not only from local financial
institutes but also from German institutes.

OFFICE MARKET Demand for office pro-
perties in London continued to decline in 2003;
this was accompanied by a corresponding rise in
vacancy rates (approx. 14 %). A further fall in rents
is forecast for the current year. However, small
and medium-sized towns will largely escape this
trend. At present, a large proportion of vacant office
properties in London no longer meet the standards
-currently demanded in terms of fixtures and fittings.
We see first signs of the London office property
market stabilising itself.

RETAIL MARKET In 2003, increasing retail
sales led to a slight rise in'rental values for proper-
ties. Central London and the South Eastern region
benefited most from this trend; by contrast, the West
Midlands and the North-East experienced slight
reductions. However, any further retail recovery
could be jeopardized by the increasing levels of
personal debt and a sustained rise in interest rates.

INDUSTRIAL, WAREHOUSING AND LOGIS-
TICS MARKET This sector of the real estate market
continues to exhibit strong demand and stable rent
levels.

HOUSING MARKET Following sharp price
rises in 2001 and 2002, last year saw a slowdown in

The Hypo Real Estate Group
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growth. Indeed, top rents and prices for exclusive
properties actually fell, particularly in London.
Further price adjustments are expected after the
rates increasing experienced in recent years.

France In France, the real estate market turned
out relatively stable with continued strong interest
from investors. Although rents for office properties
in Paris fell slightly, the decrease was below the
average for Europe as a whole. In addition to in-
fluential French banks, an increasing number of
foreign financial institutes are now competing on
this market.

OFFICE MARKET Despite the weak economic
climate, the market for office properties in the Paris
region (Ile-de-France) was relatively stable.

At between 5 % and 7 %, falls in rental prices
in the centre of Paris remained slight, but they were
more pronounced in the suburbs. At around 6.5 %,
vacancy rates showed a small increase (Ile-de-
France) although they remained moderate compared
with the rest of Europe.

RETAIL MARKET Despite the weaker eco-
nomy, the market for retail space also proved very
stable. There is a particularly short supply of retail
space in prime locations in Paris, due to the intense
competition between international fashion labels
in recent years. An equilibrium between supply
and demand has since been restored. Expensive
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renovation and modernisation projects are currently
under way for large retail centres on the outskirts of
towns. Although the Government has imposed strin-
gent conditions, some major new projects are never-
theless also under development.

INDUSTRIAL, WAREHOUSING AND LOGIS-
TICS MARKET Warehousing and industrial space

has seen an easing in the level of demand and trans- -

actions. On the whole, rents for modern logistics
and warehousing space have remained stable, al-
though they have fallen in the lower price brackets.

HOUSING MARKET Rents and purchase
prices in this segment showed a further rise last year.
There is still a shortage of housing accommodation
in the Greater Paris area, which will result in a con-
tinuing rise in the number of housing properties in
the outskirts.

US Compared with the past, interest rates
in the US are now relatively low, resulting in
favourable financing costs for investors. There is
intense competition between banks for quality real
estate finance in particular.

OFFICE MARKET Overall, most major office
markets are showing signs of decline caused by re-
duced demand. Only a few sub-markets have escaped
this trend. Those markets that had profited most
from the boom in the New Economy are suffering
from worst effects of this decline in demand; the
West coast is particularly affected by this trend. By
contrast, the real estate markets in New York City

and Washington DC are proving the most robust in
terms of vacancy rates.

RETAIL MARKET In terms of vacancy rates
and rental trends, retail real estate has in the past
proven to be the most stable segment of the entire
real estate market. This applies to large supraregio-
nal shopping centres in particular. Consumer beha-
viour is expected to show signs of recovery in 2004.

HOUSING MARKET Housing property prices
in the Us have risen sharply in recent years, with
low mortgage interest rates fuelling the price in-
creases. The recent rise in interest rates will now
give a boost to the rental market. The most attractive
markets — and those that have proven most stable
in the past — include New York City and Southern
California.

Other strategically important markets The
real estate markets in Central and Eastern Europe
are benefiting greatly from the EU’s decision to
expand to the East. Cities such as Warsaw, Prague
and Budapest are expecting a strong influx of inter-
national companies, not least because of their
favourable cost structures (wage costs) compared
with the rest of Europe. However, prime locations
are still in short supply in these cities.

With a share of around 50 %, Sweden repre-
sents the largest real estate market in Scandinavia,
Although the housing market is enjoying a boom in
the conurbations of Stockholm and Malmg, office
properties have been unable to escape the general
weakness in market trends. However, increasing



consumer confidence is creating stability for the
retail sector.

After years of strong growth in the Nether-
lands, the current weakness in the economic cli-
mate is having a knock-on effect on real estate mar-
kets, although the impact is being felt to differing
degrees. Whereas the housing market and the logis-
tics market in particular are proving relatively
stable, the retail sector is suffering due to a decline
in consumer activity. An increase in the supply of
office properties is meeting only a restrained
demand.

In Ttaly, the main focus for real estate
markets is Milan, which represents Italy’s commer-
cial hub in terms of retail trade, industry and the
banking and services sector. Here too, stable, high
demand for housing accommodation and the expan-
sion of the logistics market are compensating for a
decline in performance within the market for office
properties.

The office property market in Spain’s prin-
cipal cities of Madrid and Barcelona is also charact-
erised by increasing vacancy rates and falling rents.
In some cases the completion of new buildings is
being met by a decline in demand. By contrast, the
recovery in consumer confidence within the retail
sectar is proving higher than average compared with
the rest of Europe. In recent years, Spain has made
up for its former relatively low density of shopping
centres. This market is now comparable with those
in France and Great Britain.

After enduring a 10-year period of correction,
prices on the Japanese real estate market now
appear to be stabilising at their 1983 levels. This

The Hypo Real Estate Group
Real Estate Markets

consolidation was helped by the development of
international standards on the Japanese real estate
market. The demand for “sale and lease-back” arran-
gements and the growing importance of JREIT (Japa-
nese Real Estate Investment Trusts) improved the
transparency of the market. Occupancy rates for the
office property market in Tokyo, which represents
by far the largest segment, have stabilised or even
recorded a slight improvement. In China, the con-
fidence of international investors in the real estate
market is growing, with the result that they are trying
increasingly to secure a share of this potential
growth market. Their interest is concentrated here
primarily on the cities of Beijing and Shanghai and
the Guangzhou region. Seen overall, the markets of
the individual regions are developing at differing
rates. The retail market in general is, however,
strongly influenced by the establishment of bran-
ches of globally operating concerns, a development
which has the effect of raising rents. Since it has
only been possible for the Chinese to purchase resi-
dential accommodation for about 5 years now, the
housing market continues to be one of the main
driving forces behind the real estate market in China.
This is the case not only in the main conurbations
but also primarily in the less centrally located
regions which were considered in the past to be
favourable manufacturing locations.

M




Our Employees

The consolidation of the units in the Hypo
Real Estate Group as a Group with three different
bank subsidiaries, had a significant impact on de-
velopments in'the warkforce.

The establishment of Hypo Real Estate
Bank International’s headquarters involved the
recruitment ofllarge numbers of highly specialised
employees.

The spin-off did not require any major personnel
measures within Wiirttembergische Hypotheken-
bank AG.

The planned reduction of headcount necessi-
tated by the restructuring has been achieved at Hypo
Real Estate Bank AG.

As of December 31, 2003, Hypo Real Estate
Group in total emplayed 1,461 people.

The fact'that we were able to effect the spin-
off and build up the new Group so swiftly and so
successfully is largely thanks to the dedicated com-

mitment and motivation shown by all employees
within the companies concerned. This applies in
particular to the employees of Hypo Real Estate

~ Bank AG who were directly affected by the down-

sizing. At all times, the employee representatives
followed personnel developments within the com-
panies critically but constructively; this was a key
factor for the Group’s successful realignment. We
therefore extend special thanks to the members of
the work councils and management representative
bodies.

In 2004, personnel work will focus on estab-
lishing a uniform, group-wide corporate culture.
This objective is already anchored in the mission
statement and will now be put into practice.
Measures will also include revising remuneration
systems and concentrating on employee develop-
ment.
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Hypo Real Estate International

Key milestones during the spin-off process
Hypo Real Estate Bank International has been
created out of its predecessor, HVB Bank Ireland.
HVB Bank Ireland has been officially operating
under the name of Hypo Real Estate Bank Interna-
tional since September 15, 2003.

All of the Group’s international structured
finance activities have been pooled within this
Bank, including above all the activities of the inter-
national branch offices and of Pfandbrief Bank Inter-
national S. A., Luxembourg.

Of the original portfolio of HVB Bank Ireland
commercial loans, an amount of approximately
€ 3.0 billion was transferred to HVB Banque Luxem-
bourg S. A. As part of the spin-off process, an inter-
national real estate finance portfolio belonging to
HypoVereinshank and amounting to approximately
€ 8,1 billion (as of June 30, 2003) was then trans-
ferred to Hypo Real Estate Bank International.

As planned, Hypo Real Estate Bank Interna-
tional also purchased the HVB Group’s US commer-
cial real estate portfolio of around € 4.9 billion (US$
5.8 billion) in November 2003. This represented an
important step towards achieving a geographically
balanced portfolio structure.

After capital increases in 2003 Hypo Real
Estate Bank’s International Tier-1 ratio amounts to
8.9 % according to BIS.

Strategic orientation Hypo Real Estate Bank
International isias a leading provider of interna-
tional structured real estate financing and continues
to engage in theitype of international real estate
finance business that was successful in the HVB
Group before the spin-off.

The Bank’s strategy is transaction-oriented
and is based on & combination of different compe-

tences in the areas of financing, structuring and risk
transformation. The primary emphasis is on cash
flow and on the potential benefit of each individual
transaction in terms of risk and return. Careful atten-
tion is, however, also given to ensuring the attrac-
tiveness and diversification of the portfolio as a
whole. Profitability takes precedence over volume
and market share.

New business is originated by local units.
Hypo Real Estate Bank International relies on dedi-
cated specialists with local expertise and on a
strong centralised risk management.

Business focuses on medium- to large-volume
transactions for professional investors and develop-
ers. Hypo Real Estate Bank International often pro-
vides more than pure real estate financing. For large,
complex projects in particular, its product portfolio
ranges from investor consultancy services to the
broad range of structured finance.

Result Despite the difficult underlying con-
ditions prevailing during the year of the spin-off we
exceeded our forecasts in 2003.

The purchase of the US real estate finance
portfolio from HVB Group was completed in Decem-
ber, somewhat later than originally planned. There-
fore this portfolio did not make any meaningful con-
tribution to resuits in 2003. Still the operating income
remained at the same level as the preceding year.

Once again, no loan losses were recorded in
2003. Nevertheless, we decided to build a general
loan loss provision of € 37 million.

Establishment of the head office in Dublin
resulted in a 30 % rise in general administrative
expenses from € 50 million to € 64 million. Never-
theless, the level of expenses was still lower than
planned as the workforce was only increased in



successive stages. At € -5 million, the net income
from investments was negative; in 2002, this item
had been favourably influenced by extraordinary
effects of € 30 million.

The pre-tax result of € 87 million was 10 %
higher than forecasted, although the planned con-
tribution to results from the US portfolio did not
materialise.

Adjusted for the effects of the general loan

loss provision and the tying up of capital in respect

of the US portfolio, the return on equity after taxes

amounted to 9.4 %, which was more than the cost of

capital.
KEY FINANCIALS (IFRS)
in € millions
Operating income Eied 187
Net income from investments :’E 34
Provisions for losses on loans
and advances 19
Genera! administrative
expenses 50

~ Otherincome/expenses [:3 -1
thereof:
restructuring expenses - -
Result before taxes (:j 151
Result after taxes F-—Ey— 126
Tier-1ratio (in %) [:__E}Ej na.
Return on eqUity after
taxes (in %) 43 na.
Adjusted return on equity
after taxes (in %) n.a.
cir (in %) 26.7

Hypo Real Estate International

Portfolio structure As of December 31, 2003,
Hypo Real Estate Bank International’s portfolio of
commitments amounted to € 18.6 billion. Of this,
around € 13.0 billion (70 %) related to commercial
real estate finance and € 5.6 billion (30 %) to

municipal business. Most of the municipal business

concerns Pfandbrief Bank International (PBI) loans.
The real estate finance portfolio, which is
comprised exclusively of commercial real estate

finance, can be divided according to different crite-

rias, as illustrated in the examples below showing
the type of financing, property type and geographi-
cal distribution.

Operating Units
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TOTAL PORTFOLIO

Commercial real estate finance
€£13.0bn (70%)

Municipal business € 5.6 bn (30 %)

PORTFOLIO BY FINANCE TYPE

Investment finance
€10.1bn (78 %)

Development finahce
€21bn (16%)

Other€ 0.8 bn (6 %)

o

1) e.g. VAT interim financing

PORTFOLIO BY PROPERTY TYPE

Office buildings 36 %
Retail trade 18 %
Logistics fwarehousing 5%
Mixed use 25%
Hotels/leisure 9 %
Commercial housing construction3%
Otherg%

A1

PORTFOLIO BY COUNTRIES

Great Britain 37%
US23%
France 22%

Spain3%
Italy 4%
Scandinavia 4%
Other7%

ZEERN

Note: These figures do not include us business of € 1.2 billion. This is guaranteed by Hypo Real Estate Bank International {risk fies with this company) but has been entered

into Wirttembergische Hypothekenbank’s books and is shown there.

This broad country diversification ensures a
good distribution of risk and reduces risks resulting
from cyclical effects in national real estate markets.
“Other” summarises financing business in Germany,
Poland, the Czech Republic, Hungary, etc. None of
these countries represents mare than 1%.

New business The level of originated new
business exceeded the conservative expectations for
2003, the year of the spin-off. The overall volume of
new business amounted to € 4.7 billion, of which
€ 1.0 billion were accounted for by Pfandbrief Bank
International. Hypo Real Estate Bank International



generated most of its new business in Europe. All

in all, we were able to improve and expand our mar-
ket presence and our customer relations, despite
the fact that the positive effects of our marketing
endeavours were partially offset by reductions in
the existing portfolios. _

Hypo Real Estate Bank International demon-
strated in 2003 how its pan-European business
model works. New business was originated, struc-
tured and processed in the Netherlands, Great Britain,
the US, Sweden, France, Italy, Spain, Scandinavia
and Germany. All this new business showed a good
profit at a healthy level of risk.

The spin-off from the HVB Group meant it
was not possible to focus all resources on the Bank’s
operating business. However, despite the major
structural changes, we succeeded in showing total
commitment to our customers and maintaining our
high levels of service quality. The product range was
continuously expanded and supplemented with
innovative instruments from the field of real estate
investment banking. This enabled us to offer our
clients customised financing structures and solu-
tions to suit their individual needs. By combining
these instruments with the facilities offered by secu-
ritisation and traditional banking instruments, Hypo
Real Estate Bank International was able to offer inte-
grated, single-source solutions.

Refinancing One aspect of particular impor-
tance in the process of setting up the new entity
of Hypo Real Estate Bank International was the
expansion of the Treasury Department in Dublin.
It was necessary for the Bank to have a modern and
efficient Treasury division right from the beginning.

Hypo Real Estate International

Special attention had to be given to the
recruitment of personnel and the development of
systems and processes. During the current year we
will continue with the further development of
these systems and processes in order to meet our
own high risk management requirements as well as
today’s market standards. :

As an integral part of these Treasury activi-
ties, Pfandbrief Bank International (PBI) of Luxem-
bourg was transferred to Hypo Real Estate Bank
International in September 2003. It was therefore
possible to utilise the capacities and expertise thus
acquired to optimum effect. Plans are also currently
under way for international commercial real estate
finance transactions that are eligible for cover to be
refinanced by means of mortgage bonds issued in
Luxembourg. Hypo Real Estate Bank International
will therefore have at its disposal all modern finan-
cial instruments, ranging from money market busi-
ness, unsecured bonds and mortgage bonds to secu-
ritisation transactions.

At the end of 2003 Hypo Real Estate Bank
International issued a general programme for the
issuance of future refinancing instruments, espe-
cially those inveolving longer maturities, that will
permit the international placing of bonds. By
pursuing a policy of intensive communication to the
markets, the Bank also succeeded in securing exten-
sive counterparty limits.

At the end of March 2003 the rating agencies
reacted as follows to the planned integration of the
former HVB Bank Ireland in the planned Hypo Real
Estate Group:

At this time Standard & Poor’s expected an
A-rating for the Hypo Real Estate Bank Interna-

Operating Units
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tional and specified this further in August with a
negative outlook. The expected rating was assigned
on 29 September.

At the beginning of April 2003 Moody’s con-
firmed the A3 rating of the Hypo Real Estate Bank
International with a stable outlook.

HYPO REAL ESTATE BANK INTERNATIONAL
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES as of December 31, 2003

Amsterdam 2
Dublin i 104
London ' 63
. —_————— D

Ltuxembourg ; 19
Madrid ‘ 1
et ————p—

Milan ‘ 5
Munich . 45

Paris

Stockhoim ‘ 7
Total : 344

New York ‘ ‘ 54

Personnel In January 2003 our predecessor,
HVB Bank Ireland — which was operating at the time
under the previous business model — employed
35 people. Once the new business model had been
adopted at the beginning of 2003, preparations were
made to increase staff significantly.

Existing departments such as Finance, Opera-
tions, Treasury, Marketing and IT were expanded. In
these areas we were able to build on the experience
of the staff already in place. Complementing the
expertise of the existing local workforce with new

recruits from various countries was a key factor
for success.

In other areas new divisions and compe-
tences had to be created. The requisite expertise,
for example in the areas of risk management, risk
controlling, auditing and legal affairs, was secured
not only by recruiting new staff but also by taking
over experienced personnel from the HVB Group.

At the end of 2003, 104 people were
employed at Hypo Real Estate Bank International’s
headquarters; including international units, this
represents a total workforce of 344.

Hypo Real Estate Bank International will con-
tinue to recruit highly qualified employees in 2004.
Work will also focus on the introduction of a trainee
programime.

Information technology At Hypo Real Estate
Bank International, IT systems management is
divided into two areas. The provision of hardware,
operating systems and communications and infor-
mation systems is the responsibility of IT Infrastruc-
ture. IT Systems provides all applications and inter-
faces. The aim is to implement an integrated IT
system based on international standard software.

Regarding security, both departments
undergo separate auditing by an independent secu-
rity officer and the Auditing Department. Priority
is attached to protecting data against loss or misuse.
We use only internationally recognised hardware
and software.

Wherever possible, new demands in terms of
the IT infrastructure are met by expanding functions
within existing systems. This ensures that the com-




plexity of interfaces — and therefore IT costs - is kept
within limits.

Following the introduction of a completely
new IT infrastructure during 2003, important
improvements and refinements to processes are
planned for 2004.

Outlook for 2004 Conditions in the European
markets will remain difficult in 2004. Nevertheless,
there are opportunities for good and profitable
transactions. ,

Each market has its own terms, risks and
opportunities. Hypo Real Estate Bank International
is aware of this and continuously assesses the attrac-
tiveness of potential markets against the background
of a global network and on the basis of selected
transactions. Currently, we are preparing new mar-
ket entries from the offices in Tokyo and Hong Kong.

The expansion of the EU and the desire for
integration of the major national economies in Cen-
tral and Eastern Europe mean that Hypo Real Estate
Bank International is reviewing its local presence in
these markets.

In 2004, Hypo Real Estate Bank International
will continue to focus on developing and enhancing
its product portfolio. For example, it has been
decided to supplement the core business of real
estate structured financing with a capital markets
division (including both rates and credit markets)
which will concentrate on structuring, managing
and transforming of complex risks using tools from
different product groups. This activity will provide
some diversification with regard to our sources of
income as well as utilising our in-house expertise in

Operating Units
Hypo Real Estate International

such a way that we can offer our clients a broad
range of structured investment market solutions.
The Bank will continue its successful, tried
and tested business model in 2004 and will con-
tinue to enlarge its portfolio.
It can therefore be assumed that the results
will be significantly improved in 2004.
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Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank

Key milestones during the spin-off process
After belonging to the HypoVereinsbank Group and
its predecessor group for more than 80 years, Wiirt-
tembergische Hypothekenbank became part of the
newly created Hypo Real Estate Group when the
latter was spin-off from the HVB Group on Septem-
ber 29, 2003. Aq part of the structuring process for
the new Group, the share held by the parent com-
pany DIA Vermdgensverwaltungs-GmbH in Wiirt-
tembergische Hypothekenbank AG was successively
increased during 2003, raising it from around 76 %
to approximateiy 97 %.

A capitallincrease in August strengthened the
Bank’s equity base for the long term and opened up
opportunities for further growth on the international
real estate markets. At the end of 2003 the Bank had
a sound Tier-1 ratio of 6.9 % according to BIS.

In October 2003 Wiirttembergische Hypothe-

kenbank concluded a profit and loss pooling agree-
ment with its parent company. This will enable a
further improvement in the Group’s capital base.

Wﬁrttembergische Hypothekenbank will also
apply its core expertise in international mortgage
transactions eligible as cover funds in its dealings
with Hypo ReallEstate Bank International. Its high
placing capacities as a renowned issuer of mortgage
bonds will therefore help to contribute to the market
success of the Group as a whole.

Strategic orientation As a specialist financial
institute with 135 years’ experience in real estate
financing, Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank
adopts a low-risk approach — in other words, the

Bank attaches great importance to low-risk struc-
turing of its loan business and also to consistent risk
management in all areas of activity.

The Bank already has more than 10 years’
worth of expertise in Western European real estate
markets. At present, almost all new mortgage busi-
ness is acquired outside Germany.

Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank spe-
cialises in financing completed commercial pro-
perties where the net rental income will cover the
principal repayments even in the event of a deterio-
ration in the economic climate. This specialisation
enables it to grant loans swiftly and with a high .
degree of reliability.

New business is secured via the Bank’s own
sales network. In the future, this will be supple-
mented through participation in selected loans of
Hypo Real Estate Bank International.

Refinancing takes place mostly through the
issue of mortgage bonds. Investment market activi-
ties are supplemented by the development and
utilisation of other investment market products
such as securitisation with a view to transferring risk.

Overall, therefore, Wiirttembergische
Hypothekenbank will continue the successful and
proven business model and will be an integral part
of the Hypo Real Estate Group.

While pursuing the same risk strategy, Wiirt-
tembergische Hypothekenbank plans to expand its
business model by cooperating closely with Hypo
Real Estate Bank International in order to extend
the use of mortgage bonds as efficient refinancing
instruments.



Result During 2003, Wiirttembergische

Hypothekenbank was smoothly integrated within
the new Group and enjoyed an excellent start with
the first joint financing for the purchase of HVB's

Us portfolio.

The portfolio was further diversified in 2003

and at the end of the year, the proportion of inter-
national finance transactions amounted to 59 %.
Through the transaction WuerttHyp F-1 we were
able to conclude the first synthetic securitisation

KEY FINANCIALS (IFRS}

in € millions

Operating income

Net income from investments
Provisions for losses on loans
and advances

General administrative
expenses

Other income/expenses
thereof:

restructuring expenses
Result before taxes

Result after taxes

Tier-1ratio (in %)
Return on equity
after taxes {in %)
cir (in %)

;

2003
104

25

I}

el bl |

3t

5
2

69

8z
29.8

2002

107

25

3N

58
49

n.a.

n.a.
29.0
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transaction relating exclusively to French real

estate’loans.

Operating income was almost the same as in
the preceding year; the first favourable increase in
margins was achieved in the second half of the year
through the international portfolio. At € 25 million,
provisions for losses on loans and advances
remained at the same level as the preceding year.
Current general administrative expenses remained
stable, and the operating result of € 54 million was
therefore on par with that of the preceding year.
The profit and loss pooling agreement enabled the
tax burden to be reduced by € 19 million, which led
to a pleasing return on equity after taxes of 8.2 %.

Portfolio structure As of December 31, 2003,
Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank’s portfolio
amounted to approximately € 26 billion. Of this,
around € 12.2 billion (47 %) were accounted for by
real estate financing and around € 13.8 billion
(53 %) by public-sector financing; by contrast, pub-
lic-sector financing only accounted for around 12 %
of new business during the year under review.

The real estate portfolio can be divided
according to several different criterias, as illustrated
in the examples below showing property types,
breakdown of commercial real estate into mortgage
and public-sector finance business, and also a geo-

graphical analysis.

New business In 2003, the Bank’s foreign
activities again focussed on the core European
countries of Great Britain, France, the Netherlands,
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Sweden, Denmark, Switzerland, Ireland and Spain,
as well as on the US.

The volume of new mortgage business agreed
during the year under review reached a record level
of € 3.3 billion! This represented a 63 % increase on
the preceding year. Of this volume, an amount of
€ 3.2 billion or 99 % was accounted for by foreign
business. Most new business (€ 2.0 billion) was

acquired in other European countries. In addition, a -

significant shaie (€ 1.2 billion) was accounted for
by real estate loans in the US. The majority of new
business in the US was attributable to a special
transaction that enabled Hypo Real Estate Bank
International to refinance the US portfolio it had
acquired from the HvB Group.

The significant growth in new mortgage
business was achieved without bypassing the strict
requirements on risk-return relationships. The
Bank’s own internal systems for controlling new
business enable a precisely targeted evaluation of
all individual commitments, thereby also ensuring
the long-term quality of the loan portfolio.

German mortgage business did not meet the
Bank’s requirements in terms of profitability and
risk during the year under review. Its share of over-
all new mortgage business therefore amounted to
just 1.5 %. Of overall new mortgage business, an
amount of € 0.6 billion was accounted for by resi-
dential properties and € 2.7 billion'by commercial
properties. '

Municipal business continues to produce
inadequate operating returns. The Bank has with-
drawn from this segment even further than in
the preceding year. New lendings during the year
under review amounted to just € 0.5 billion, around
76 % down on the preceding year’s figure of
€ 1.9 billion.

TOTAL PORTFOLIO

Public-sector financing business 53%

Commercial real estate 31% \

Housing construction16%

Including commitments, approximately two-thirds of the mortgage loan portfolio of € 12
billion is accounted for by commercial construction and one-third by housing construction.

PORTFOLIO BY PROPERTY TYPE

Office buildings 59 %

Retail trade 26 % —/
Hotels 5% —L
Logistics/warehousing 4% ﬁ%
Other 6%

Office and retail buildings accounted for 85 % of Wiirttemberger Hypo's portfalio.

PORTFOLIO BY COUNTRIES

Germany £21%
Great Britain 24 %

US10%
Sweden 6%
Other3%

France 9% /
The Netherlands 7% T\*
N\
—<C




Including commitments, the mortgage loan
portfolio increased significantly during the year
under review, from € 10.8 billion to € 12.2 billion.
This represents a 13 % increase on the corresponding
value for the preceding year.

Municipal portfolios fell due to the Bank’s
successive withdrawal from the segment. The re-
duction from € 16.0 billion in the preceding year
'to € 13.8 billion in 2003 constituted a fall of 13.5 %.

Refinancing In fiscal 2003, Wiirttembergische
Hypothekenbank’s refinancing strategy was aimed
at emphasising the Bank’s core competence, namely
refinancing by means of mortgage bonds.

In contrast to the preceding year’s strategy,
two jumbo mortgage bond issues (€ 1 billion in
mortgage bonds and € 1.5 billion in public-sector
bonds) were placed on the debt capital markets. The
demand from investors for these bonds exceeded
expectations and therefore enabled a continuous
reduction in the Bank’s refinancing costs.

In addition to large-volume issues, the Bank
refinances itself via a number of smaller debt securi-
ties. This ensures an appropriate mix of maturities
and evens results in a steady stream of refinancing.

Issuing activities were backed up by numer-
ous meetings with investors in Germany and other
countries of Europe. This further consolidated the
Bank’s reputation as a reliable issuing house and
helped secure new investors.

During the year under review, Wiirttember-
gische Hypothekenbank increased its range of foreign
currency bonds with the addition of mortgage bonds
in Swedish krona. The Bank also secures refinancing
in pounds sterling, Swiss francs and USS.

The overall volume of external funds raised to
refinance loan operations amounted to € 6.3 billion.

Operating Units
Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank

Of this, € 2.5 billion (40 %) was accounted for by
public-sector bonds, € 1.8 billion (28 %) by mortgage
bonds and € 2.0 billion (32 %) by unsecured debt
securities. At the end of 2003 the Bank’s volume of
outstanding debt securities amounted to € 23.9 billion.

As one of the three operating units of the
Hypo Real Estate Group, Wiirttembergische Hypo-
thekenbank has undergone a change in role. Its
status as an established issuing house for the entire
Group is now of particular significance. This func-
tion was put to the test in the refinancing of the US
portfolio that the Hypo Real Estate Group acquired
from the HVB Group. ,

At the beginning of the year under review,
the rating agencies reacted in different ways to the
Bank’s inclusion within the proposed Hypo Real
Estate Group. Moody’s reduced its rating from A2
to A3, with a stable outlook. Standard & Poor’s
reacted to the spin-off and particularly Wiirttember-
gische Hypothekenbank’s position within the new
Group with a “credit watch with positive implica-
tion”, which was followed in October 2003 by a
rating increase from BBB+ to A—.

In 2003, Standard & Poor’s again awarded its
top rating of AAA for Wiirttembergische Hypothe-
kenbank’s public-sector bonds and mortgage bonds.
This rating was based on the quality of the cover
funds and the coverage structure. In contrast,
Moody’s rating approach makes mortgage bond
ratings dependent on the bank rating. Consequently,
Moody’s downrate in the bank rating also resulted
in a reduction in the mortgage bonds and public
sector bonds ratings, although this by no means re-
flected a more critical evaluation of the cover funds.

In recent years, Wiirttembergische Hypothe-
kenbank has established itself as one of Germany’s
few regular issuers on the securitisation market.
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When securitising mortgage loans, it converts non-
tradable real estate loans into tradable loan deriva-
tives. Essentially, the loan loss risk from the securi-
tised loans is transferred to a broad stratum of
investors. This risk transfer enables the Bank to pro-
tect itself against the credit risk from the securitised
portfolio. The improvement in the risk position also
relieves the pressure in terms of the equity base
required for securitised loans. This enablés the Bank
to build up a larger mortgage portfolio in relation to
its equity capital, i.e. it is able to generate more new
business.

In December 2003 the transaction referred to
as WuerttHyp F-1 secured a large part of the Bank’s
French mortgage portfolio against loan loss risks.
The securitised portfolio is representative of the
entire portfolio and consists of 106 commercial real
estate loans averaging € 5.6 million. Reflecting the
fact that the French real estate market is concen-

" trated in Paris, 74 % of the real estate relating to the

securitised loans is in the Paris region, while the
remaining properties are divided between regional
centres such as|Lyon or Marseilles. In the market,
the quality of the securitised portfolio is assessed as
above average.

A characteristic feature of Wiirttembergische
Hypothekenbank’s transactions is that, in contrast to
comparable transactions by other issuers, the Bank
acts here not only as issuer but also as arranger. The
complex technology for planning, implementing
and structuring such innovative products has now
been established on a broad basis within Wiirttem-
bergische Hypothekenbank. In the future, the Bank

will use this know-how to optimise its portfolio and
level of profitability.

Personnel Wiirttembergische Hypotheken-
bank’s business operations are concentrated at its
Stuttgart headquarters where around 180 peaple are
employed. The Bank also has representative offices
in the key European markets.

To enable the Bank to respond to both market
demands and also the Bank’s own requirements, its
human resources policy attaches priority to equip-
ping employees to deal with increasingly demand-
ing requirements and complex issues, thereby lay-
ing the foundations to ensure the Bank’s continuing
business success.

+ As part of HR development, the focus on long-
term success is buttressed by measures and activi-
ties designed to show visible short-term success. A
good personnel development policy increases the
Bank’s attractiveness as an employer while also con-
tributing to its economic success. In addition to
identifying potential, the Bank gives motivated and
successful employees personal encouragement and
support, either by recruiting them to the “junior
executive development team”, by awarding more
extensive duties and responsibilities or by offering
personalised career planning. Here, the Bank
focuses on “retention management”, i.e. it aims to
encourage high-quality, successful employees to
remain loyal to the Bank. To do this, it is vital to
convince such employees that the Bank offers good
prospects and for them to view the Bank as an
attractive employer.



The growing demands made on banks in
terms of innovative capacity and the productive use
of knowledge as a resource mean it is vital to ensure
that employeas have high levels of qualification
and that a transfer of knowledge takes place within
the company. Advanced vocational training tailored
strictly to requirements within Wiirttembergische
Hypothekenbank is supported by a system of training
and implementation controlling in order to ensure
that training measures are as effective as possible.

Information Technology IT support for Wiirt-
tembergische Hypothekenbank’s business model is
provided by the PARIS applications system that was
developed by Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank
at the beginning of the 1990s and that is specially
tailored to the needs of mortgage banks. It comprises
several integrated software components that are
combined with external software components (e.g.
for derivatives business) incorporated to provide a
complete system that mests all requirements of a
mortgage bank, covering all relevant areas of activity
and products (e.g. loan and securities business) as
well as all necessary processes and functions (e.g.
payment transactions, reporting and risk control).

Outlook For the current fiscal year, the Bank
is forecasting higher levels of new mortgage busi-
ness than in the preceding year, because of a more
intensive cooperation with Hypo Real Estate Bank
International. Once again, efforts will focus on origi-
nating business in Western European real estate
markets. Business volumes should rise further in the
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core markets of the United Kingdom, France, Scan-
dinavia and the Netherlands. The role of markets
where activity has not been so focussed is expected
to increase. The successful business expansion in
the United States of America should be continued
and consolidated. 4

As far as public-sector finance business is
concerned, the Bank will continue its defensive
strategy and thus continue to limit its activities
during 2004. Earnings opportunities remain un-
satisfactory with no improvement expected in the
medium term.

The environment for capital market business
is expected to show only marginal change during
the current year. Investment market returns are
expected to move sideways in the first months of
the year. With continued conservative risk position-
ing, the earnings contribution from investment mar-
ket business is expected to remain at the same level
as the preceding year.

Overall, it is anticipated that Wiirttembergi-
sche Hypothekenbank will achieve a stable result in
2004.
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Key measures during the spin-off process On
October 24, 2003 Hypo Real Estate Bank AG sold
FGH Bank, of Utrecht, to the Dutch Rabobank. The
transaction took effect retroactively as from January 1,
2003.

Following the buy-out of the minority share-
holders at Westfiilische Hypothekenbank AG and
the completion of the squeeze-out of the remaining
minority shareholders at HVB Real Estate Bank AG
the merger of Westfilische Hypothekenbank AG into
Hypo Real Estéte Bank AG was carried out as planned
on November 3, 2003.

It is expected that the entire integration
process will be completed as scheduled by July
2004. ‘

The merger will produce important synergies
and improve Hypo Real Estate Bank AG’s cost situa-
tion. The merger of the two banks also strengthens
the position of the new, combined Hypo Real
Estate Bank inthe market. After a capital increase
in 2003 Hypo Real Estate Germany’s Tier-1 ratio
amounts to 7.4% according to BIS.

Strategic orientation In 2003, Hypo Real
Estate Bank AG carried out an extensive realignment
of its business policy. Attention focused on restruc-
turing the loan jportfolio in terms of profitibility and
assset quality with the aim of achieving a significant
reduction in overall volumes and improving the
returns on individual transactions. The consistent
melting down of the mortgage finance portfolio also
reflects the need to achieve a balance in terms of the
proportion of German business within the Hypo Real
Estate Group. Ini addition to scheduled redemptions
and the paring down of portfolios as loans become
due for prolongation — only 51.5 % of the portfolio
was extended on the interest rate adjustment dates -

portfolio sales were also used as a means of reduc-
ing portfolio volumes. For example, a portfolio of
retail loans amounting to approximately € 600 mil-
lion that was no longer consistent with the Bank’s
strategy was successfully sold in December 2003.
In the same way, a portfolio of non performing
loans amounting to approximately € 490 million
(incl. interest and other receivables) was also suc-
cessfully sold. The difficult markst environment
in Germany was taken into account through a
significant increase in the risk provisions for losses
on loans and advances compared with the pre-
ceding year.

By consistently applying its risk/return-
oriented business policy, the Bank has achieved
a significant increase in margins. In the medium
term this approach — combined with an intentional
and planned acceptance of higher-than-average
portfolio reductions — will help ensure a marked
increase in the profitability of the remaining loan
stock.

Result Hypo Real Estate Deutschland more
than fulfilled its ambitious targets for 2003.

The planned reduction in the loan portfolio
to € 78 billion was exceeded by € 4 billion.

The prolongation margin was increased from
125 basis points to more than 160 basis points and
was therefore significantly higher than expected.

The workforce was reduced in line with
planning, with the result that as of January 1, 2004,
the Company employed 200 fewer people than one
year ago.

We spent € 86 million on the restructuring of
our business that was commenced during the year
under review; an amount of € 33 million was allo-
cated to restructuring provisions.



Compared with the preceding year, operating
income increased by € 32 million to € 436 million.
Here, the one-off effects of the FGH dividend
amounting to € 33 million and income from the sale
of land amounting to € 20 million must be taken
into consideration. After eliminating these effects,
the operating income therefore fell slightly by
€ 8 million, largely due to the burdon of unrealised
interest on poorly performing loans.

Before offsetting the risk shelter of € 460 mil-
lion, risk provisions for losses and loans and ad-
vances rose once again, by € 189 million. After off-
setting the risk shelter, they fell by € 271 million to
€ 190 million. With this risk provision the cover

ratio was increased to 32 % of the workout portfolio.

KEY FINANCIALS (IFRS)

in € millions

Operating income 436 404
Net income from investments :Zl 21
Provisions for losses on r-‘————\

loans and advances 190 461

General administrative
expenses 152 154

Otherincome/expenses :E. -3
thereof:

restructuring expenses 86 2
Result before taxes T -193
Result after taxes -16 -186

L

Tier-1ratio (in %) n.a.
Return on equity

after taxes (in %) ~O.7 n.a.
QR (in %) [19_ 384
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At €152 million, general administrative
expenses remained relatively stable as the reduced
personnel expenses were offset by increased IT ex-
penses connected with replacement of the IT system.

After taking restructuring expenses into con-
sideration, the net loss for the year before taxes was
therefore lower than anticipated and amounted to
€ 11 million.

Portfolio structure Hypo Real Estate Bank AG’s
public sector finance portfolio as of December 31,
2003 amounted to approximately € 54.5 billion.
This included € 35.9 billion in municipal loans and
€ 18.6 billion in other loans and debt securities.

The loan portfolio of the Hypo Real Estate
Bank AG at December 31, 2003 totalled approxi-
mately € 74.4 billion. Of this, an amount of around
€ 38.5 billion was accounted for by real estate
financing and an amount of around € 35.9 billion by
public-sector financing business.

The restrictive policy on new business and
the selective approach to prolongations based on
strict risk/return criteria resulted in the mortgage
loan portfolio being reduced in line as planned by
approximately € 4.6 billion to € 38.5 billion.

The municipal loan portfolio shrank due to
the Bank’s successive withdrawal from this busi-
ness. There was a 21% reduction from € 45.7 billion
in the preceding year to € 35.9 billion in 2003.

New business During the year under review,
the restructuring of the bank was the main focus.
Restrictive conditions were therefore attached to
new mortgage business, which was limited to
selected finance transactions; overall, new business
amounted to just € 422 million.
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TOTAL PORTFOLIO

Public-sector financing business 48%

Commercial real estate 22%

Housing construction 30% ‘———\i—/

The mortgage loan Rortfc)io of € 38.5 billion consists of approximately € 16.6 billion
relating to commercial construction and € 21.9 biltion relating to housing construction.

PORTFOLIO BY PROPERTY TYPE

Retail trade 31%
Hotels 6%
industry/logistics 5%

Hospitals and Sanatoriums 4% —
Plots 1% - \
Other 6%

' G o
Office buildings 47% —7
£
|
\

PORTFOLIO BY COUNTRIES

Germany 92%
The Netherlands 5%
France1%
United Kingdom 2/%

The municipal loan business continues to
achieve inadequate operating returns. The Bank
therefore withdrew from this segment to an even
greater extent than in the preceding year. New
lendings during the year under review amounted to
just € 236 million.

Hypo Real Estate Bank AG's loan portfolio
comprises mainly long-term fixed-interest loans. In
restructuring the portfolio, the Bank is focussing on
opportunities for optimisation that arise when loan
agreements expire or when customer demands are
being met. '

Customer service focuses on activities
designed to minimise risk and improve earnings. In
addition to traditional fixed-interest agreements,
which are currently only being offered with fixed
periods of around three years, the Bank also uses
interest derivatives where customers express the
wish to take advantage of the current low rates on
the capital market.

Refinancing In 2003, refinancing activities
focussed on improving the Bank’s structural liquid-
ity. Against the backdrop of the spin-off and the
resulting downgrading of ratings, it was vital to min-
imise the risks resulting from future refinancing
requirements. To this end, debt securities amounting
to a total volume of approximately € 15 billion were
issued in the market. Of these, around one-third
were mortgage bonds, one third public-sector bonds
and one third unsecured bonds and borrowers’
notes. Here, it is important to highlight the extremely
successful placement of a three-year mortgage bond
amounting to € 1.75 billion in July. In addition,
the sale of parts of the mortgage portfolio and the
liquidity lines provided by HypoVereinsbank under
the spin-off also helped to strengthen structural
liquidity.



To avoid short-term liquidity tisks, only a
small volume of unsecured funds was raised on the
money market and the issue volume under the
CP programme was also kept low at approximately
€ 1.3 billion. The main focus here was on secured
borrowing via repo transactions. Our good liquidity
position meant that, on balance, we made unse-
cured liquidity available to the money market.

Using the swap curve as a benchmark for
measurement, our refinancing terms have improved
successively over the course of the year. Contri-
butory factors included the welcome given to the
Hypo Real Estate Group’s business model by the
investment markets. This is also reflected in the
development of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG’s
share price. Further factors were the reduced issue
volume resulting from the Bank’s restructuring, the
increased use of structured issues and the generally
more favourable standing of German banks on the
markets.

At the end of March 2003 Standard & Poor’s
downgraded the rating of HVB Real Estate Bank AG
and of Westfilische Hypothekenbank AG from BBB+
to BBB and placed both institutes to “CreditWatch
with negative implications”.

The downgrades and CreditWatch placings
followed the announcement on details concerning
the planned spin-off at the end of March 2003. As
advised the negative CreditWatch criteria of the
two institutes were replaced by a negative outlook
after the spin-off became effective.

At the beginning of April 2003 Moody’s down-
graded the rating of HVB Real Estate Bank AG from
A1 to Baal and that of Westfilische Hypotheken-
bank AG from A2 to Baal; the outlook for both insti-
tutes remained stable.

In April 2003, Fitch assessed HVB Real Estate
Bank AG with a BBB rating and a stable outlook.

Operating Units
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Standard & Poor’s also awarded the best Rating
AAA in 2003 for the public sector bonds of HVB
Real Estate Bank AG and Westfilische Hypotheken-
bank AG. The downgrade in the institute rating by
Moody’s led at the same to a reduction in the bond
rating from Aal or Aa2 respectively to A1 for the
mortgage bonds and from Aaa or Aal to Aa3 for the
public bonds, without this having reflected a more
critical assessment of the cover funds. Based on the
announced introduction of a cash value cover regu-
lation, and the changed rating approach deriving
from this, Moody’s set the public sector bonds and
the mortgage bonds to “review for possible upgrade”
in January 2004. Fitch assesses the public sector
bonds with AAA and the mortgage bonds with AA+.

The change of name from HVB Real Estate
Bank AG to Hypo Real Estate Bank AG and the merger
between Hypo Real Estate Bank AG and Westfdlische
Hypothekenbank AG had no influence on any of the
ratings.

Employees In 2003, the main focus of atten-
tion for the employees of Hypo Real Estate Bank was
on the major restructuring projects: first, the spin-
off from the HVB Group on September 29, 2003 and
the associated strategic changes that resulted in
the closure of all of the Bank’s decentralised offices
during the third quarter, and second, the merger
with Westfélische Hypothekenbank AG which was
successfully completed on November 3, 2003.

As part of these measures, the number of
people employed by the new, merged entity at the
beginning of 2004 was reduced to 853 (equivalent
to 809 full-time positions). By way of comparison,

a total of 1,053 people (equivalent to 1,016 full-
time positions) had been employed by the two
institutes HVB Real Estate Bank AG and Westfilische
Hypothekenbank AG as of December 31, 2002.
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We only succeeded in achieving our targets
because of thelextraordinarily constructive coopera-
tion we enjoyed with the employee representative
organisations. Despite the tight timetable and the
enormous workload, viable and harmonious solu-
tions were arrived at in an environment of trusting
cooperation with the representative committees as
well as with the various staff council organisations.

In 2004, continuing the restructuring process
will lead to a further reduction in the workforce
which is already in progress.

Information technology The IT system
acquired before the spin-off from the HVB Group is
being replaced/by an independent standard system
for mortgage banks known as PARIS. This system is
also used by the sister company Wiirttembergische
Hypothekenbank and was used by the former West-
filische Hypothekenbank.

The project work required to implement the
new system and migrate data stocks made good
progress during 2003. Conversion to the new IT sys-
tem is plannedifor the end of the first six months of
2004. This willlcreate the basis for combining the IT
systems of Hypo Real Estate Bank AG and the former
Westfdlische Hypothekenbank AG, enabling the
technical merger to be completed towards thé middle
of 2004. ,

Outlook Hypo Real Estate Bank AG antici-
pates a slight improvement in Germany’s overall
economic climate in 2004. However, the outlook
remains bleak for Germany’s construction industry.

In 2004, Hypo Real Estate Bank AG will be
pursuing two key objectives:
| Priority will focus on the restructuring programme
that was commenced in 2003 and that has pro-
gressed successfully in line with expectations. The
Bank will continue to follow this programme con-
sistently in 2004. As before, we will concentrate on
analysing, evaluating and optimising the existing
portfolio in terms of risk with a view to reduce
the existing loan portfolio further and to increase
profitability.
| In 2004 the Bank will make preparations to resume
new business. To this end, the Bank will develop
the business strategy required for new business and
will implement this as soon as possible but probably
by the beginning of 2005. When planning our new
business we will attach priority to profitability
rather than growth in volume. Hypo Real Estate
Bank AG will only grant prolongations if prices are
adjusted in line with the risks involved.

The Bank anticipates high levels of provi-
sions for losses on loans and advances in 2004.

The Bank has a risk shelter from HVB AG amounting
to € 130 million and so it therefore anticipates a
balanced result for 2004.
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FinancialReview

A successful start into independence The
past weeks and months have been very eventful.
Following the spin-off and the successful listing
at the stock exchange, we pay our attention to the
advancement of the Group.

The Hypo Real Estate Group, under the roof
of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG, has adopted a
cash-flow-oriented and transaction-driven business
model. This means that each individual transaction
is considered and decided on its own merits. Prior-
ity is put on profitability and risk management.

We haveidemonstrated our commitment to
the international real estate finance market by
expanding our presence in international markets.
In December, for example, Hypo Real Estate Bank
International purchased the HVB Group’s US real
estate finance portfolio. Other measures included
the establishment of branches in several European
countries.

The melting down of Hypo Real Estate
Bank AG’s risk-¢arrying German portfolio and the
resulting reduction of our risk weighted assets has
enabled us to make good progress towards our
stated objective of restructuring our German real
estate finance business. In October, Hypo Real
Estate Bank AG sold its Dutch subsidiary FGH Bank,
which is specialised in low-volume commercial
and housing finance. In November the merger with
Westfilische Hypothekenbank AG took place and
marked an important milestone in the restructuring
programme. In December two portfolio sales (“true
sales”) were concluded totalling around € 1.1 bil-
lion.

December 31, 2003 marked the successful
conclusion of our first year as an independent
group. As the Hypo Real Estate Group did not exist

in its present form on December 31, 2002, it is only
possible to make limited comparisons with the pre-
ceding year’s figures. We have therefore refrained
from comparing the Income Statement with figures
from the preceding year. The balance sheet positions
are compared with the figures from the opening
balance sheet as at January 1, 2003.

Income Statement The Hypo Real Estate
Group can look back on a successful year 2003 in
which developments exceeded our forecast.

For fiscal 2003, our operating income totalled
€ 738 million. The fourth quarter saw an increase
in commission income in particular.

Net interest income amounted to € 674 mil-
lion. Here, the net interest income for our operating
unit Hypo Real Estate Germany was burdened in
particular by unrealized interest on poorly perform-
ing loans amounting to € 102 million. By contrast,
FGH Bank’s dividend of around € 33 million for
fiscal 2002 made a favourable contribution to the
net interest income.

Provisions for losses on loans and advances
amounting to € 252 million were shown as a net
amount after being setted HVB AG’s risk shelter of
€ 460 million in favour of Hypao Real Estate Bank AG.
The operating unit Hypo Real Estate International
did not apply any specific write-downs of loans
and advances in 2003. As a precautionary measure,
we have, however, formed a general provision in
the amount of € 37 million. Wiirttembergische
Hypothekenbank AG added an amount of € 25 mil-
lion to provisions for losses on loans and advancss.
The net interest income after provisions for losses
on loans and advances therefore totals € 422 mil-
lion.



The net commission income of € 45 million
reflects in particular the commission income for the
operating unit Hypo Real Estate International which
amounted to € 55 million. It also includes commis-
sion expenses in connection with securitisation.

The balance of the other operating income/
expenses in the fiscal year was positive at € 19 mil-
lion; this position mainly includes income from
the sale of properties which are no longer required
for operating purposes.

The general administrative expenses of
€ 260 million comprise personnel expenses of
€ 134 million, other general administrative expenses
of € 107 million and amortisation and depreciation
of € 19 million. The expansion of our international
presence led to a rise in general administrative
expenses over the last few months of the year for
the operating unit Hypo Real Estate International in
particular, whereas costs incurred by the operating
unit Hypo Real Estate Germany developed in line
with the restructuring plan.

The operating result for the reporting period
under amounted to € 226 million.

The balance of other income/expenses of
€ —69 million was predominantly influenced by the
restructuring expenses of € 86 million incurred by
the operating unit Hypo Real Estate Germany; these
expenses included additions to restructuring provi-
sions in an amount of € 33 million and current
restructuring expenses of € 53 million. These com-
prised personnel expenses of € 29 million, special
IT write-downs of € 34 million and other general
administrative expenses of € 23 million. On the
other hand, a positive effect resulted from the nega-
tive goodwill of € 35 million, which had to be
released in the income statement.
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The result before taxes amounted to € 156 mil-
lion. The effective tax burden was reduced by using
part of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG’s corporation-
tax and trade-tax loss carryforwards out of the
spin-off. To achieve this, a profit and loss pooling
agreement was concluded between DIA Vermdgens-
verwaltungs-GmbH, which has now been merged
into Hypo Real Estate Holding AG, and Wiirttember-
gische Hypothekenbank AG.

After taxes on income of € 40 million, the
Hypo Real Estate Group’s net consolidated income
after minority interests (€ 1 million) amounted to
€ 115 million in fiscal 2003; this represents a return
on equity of 2.8 %.

The Group’s parent company, Hypo Real
Estate Holding AG generated most of its income from
the profit and loss pooling agreement with Wiirt-
tembergische Hypothekenbank AG. On the expense
side, the parent company incurred general adminis-
trative expenses and interest expenses relating to
the participatory capital.

.Balance Sheet As at December 31, 2003, the
Hypo Real Estate Group’s total assets amounted to
€ 152.9 billion. This represents a 10.0 % reduction
on the total assets as at January 1, 2003. We suc-
ceeded in reducing the portfolio to an even greater
degree than planned. The decrease is predomi-
nantly attributable to the € 12.8 billion reduction
in lending volume by the operating unit Hypo
Real Estate Germany, of which an amount of
€ 4.8 billion related to real estate finance and
€ 8.0 billion to municipal loans. By contrast, due
to the purchase of the portfolios from HVB Group
and to the acquisition of new business, the loan
portfolio of the operating unit Hypo Real Estate
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International increased by € 13.6 billion to € 17.8
billion.

QOur investments fell by 9.3 % to € 36.5 bil-
lion. They comprise held-to-maturity investments
(fixed-income securities that are intended to be
held until theyimature) of € 16.4 billion, available-
for-sale investments (investments that are available
for sale) of € 20.1 billion and investment properties.

‘Refinancing was largely achieved through the
issue of public:sector bonds (€ 67.8 billion) and
mortgage bonds (€ 31.9 billion). Securitisation
totalled € 110.2 billion. Deposits from other banks
rose to € 19.4 billion (+2.8 %) while amounts owed
to other depositors rose to € 7.8 billion (+16.6 %).

The balance-sheet shareholders equity fell
due to changes'in the valuation of financial instru-
ments reflecting the development of the available-
for-sale reserverand the cash flow hedge reserve.

In particular, the available-for-sale reserve show
the differences between the carrying amount and
the fair values of our securities portfolios. Our
available-for-sale financial instruments did not
show any loss of value affecting net income or loss.
The cash flow hedge reserve shows changes in the
fair value of the hedging derivatives of efficient
cash flow hedges. The changes in value for these
derivatives will be compensated by positive effects
under hedging relationships that cannot yet be
recorded in theibalance sheet; on its own, therefore,
the cash flow hedge reserve cannot be considered

a reliable economic indicator. As the negative
changes in the value of derivatives are offset by hid-
den reserves inithe balance sheet, this in particular
does not have any detrimental impact on the share-
holders’ equity. The available-for-sale reserves and
the cash flow hedge reserves are therefore not taken
into consideration when calculating the return on

equity. Excluding the revaluation reserves, the
shareholders’ equity rose by 2.6 % to € 4.2 billion.

As at December 31, 2003, our own funds {core
capital, Tier I capital and Tier III capital) amounted
to € 6.2 billion. These funds include core capital
based on approved financial statements in an
amount of € 4.1 billion and Tier II capital of € 2.1
billion. We did not hold any Tier III capital on the
reporting date.

Our core capital ratio according to BIS was
7.6 % as at December 31, 2003; the BIS total capital
ratio was 11.5 %.

Securitisation and the passing-on of credit
risks to the investment market reduced our risk
weighted assets by € 7.1 billion. Overall, the Hypo
Real Estate Group’s risk weighted assets amounted
to € 54.0 billion. Our market risk positions amounted
to € 8.0 million.

Events after December 31,2003 During the
first weeks of the current fiscal year we made fur-
ther progress in implementing our business model.
For exampls, at the beginning of February, Hypo
Real Estate Bank AG concluded an agreement to out-
source the administration and management (“serv-
icing”) of a portfolio of retail mortgage loans port-
folio amounting to around € 5.8 billion. Under the
agreement the transfer of the servicing will take
place at the beginning of December 2004. The port-
folio will continue to be shown on Hypo Real Estate
Bank AG’s books.

At the beginning of February we extended our
activities within Hypo Real Estate Bank International
puc with a “Capital Markets” division comprising
the sub-divisions “Rates” and “Credit Marksts”.

In future, we will therefore be able to offer a broad
range of structured investment market solutions.



Moreover, in February, Hypo Real Estate Bank
International puc issued its first bonds. The volume
amounts to € 450 million. The bonds were issued
under the new Medium-Term Note Programme-
(MTN Programme) that allows Hypo Real Estate Bank
International puc to issue debt securities worth up
to € 10 billion. To ensure fulfilment of the obliga-
tions arising under the MTN Programme, Hypo Real
Estate Holding AG has issued a guarantee for the
full amount in favour of Hypo Real Estate Bank
International puc.

Outlook The forecasts relating to the future
development of the Hypo Real Estate Group are
based on estimates made using the information
that is available to us at the present time. Actual
results may differ from current forecast results if
the assumptions on which the forecasts are based
do not materialise or if the risks outlined in the
Risk Report do not arise to the extent anticipated.

In 2004 we aim to underscore our commit-
ment to international commercial real estate finance
business. We intend to further expand the foreign
portiolio held by our operating unit Hypo Real
Estate International while paring down the portfolio
held by the operating unit Hypo Real Estate Germany.
For new business, we will continue to apply our
cash-flow-oriented and transaction-driven business
model. We will press forward with our activities
in the “Capital Markets” division, which will open
up extensive opportunities for us to enhance the
product range and the value-added chain of the Hypo
Real Estate Group.

We expect that this will impact favourably
on our business performance. We aim to achieve a
Group return on equity after taxes of 3.5 to 4 % by
the end of 2004. At the international level, we will
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benefit from the portfolio increase, improved mar-

gins and our enhanced product offering. The net
interest income for the operating unit Hypo Real
Estate Germany will continue to decline as a result
of the paring down of the portfolic and of unrealized
interest on problem loans. However, taking into
account HVB AG’s risk shelter of € 130 million, we
are aiming to produce a balanced result for the oper-
ating unit Hypo Real Estate Germany in 2004.

In 2004, Hypo Real Estate Holding AG will
again earn most of its income from the profit and
loss pooling agreement with Wiirttembergische
Hypothekenbank AG. As things currently stand, no
dividend payments by the other subsidiaries are
planned. Nevertheless, we expect to record a posi-
tive result.
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Risk Report

introduction By forming Real Estate Holding
AG and establishing the participating interests in the
banks it was possible to create within a very short
space of time a lean, closely interwoven Group
structure which is competitive, Existing tried and
tested organisational and process-related structures
at the individual banks were supplemented with
Group functions within the holding company to
ensure that in terms of concept, risk management
and risk contradl tasks can be uniformly and system-
atically implemented across the Group.

Risk management Risk management within
the Hypo Real Estate Group is aimed at achieving a
reasonable return on risks while at the same time
applying risk-policy-oriented guidelines and instru-
ments to limit these risks in such a way as to ensure
that no unexpected charges impair the stability of
the Group. Risk management within the Hypo Real
Estate Group therefore always stands for careful and
responsible hafgdling of risk.

Appointing members of the holding com-
pany’s Executive Board to the supervisory boards of
the individual banks ensures a uniform risk policy
across the Group. For example, all loan commit-
ments planned by the banks that exceed a certain
level must be presented in a synopsis to the loan
committees of the respective supervisory boards in
order, among other things, to limit concentrations of
risks within the Group.

Responsibility for operational risk manage-
ment lies with the individual banks within the

_Group. To ensure the necessary harmonisation pre-
scribed by law and an appropriate operational coor-
dination of riskimanagement, the holding company

has established several committess at Executive
Board level:

| the Group Asset and Liability Committee for mar-
ket and liquidity risks,

| the Loan Portfolio Committee for all credit risks
and

| an Operational Risk Committee for operational
risks.

These committees comprise members from
all Group units and meet on a regular basis to set
framework conditions for risk policy within the
Group; they allocate risk limits and decide on meth-
ods for measuring risks as well as discussing and
issuing recommendations on current positioning.

At Group level, risk management aims to
increase the value of the capital used. To generate
goodwill, the return on the capital used must exceed
the costs of capital. Risk premiums are the most
important determinants of capital costs; these pre-
miums can vary for each stake due to differences in
risk bias. This also justifies differing earnings expec-
tations among the banks, as German banks in partic-
ular are still experiencing charges due to the fact
that their existing portfolios offer insufficient
returns. Within the Group, therefore, capital is con-
sistently and regularly reallocated to the unit whose
returns from new business are already exceeding
capital costs. Regular plans with respect to perform-
ance and balance sheet structure and also risk struc-
ture have to be drawn up in implementation of the
risk policy. In addition to the need to comply with
legal obligations, activities such as measuring risk
and setting risk premiums and/or analysing the risk
structures of portfolios are also vitally important
from an operational point of view.



Throughout the Hypo Real Estate Group, a
uniform distinction is made between credit risk,
market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk and
strategic risk. Processes, responsibilities and report-
ing lines for managing these risks are specified in
‘the respective organisational manuals of the indi-
vidual banks and are binding on all employees.

Credit risks Credit risks include the loan
default risk, counterparty risk, issuer risk and coun-
try risk; they refer to the potential loss that could
result from the default or deterioration in credit
ratings of loan customers, of issuers of promissory
notes and debt securities, or of counterparties in
money-market, securities and derivatives trans-
actions.

In addition to the credit rating risk, the credit
risk for real estate finance business also includes
the risk arising from a possible loss in the value of
collateral due to factors relating to the buildings
themselves or to the real estate market. A secondary
risk that losses in rental income on the part of the
borrower may jeopardise our commercial real estate
finance transactions in terms of the ability to cover
capital repayments may present itself in the form of
either a credit rating risk or a collateral risk. The
resulting risks are limited by ensuring conservative
lending maturities, rentals sufficient to cover
capital repayments, project-oriented redemption
rates and an appropriate use of equity capital on
the part of the borrower. The Hypo Real Estate
Group’s lending policy is based on the following
core principles:
| Careful, reliable credit analyses for each individ-
ual transaction
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| Determining the ability to cover the debt service

for forecasted cash flows as well as calculating the
current and sustainable value of collateral

| Use of rating procedures to determine the likeli-
hood of default on the part of borrowers and the use
of early warning systems

| Regular, active monitoring of the real estate
markets and adjustment of lending policy where
necessary

| Avoidance of concentration risks and systematic
diversification of the loan portfolio through active
loan portfolio management

| Resaleability/syndicability of loans

The Risk Control units constantly monitor the
quality of the evaluation methods employed and are
currently adapting them to ensure uniformity across
the Group that complies with future requirements
under Basel II.

Through appropriate organisational measures
and the functional separation of credit processes
into market and back-office, the Hypo Real Estate
Group already meets the German Minimum Require-
ments for Credit business for credit institutions
{(M&K). The credit risk process specifies that each
external loan commitment may only be entered into
after a clearly defined internal approval process has
been carried out. Borrower units pursuant to
section 19 (2] of the German Banking Act [{Kreditwe-
sengesetz, KWG] are taken into account both when
carrying out a credit analysis and during the credit
authorisation process. The credit risk process also
ensures compliance with principles or sub-port-
folio limits laid down for specific property types
or regions that have been adopted as part of risk
strategy. The evaluation of risk and return and hence

el
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of risk-oriented margins to ensure appropriate
returns on equity capital provides the basis for de-
cisions, as regards both awarding new loans and
extending existing loan commitments. In addition
to traditional lending business the Hypo Real Estate
Group is also actively engaged in the purchase, struc-
turing and further placement of mortgage-backed
securities.

The Hypo Real Estate Group’s public-sector
finance business focuses on central and regional
governments, selected regional and local public
authorities and other public-sector institutions with
excellent credit ratings. In line with its strategic ori-
entation, the Group plans to reduce its public-sector
finance portfolio over the coming years.

The couhterparty risk refers to potential
losses in connection with interest- and foreign-cur-
rency-related derivatives and forward transactions.
These transactions are predominantly used to hedge
positions as part of the asset/liability management.
Throughout the Group, the counterparty risk is
measured using a value-at-risk approach based on
the market-to-market method and a distinction is
made between pre-settlement and settlement risks.
An issuer risk arises from the portfolio of securities
and promissory notes. The credit risks involved in
derivatives, securities and money market transac-
tions derives from financial institutions, central
banks and supranational organisations those also
having above-average credit ratings. Credit analyses
are based on a combination of external information
sources and internal research. Limit setting as an
indication of maximum willingness to incur risks
vis-a-vis such counterparties and issuers is closely
linked to their financial ratios.

The term country risk refers to the possibility
of transfer' and conversion problems with contract-
ing parties located in other countries. The location
of buildings used as collateral is also an important
factor. This risk may occur in addition to an existing
loan default or counterparty risk. We use country
ratings issued by the international rating agencies to
evaluate and limit country risk. Country limits are
continuously monitored and managed by credit risk
management.

Loan portfolio management is an important
part of credit risk management. It aims to ensure
appropriate portfolio measures in line with the
Group’s business strategy and risk capacity that will
reduce the level and volatility of credit risk costs
and lead to successful diversification within the
Group in terms of risk/return ratios. To help achieve
this objective we use the following instruments:
| Continuous portfolio and real estate market
analyses
| Limiting sub-portfolios in terms of property
types, regions, customer groups, rating classes or
maturities
| Systematic increases or reductions in sub-portfo-
lios as part of risk strategy, achieved by appropriate
new business or adjusting terms to a reasonable risk-
return-ratio
| A transfer of risks through the sale of sub-portfo-
lios, securitisation and syndication

Currently, the Hypo Real Estate Group’s loan
portfolio still exhibits insufficient regional diversifi-
cation. To achieve a further, successive improve-
ment in diversification in an environment charac-
terised by changing real estate markets the holding
company’s loan portfolio committee regularly speci-



fies an appropriate target portfolio structure. Suc-
cess in meeting this target portfolio structure is
monitored through the regular portfolio analyses
issued by Risk Contral.

Setting risk-oriented margins is critical when
securing new business and adjusting terms. The
price calculation, which is based on the customer
rating, the value of collateral and the particular cir-
cumstances of the finance transaction, includes an
insurance premium for expected and unexpected
losses.,

As part of the spin-off from HVB AG, the credit
risks attached to the German portfolio have been
repeatedly and meticulously analysed and evalu-
ated. HVB AG has granted a risk shelter in this con-
nection which, even based on current estimates, is
deemed sufficient to compensate for expected losses
incurred by Hypo Real Estate Bank Deutschland AG
in 2004 as a result of necessary valuation adjust-
ments. No additional obvious risks are currently
evident.

ENTIRE PORTFOLIO AND PORTFOLIO BY COUNTRIES

Public-sector finance 54 %

Real estate business
international 17%

Real estate business
Germany 29%

100 % = €132.5bn
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Market risks Market risks are defined as the
potential loss of value that could result from
changes in the prices quoted in the financial mar-
kets. When calculating this risk, all the banks within
the Hypo Real Estate Group take into account their
entire loans and debt security issues, securities held
as investments and liquidity instruments, as well as
all derivative positions. Assumptions regarding the
investment of equity funds, valuation adjustments
and the effects of unscheduled redemptions are also
considered. The resulting market risks largely con-
sist in interest rate risks. As all banks within the
Group hedge against currency risks as far as possi-
ble, such risks are of minor importance. No risks
from positions in equities or commodities or other
price risks are taken.

For the purposes of quantifying market risks
in day-to-day operations, the banks in the Hypo Real
Estate Group employ a uniform value-at-risk
approach. This is geared to the German Minimum
Requirements for the Trading Activities of Credit

Germany 62%
Great Britain13%
Scandinavia 2%
The Netherlands 5%
France 7%
US 6%
Spain1%
ftaly1%
Other3%

100% = €63.6 bn
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Institutions (MaH) and calculates with a probability
0f 99 % the maximum potential loss that could
result from a given position during an assumed
holding period of ten days. The observation period
is 250 days and all observations are equally
weighted. This method considers the possible
occurrence of either a-parallel shift or a turn in the
interest curves of the different currencies. Due to the
nature of the Group’s investment strategy, any risks
resulting from changes in credit rating spreads are
negligible in amount. Value at risk is ascertained on
a daily basis by the local risk control units of the
banks; it is then aggregated by the holding company
to produce a market risk overview at Group level
which is reported to senior management.

Within each bank, market risks are managed
by a committee on the basis of the market risk posi-
tion calculated on a daily basis by the Risk Control
unit; this committee meets at regular intervals and
holds detailedldiscussions on future trends in finan-
cial markets and in market parameters. The commit-
tees manage the asset/liability positions in accor-
dance with the risk limits set by the holding
company and set standards for daily positioning in
Treasury operations. In addition, the Group

~ Asset/Liability Committee uses the market analyses

as a basis for issuing trend statements for additional
positioning within the Group. Again, the individual
banks are responsible for implementation, within
the framework of their risk limits.

When measuring risks, the 10 % escalation
threshold for the ratio of market risk to liable equity
(for a parallel shift of the yield curve of 100 basis
points) prescribed by the Federal Financial Supervi-
sory Authority (BaFin) for domestic mortgage banks

is also taken into account. This regulatory ratio was
well below 10 % during the entire year.

Market risks were also regularly monitored
and audited on several occasions - with no serious
objections by the banking supervisory authorities —
within the predecessor group prior to the establish-
ment of the Hypo Real Estate Group. The proven
Treasury environment structures of the German
mortgage banks were retained and most of the for-
eign portfolio positions were synthetically trans-
ferred without any refinancing risk from HVB to
Hypo Real Estate International. Trading books still
do not exist.

Liquidity risks The foremost goal of our lig-
uidity management programme is to ensure the abil-
ity of all banks within the Hypo Real Estate Group to
fulfil their payment obligations at all times. For this
purpose it has been decided that the incoming and
outgoing payment flows and possible measures to
secure liquidity (“the liquidity position”) antici-
pated at any given time for the following 5 days
must at least balance each other. The liquidity posi-
tion is determined independently each day, taking
into account precautionary discounts (“haircuts”),
and is monitored and reported on by the independ-
ent Risk Control unit.

To ensure that short-term refinancing needs
are also identified well ahead of time, we produce a
90-day extended liquidity forecast that serves as a
basis for proactive liquidity management. To man-
age structural, long-term liquidity, the banks in the
Group use a special capital schedule broken down
by product group. This permits detailed manage-
ment on the basis of market segments. Taking



planned new transactions into account, this infor-
mation is used to produce and agree an annual
funding schedule, compliance with which is
regularly monitored. In implementing these
extensive measures the Hypo Real Estate Group
adhered closely to the Basel liquidity management
standards.

In the area of short-term funding, all banks in
the Group have adequate access to the money mar-
ket. In addition, the banks maintain extensive lig-
uidity reserves that can be used for monetary opera-
tions within the European Central Bank System or
placed on the repo market. The excellent liquidity
position is also demonstrated by the relevant Princi-
ple Il ratios, which for the German banks within the
Group were over 2.0 in December 2003 — well above
the minimum prescribed value of 1.0.

The most important refinancing instruments
for medium and long-term refinancing are jumbo
bond issues, which are endowed with exceptional
credit ratings and liquidity. The implementation of
commercial paper and debt issuance programmes
has enabled the banks to respond even more quickly
and flexibly to market trends.

The Hypo Real Estate Group has set itself
ambitious targets for growth, particularly in foreign
markets. Procuring the necessary congruent refi-
nancing funds presents a special challenge as the
Group is still establishing itself on the international
investment markets. We employ securitisation
measures to reduce the need to procure capital and,
by syndicating some portions that are eligible as
cover stock to the mortgage banks within the Group,
we optimise funding opportunities in terms of the
cost of borrowed funds.

Any liquidity risks during the Hypo Real
Estate Group’s period of initial formation were
averted by the granting of a liquidity line from
HVB AG, the bank effecting the spin-off. However,
only a proportion of these funds was required as the
refinancing terms for the German banks improved
significantly, enabling the placement of large-vol-
ume issues. The paring down of the German portfo-
lio was another favourable contributory factor, as
this released liquidity.

Operational risks Operational risks are
defined as the risk of unexpected losses due to
defective internal processes, human error, techno-
logical failure or external events. In its content, the
definition used within the Hypo Real Estate Group
corresponds to the formula used by the BIS for the
reform of equity capital guidelines.

Responsibility for identifying and handling
operational risks those are specific to individual
banks and/or divisions lies with the risk control
units in the individual banks. To ensure that these
risks are in future also controlled uniformly across
the Group, an Operational Risk Committee will
meet regularly within the holding company from
2004; this committee will set further standards
and guidelines and coordinate activities between
the banks.

Part of the process of forming the Hypo Real
Estate Group involved carrying out a group-wide
risk inventory at the end of 2003 using structured
and standardised questionnaires; in particular, this
risk inventory was also designed to identify and
evaluate operational risks that are otherwise diffi-
cult to measure in quantitative terms. The purpose
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of this form of self-assessment, which will be car-
ried out on a regular basis in future, is to identify
and swiftly implement measures to limit or avoid
risks. For the|purposes of implementing the require-
ments of Basel II (which still have to be definitively
defined) as well, we therefore aim to develop
an integrated |Group-wide control system of risk
identificationjand evaluation, risk management and
monitoring. '

Despite the extensive restructuring measures,
no major operational risks such as IT failures or
major losses due to processing errars arose during

the year under review. Tn spite of numerous changes

in law and legal practice as well as the new struc-
tures, the bank’s legal risks were professionally
managed. Chahges in law and legal practice have
been and will in future be complied with as neces-
sary without delay.

Strategic risks Strategic risks refer to the risk
that fundamental decisions relating to business pol-
icy may jeopardise the long-term success of the
Hypo Real Estate Group. The Group’s strategic ori-
entation is regularly reviewed at Executive Board
level on the basis of intensive market monitoring.
This allows risks to be limited and any undesirable
developments to be countered at an early stage. We
carry out regular performance-to-budget compar-
isons to control how successful we have been in
implementing our business strategy at the opera-
tional level.

Summary Credit risks currently play a domi-
nant role within the Hypo Real Estate Group. How-
ever, as we are increasingly supplementing tradi-
tional mortgage bank business with real estate
investment banking and planning a considerable
increase in Hypo Real Estate International’s busi-
ness, in terms of international competition it will
become increasingly important for us also to ensure
that we can always obtain liquidity on the markets
at acceptable prices. In future, therefore, liquidity
and market risks will play an increasingly signifi-
cant role. With regard to operational risks, a further
challenge will consist in facilitating our planned
growth through the use of appropriate know-how,
systems and processes.

The Hypo Real Estate Group already employs
a modern system of risk management that enables
risks to be efficiently managed even in the event of
deterioration in market conditions. Under the new
Basel 11 Agreement, we will attempt to pursue the
Advanced Approach based on internal rating proce-
dures. The adjustments necessary to enable this are
progressing according to plan. We are optimistic
that these efforts in particular will also help us to
further strengthen our compstitiveness and generate
long-term value for our shareholders.

Consequently, the fundamental risk to which
Hypo Real Estate Holding AG is exposed is the par-
ticipation risk. This risk is managed by means of the
Group control system described above.
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Income’Statement

for the period from January 1, 2003 to December 31,2003

" INCOME/EXPENSES e T R

i in€mitions :

‘ \‘ Notresr 7 rw

! Interest income 25
Interest exper{se 25

| Net interestir;coine 25 674

Provisionsfori-osses on loans and advances 26 ;_hr?sg
Net interest income after provisions for losses on Ioans‘and'éav'ances‘ S o i 422

| Commissionin’fcome o . r "o ;
Commission e%(pense F—;Z‘E
Net commissidn income ' 27 r_—_:;_s

| Generaladminﬁistrative expehsés ' 28 260 ;
Balance of other operating incorne and expenses 29 19
Operating rest;lt o i o E:

) Net income fro}wwinvestments N 3

| Balance ofothérincbme and expenses 32 B

I Result of ordinéry activities/result before taxes - 156

{ Taxes onincomfé . - ) "33 T 40‘

E Net income ' o R o 16

| Minority interests )

u Consolidated nét income T g

| EARNINGS PER SHARE T

‘ in€ |

o A ~ Notes | 2003 .

E Earnings per share (excl. amortisation ofgoodwill) ' o 0.86

: Earningspersh:;re - T 34 F—zghgg

[ e e p——— T

|




Balance Sheet
as at December 31,2003

Results
Income Staterment
Balance Sheet

| ASSETS T T
| in € miltions J
['waw“—wm N 31.12.2003 1.'1'.“260‘3 o thhﬂar}géwm_.j
{: in € millions in% r
| Cash reserve LI 489 | 79 +410 >+1000 |
§ Placements wnth loans and advances to other banks 6,37 L 24,9811 31,655 -6,674 =2
i;’ Loans and advances to customers 6,38 85,505 J 7 990,514 -5,009 -5.5 j
E Aliowances for Iosses on loans and advances 739 -1,896 -1,475 —421 ~28% (
f Investments 8,41 1 3647 | 40,214 -3,743 -9.3 g
E Property, plant and equtpment 9,42 29 133 -104 ~78.2 i
Intang;ble assets 10,43 54 - 41 ~7‘5.9 i
; Other assets 44 [: 5‘029 5,951 -922 -155 |
?x Tax assets o 15,45 2,256 2,775 -519 -18.7
g Total assets 152,871_3 169,900 ~17,023 -10.0 |
I B—— A — - — =
|
|
‘ ) 7L|A'B%IvI..I:I:iE"§“ o o T T T
‘ in € millions %
fﬁwﬁ# T 'MwwNotesMM— 3i ;5365}.‘ Y 2003ﬁ~ Vﬂ”fhanéeﬁw }
in€ millions in% |
Deposits from other banks B ", 49 19,351 18,830 +521 +2.8 1
Amounts owed to other depositors 17,50 [ 7,844 6,725 +1.19 +16.6 !
‘Promissory notes and other liabilities evidenced i :
by securities 1,51 110,153 127,539 -17.386 -13.6 }
[ Provisions 12,52 210 158 +52 +32.9 !
Other liabilities 13,53 8,786'“J 9,605 -819 -85 :
Tax liabilities 15,54 1,273 1,944 -67 -34.5 !
| Subordinated cap:tal 55 P ) 2,4@ 1,979 +497 +25.0
Mmontymterests 56 14 126 -112 -88.9 J
| Shareholders’equity 57 B i,_779 2,994 -224 ~75 g
i Subscribed capital 7 402] 402 - - 1
| Additional paid-in capital 3310 3,310 - - i
§ - s en i _ _ |
f 7 Retained earmngs m,}é_g 368 10 2.7 |
! Changesm valuation of financial instruments ~1,415 -1,086 -329 -303 !
| Revaluation reserve 5 . H'ASJ 80 -32 -40.0 i
! Measurement of cash fiow hedges 5,64 L ~1463 | -1,166 -297 -255 |
| Consolidated net income [ s - +115 >+100.0 |
[ Total liabilities 15:,87741 169,900 -17,023 -10.0 }
]
§

8
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Statement of changes in sharehOIders5 equity

g in € millions ;
LT substribed M'"Additiéna—imm"ﬁet»éi‘neduW'Alm_-'éha‘hgéin valuation  Consoli-  Share- |
capital paid-in earnings  of financial instruments  dated net holder’s .
capital Revaluation  Cash flow income equity \
reserve? hedge |
: reserve? |
| Shareholders’reiquity at1.1.2003 o ’ 402 - 3,3)0 368 80 -1,166 - 2,994
i Change invalue of financial in- |
| struments notlaffecting income - - - -19 ~125 - —144
Change resulting from net income - - - - - 115 115 J
i Changes in group of consolidated
companies - - -5 -13 =172 - -190
Reserve arising from currency and
{
| other changes’ - - -5 - N - oS
i Shareholders’ ehuity at 31.12.2003 402 3,310 358 48 -1,463 1ns 2,770
i
§ “1)cfalso the comments inNotes. e M

Changes in minority interests are shown in Note 56.
Evaluation of cash flow hedge reserve is shown in Note 64.




Cash Flow Statement

1
{
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Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity |
Cash Flow Statement }

in € millions

Net income

Write—éﬂov&ns—brbvsiéns for losses on, and write-ups of,

loans and advances and additions to loan-loss provisions
Write-downs and depreclatlon less write-ups of long term assets
Change in other non-cash-positions

Result from the sale ofmvestments property, plant and equupment
Other adJustments

Subtotal 7

t Change in assets and liabilities from operating-activities after correction
} for non-cash components

| Increase in assets/decrease in liabilities (-)

De_crease in assets/increase in liabilities (+)

Placements with, and loans and advances to other banks
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets from operating aCtIVltIES

Deposits from other banks

Amounts owed to other deposutors

Promlssory notes and other ||ab|llt|es evidenced by securities
Other llab|lrt|es from operating activities

Interest received

Intefest} paid

Commission received

Commission paid

Dividends received

Taxes on income paid

Cash flow from oﬁérating activities

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipmentA » _

! Paymeﬁts for the acquisition of propérfy, pIaAnt and equipment
| Proceeds from the sale of investments

Cash flow from investing activities .

Proceeds %rom  capital increases 7
Subordmated capital, net
Otherfmancmg activities, net
Cash flow from financing activities

t

0
{
{
1
i
{
i

§
H
H

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the prev;ous period L ~_ﬁZQ
+/ -Net cash provided Jused by operatmg activities ] “{;2:7—5-
+/-Net gza_sh provided/used by investing activities L ] 3}§§
[ +/-Net cash provided/used by financing activities 337
+/—-Effects ofexchangve' rate changes on cash and cash équivalents W*T«_;E ‘
; Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period ' 489
| |

Information on the items in the cash flow statement is contained in Note 62.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Exempting Consolidated Financial Statements
in accordance with iFrs

As an international company we prepare our ac-
counts in accordance with the requirements of the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Our shareholders and all other interested
parties are therefore provided with areliable, inter-
nationally comparable basis for evaluating the Hypo
Real Estate Group and its net assets, financial posi-
tion and results of operations.

The consolidated financial statements for 2003
have been prepared by us in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as exempting consolidated financial statements pur-
suant to section 292 a of the German Commercial
Code [HGB]. The IFRS consist of the existing Inter-
national Accounting Standards (1AS) and Interpreta-
tions of the Standing Interpretations Committee
(81C) as well as all standards and interpretations that
may be issued by the IASB in the future. The finan-
cial statements provide information of the same
kind as would be given in statements drawn up in
accordance with the HGB.

The declaration on the Corporate Governance
Code that Hypo Real Estate Holding AG is required
to issue under section 161 of the Stock Corporation
Act [AktG] has been published on the Internet. Our
listed subsidiary Wiirttembergische Hypotheken-
bank AG has also published a declaration of com-
pliance on its Internet website.

In addition to meeting the requirements of
section 315 paras. 1 and 2 of the German Commer-
cial Code [HGB], the Group Management Report
also complies with the requirements for financial

reviews pursuant to IAS 1. The Group Management

Report also contains the risk report pursuant to
section 315 para. 1 of the German Commercial
Code [HGB].

The exemption permitted under section 292a
German Commercial Code requires the main dif-
ferences between IFRS accounting and consoclidation
policies and the German accounting legislation to
be mentioned. These differences are as follows:

PROHIBITION TO CREATE RESERVES IN
A WAY THAT REDUCES INCOME In contrast to
sections 340 f and 340 g of the German Commercial
Code [HGB], IAS 30.44 does not allow the formation
of reserves for general banking risks to be deducted
from income.

Exempting Consolidated Financial Statements

DISCLOSURE AT FAIR VALUE Whereas sec-
tion 340 c para. 1 in conjunction with section 252
para. 1 No. 4 of the German Commercial Code [HGB]
does not allow the disclosure of unrealised gains,
IAS 39.69 provides in principle for the valuation of
financial instruments at fair value on the reparting
date. In contrast to German accounting principles,
this means that depending on classification, the
reserves relating to these financial instruments are
either declared as affecting income or shown under
shareholders’ equity as not affecting income.

FAIR-VALUE HEDGE With a fair-value hedge,
an existing asset or existing liability (or parts there-
of) is secured against changes in fair value that result
from a certain risk and that will affect net profit or
loss.

According to the general accounting princi-
ples set forth of adequate and orderly accounting
contained in the German Commercial Code [HGBI,
only the hedged item has to be disclosed. The netted
gains or losses from the hedged item and hedging
derivative are shown as affecting net profit or loss in
accordance with the imparity principle — in other
words unrealised gains are not taken to the income
statement. In contrast, fair-value hedge accounting
pursuant to IAS 39 requires that changes in value
relating to the hedging instruments that is to be
stated with its fair value to be taken to the income
statement. The value of the underlying hedged item
is adjusted by changes in fair value, and these changes
in fair value are taken to the income statement.

CASH FLOW HEDGE A cash flow hedge
serves to secure against the risk of volatility in cash
flows relating to a recognised asset, a recognised
liability or an anticipated trangaction that will affect
the net profit or loss.

According to the principles of adequate and
orderly accounting contained in the German Com-
mercial Code [HGB], neither the hedged items nor the
derivatives used to hedge against changes in interest
rates are valued in terms of the hedged risk. The
German Commercial Code [HGB] does not contain
any special provisions regarding the disclosure of
the hedging of forecasted transactions in the balance
sheet. By contrast, in the case of cash flow hedge
accounting pursuant to IAS 39, the hedging item is
shown at fair value. Changes in fair value must be
divided into an effective portion relating to the hedge,
and an ineffective portion not relating to the hedge
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(see also comments in Note 5). The effective portions
must be shown under shareholders’ equity without
affecting income. The ineffective portions in the
case of hedging derivatives are recognised in net in-
come, and in the case of other financial instruments
are either booked against shareholders’ equity or
against the results, depending on how the hedging
transaction is classified. Depending on category,

the hedged item is shown at amortised cost or - in
the case of available-for-sale assets — at fair value.

CAPITALISATION OF INTERNALLY -
GENERATED INTANGIBLE ASSETS According
to IAS 38, both intangible assets that are acquired
without consideration and internally created
intangible assets may have to be declared under
certain circumstances. By contrast, section 246 para.
1in conjunction with section 248 para. 2 of the
German Commercial Code [HGB] does not permit
the recognition of internally created intangible
fixed assets.

PROHIBITION TO DEDUCT FROM RE-
TAINED EARNINGS THE EXCESS OF COST OVER
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED WHEN CONSOLIDATING
INVESTMENTS Offsetting of the difference be-
tween the higher carrying amounts and the lower
prorated shareholders’ equity of the consolidated
company {goodwill) against the retained éarnings in
accordance with section 309 para. 1 sentence 3 of
the German Commercial Code (HGB} is not possible
pursuant to IAS 22.41 et seq. Goodwill is capitalised
as an intangible asset and, in principle, is subject
to scheduled amortisation over its expected useful
economic life.

PROHIBITION TO TAKE DEPRECIATION
THAT DOES NOT CORRESPOND TO ACTUAL
LOSS OF VALUE Owing to the principle contained
in section 5 para. 1 of the German Income Tax Act
[EstG} that any particular method of treatment for
tax purposes has to be reflected in the commercial
accounts, depreciations under German commercial
law are in some cases determined by fiscal provi-
sions that do not reflect an actual economic impair-
ment in value. Special depreciation allowances and
carrying values permitted under tax law provisions
are not included in IFRS financial statements, since
depreciation and amortisation are to be computed,
independently of tax considerations.

PROVISIONS In principle, the IFRS allows
provisions to be set up only for external obligations.
Exceptions under the IFRS concern provisions relat-
ing to company acquisitions pursuant to IAS 22,31
and restructuring provisions pursuant to IAS 37.72,
which may have to be entered on the liabilities side
under certain circumstances. Under section 249,
however, the German Commercial Code [HGB] con-
tains broader requirements and options regarding
the recognition of provisions for expenses.

ACCRUALS In contrast to the German Com-
mercial Code [HGB], 1AS 37 distinguishes between
provisions and accruals. The uncertainty regarding
the timing or amount of future necessary expendi-
tures is generally lower in the case of accruals than
in the case of provisions.

INCORPORATION OF FUTURE DEVELOP-
MENTS AND PLAN ASSETS WHEN CALCULATING
PENSION OBLIGATIONS In contrast to the more
static method of calculation under German law (tax-
based discout value method pursuant to section6a
para. 3 of the German Income Tax Act [EstG]). 1AS 19
requires, the determinants for pension obligations
to be adjusted constantly adapted to reflect the eco-
nomic and demographic trends. This means, for
example, that future increases in salaries and career
trends are taken into consideration, as is a current
capital market rate for discounting pension abliga-
tions.

RECOGNITION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES According to section 274 and/or
section 306 of the German Commercial Code [HGB],
deferred taxes are only shown for differences
between net income in the financial statements
and net income under tax regulations that are
expected to be equalised in future fiscal years
{timing concept).

By contrast, 1AS 12.15 and 12.24 require that
in principle deferred taxes be recognised for all
temporary differences between the carrying values
in the IFRS balance sheet and the taxable values
{(temporary concept). According to 1AS 12.34, the
obligation to recognise deferred tax assets also
applies to the recognition of sufficiently probable
benefits from the carried forward of tax losses or
other tax credits. ‘




Accounting and Valuation

1 Uniform Group accounting policies The indi-
vidual financial statements of the consolidated
domestic and foreign companies that are incorpo-
rated into the consolidated financial statements of
Hypo Real Estate Holding AG, Munich, are based on
principles of accounting and valuation principles.

2 Consistency Dus to the fact that the spin-off
did not result in a change in assets for HVB share-

‘holders (for their shares in HVB, shareholders also

received shares in Hypo Holding in accordance with
the split ratio), the carrying amounts for assets and
liabilities that had been previously applied by HVB
were continued in the IFRS opening balance sheet as
at January 1, 2003 {the reporting date for the spin-off).
This procedure is in accordance with the financial
approach pursuant to Framework 35, which states
that such a restructuring of assets is to be classified
as a pure shareholders’ equity transaction; the contin-
uation of carrying amounts is therefore appropriate.

We consistently apply the reporting, valua-
tion and recording methods based on the IFRS frame-
work concept and IAS 1, IAS 8 and SIC 18. Ag a gen-
eral rule, where it is deemed appropriate to change
reporting and valuation methods, any resulting
impact is shown in the income statement. If report-
ing and valuation errors from earlier periods need to
be corrected, the resulting effects are in principle
offset against the revenue reserves.

3 Companies included in consolidation The

results of six companies are included in the con-

solidated accounts. This does not include any

special purpose entities that have to be consolidated

pursuant to SIC 12. The following compaunies are

included in the consolidation:

| Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, Munich

| Hypo Real Estate Bank International puc, Dublin

| Hypo Real Estate Capital Ltd., London (subgroup)

with eight companies

| Pfandbrief Bank International S. A., Luxembourg

| WestHyp Immobilien Management GmbH & Co. KG,

Dortmund

| Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG, Stuttgart.
All companies are fully consolidated.

Materiality criteria have been used to determine

which companies are to be included. All fully con-

solidated companies have prepared their annual

Resuits
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financial statements with a reparting date of Decem-
ber 31, 2003. :

The following companies included in the
consolidation were involved in corporate mergers
during fiscal 2003:
| Westfalische Hypothekenbank AG, Dortmund, was
absorbed by Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, Munich
with restrospective effect from January 1, 2003. The
merger was registered in the Commercial Register of
the District Court of Munich (No. HRB 41054] on
November 3, 2003,
| By entry in the Commercial Register of the District
Court of Munich (No. HRB 149393), DIA Vermégens-
verwaltungs-GmbH, Munich, was merged into Hypo
Real Estate Holding AG, Munich, on March 10, 2004.
The closing balance sheet of the transferred entity
as at December 29, 2003 was used as a basis for the
merger.

A total of 37 companies have not been
included in the consolidated financial statements,
either because they are not of material significance
to the Group or because consolidation is prohibited.

The balance sheet impact of contractual rela-
tionships between the Group companies and the
companies that have not been included in the con-
solidation is shown in the consolidated financial
statements. The aggregate net income of subsidiaries
that have not been included in the consolidation
as they are not of material significance to the Group
amounted to 4.6 % of consolidated income; such
companies accounted for around 1.7 % of the con-
solidated assets. Qur shares in these companies are
shown as available-for-sale investments.

LE e

Total number of subsidiaries
Consolidated cfompanies

Non-consolidated companies
Other participating interests

Our list of investment holdings categorises
subsidiaries according to whether or not they are
included in the consolidated financial statements. It
also states other shareholdings. As an integral part
of these financial statements, this list is filed with
the District Court of Munich.
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4 Principles of consolidation In capital consoli-
dation, the purchase price of subsidary is offset
against the Group share in the newly recalculated
shareholders’ equity at the time of acquisition. This
shareholders’ equity results from the difference
between the assets and liabilities of the company
that has been purchased, valued at'prorated fair
values. The difference between the higher purchase
cost and the newly calculated shareholders’ equity
is shown as goodwill in the balance sheet under
intangible assets and is amortised over the esti-
mated useful economic life.

Business relations between the companies
included in the consolidation are offset against each
other. Intermediate results from intragroup trans-
actions are eliminated.

5 " Financialinstruments A financial instrument
is a contract that results in a financial asset for one
enterprise and a simultaneous financial liability or
equity instrument for the other enterprise. According
to 1A8 39, all financial instruments are to be recorded
in the balance sheet, classified in specific categories
and valued on the basis of the following classification:
a Loans and receivables originated by the entity are
financial assets that arise through the direct provi-
sion of money, goods or services to the debtor and
that do not serve a commercial purpose. Originated
by the entity are measured at amortised cost and
capitalised under loans and advances to other banks
and loans and advances to customers.

b Held-to-maturity investments are financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and a fixed
maturity. An enterprise must intend and be able to
hold these financial instruments to maturity. Held-
to-maturity instraments are valued at amortised cost
and are included under investments.

¢ All other financial assets are classified as avail-
able-for-sale securities and receivables. These are
valued at fair value. Changes in value arising from
valuations are shown without affecting net profit or
loss in a separate item under sharsholders’ equity
{available-for-sale reserve) until such time as the
asset is sold or an impairment in value is to be
recorded pursuant to IAS 39.109. The impairment is
reversed, affecting net income, if the fair value of
the available-for-sale financial instrument increases
in objective terms. Available-for-sale portfolios are

not reclassified into any of the categories that are
valued at amortised cost.

In principle, participating interests are valued
at fair value if control, joint management or a signif-
icant influence is exercised but the companies are
not fully consolidated because of materiality con-
siderations. However, this does only apply to those
participating interests for which stock exchange
prices or market prices are available (e.g. listed pub-
lic limited companies or financial holdings that
only hold public limited companies). In general, the
fair value for listed participating interests can be
reliably determined. Unlisted participating interests
for which fair values cannot be determined are val-
ued at amortised cost.

Available-for-sale financial instruments are
mostly included under investments; only a small

- number are shown under loans and advances to

other banks and loans and advances to customers.

In principle, the purchase/sale of financial
instruments is recognised at the trade date.
Premiums and discounts are included in amortised
costs. They do not count as transaction costs; as an
interest componeht, they appear instead in the
interest result for the accounting period in question.
In general, the fair value for financial instruments
can be reliably determined. Unlisted investments
for which fair values cannot be determined are
valued at amortised cost.

According to IAS 39.111, impairments in
value must be taken into consideration for all finan-
cial assets that are valued at amortised cost. Where
subsequent measurement of financial assets is based
on fair value, an impairment test is implicit in the
fair value.

Hedging effects between financial instru-
ments are recognised in accordance with the two
types of hedge described in 1S 39 - fair-value
hedges and cash flow hedges.

Fair-value hedge accounting is applied for
derivatives that are used to hedge the fair value of
assets and liabilities recognised in the balance
sheet. In fair-value hedge accounting the hedging
instrument is valued at its fair value. Changes in
value are recognised in the income statement. The
carrying amounts of the hedged items are adjusted
by the valuation results relating to the hedged risk,
in a way that affects the income statement.




Cash flow hedge accounting is applied for
derivatives used to hedge future cash flows. Cash
flow hedge accounting is applied in the case of
derivatives that are used in the context of asset lia-
bility management to hedge interest rate risk. In
cash flow hedge accounting according to 1AS 39,
future variable interest payments for receivables and
liabilities with variable interest rates are in most
cases converted to fixed payments by means of an
interest swap. In cash flow hedge accounting, hedg-
ing instruments are valued at their fair value. The
valuation result must be divided into an effective
and an ineffective portion. A hedge is regarded to be
effective if, both at the inception and throughout the
life of the hedge, the changes in the cash flow of the
hedged item are almost fully compensated for by a
change in the cash flow of the hedging instrument.
To prove effectiveness, at the end of each quarter or
on the balance-sheet date the future variable interest
cash flows from the variable receivables and liabili-
ties being hedged are shown alongside the variable
interest payments from interest derivatives in
detailed maturity bands. The effectively hedged
portion of the hedging instrument is recognised in a
separate item under shareholders’ equity (cash flow
hedge reserve). The cash flow hedge is reversed and
taken to the income statement in the periods during
which the cash flows of the hedged items effect the

net income for the period. Depending on classifica-

tion of the hedged instrument, the ineffective por-
tion is recognised either in the income statement or
in the balance sheet.

When calculating the figures for profitability
ratios the equity items “available-for-sale reserve”
and “cash flow hedge reserve” that are specific to
IAS 39 are not taken into consideration,

6 Placements with, loans and advances Loans
and advances to other banks and customers are car-
ried at amortised cost provided they are not avail-
able-for-sale loans and advances or hedged items
from a recognised fair-value hedge. Loans and
advances are put on a non-accrual basis when an
inflow can no longer be expected, irrespective of the
legal position.

7 Allowances for losses on loans and advances
Measurement of the risk provisions is in particular

Results
Notes
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determined by expectations as to future loan losses,
the structure and quality of the loan portfolio and
macroeconomic influences.

For all identifiable counterparty risks under
lending operations, specific bad debt charges or
provisions have been formed in the amount of the
expected losses, these being released if the credit
risk no longer applies or utilised if the loan or
advance has been classed as irrecoverable and
written off. ‘

All risk provisions for foreign currency lend-
ings are set up on a matched currency basis and are
therefore not affected by exchange rate fluctuations.

Potential credit risks are taken into account
by forming general loan loss provisions; these are
calculated on the basis of historic loan loss rates,
taking into account the economic environment and
current circumstances. General loan loss provisions
are utilised where loan losses occur for which insuf-
ficient or no specific loan loss provisions have been
formed.

8 Investments Investments include held-to-
maturity and available-for-sale financial instru-
ments as well as land and buildings held as invest-
ments {investment properties).

Held-to-maturity financial instrurents are
valued at amortised cost, with premium and dis-
count amounts being considered on a pro-rata-basis.
Write-downs are taken when there is an impairment
in value caused by a change in credit-worthiness.
If the underlying reasons for write-downs no longer
apply, a subsequent write up is taken to the income
statement; the amount of subsequent write up must
not increase the level of the carrying amounts.

Fair-value hedge accounting is used to recog-
nise investments that are effectively hedged against
market price risks.

Land and buildings that we hold as long-term
investments with a view to receiving rental income
and/or capital gains are valued at their market
value, in accordance with 1AS 40. As with refinanc-
ing expenses, the rental income from these invest-
ments is shown under net interest income. All other
income and expenses from land and buildings not
used on an owner-occupied basis are shown in the
net income from investiments.
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9 Property, plant and equipment In principle,
property, plant and equipment are valued at acquisi-
tion or production costs and, provided the assets are
depreciable, scheduled straight line depreciation is
calculated based on their expected useful economic
life. For fixtures in rental buildings calculations

are based on the term of the contract, taking into
account any extensions options if this term is shorter
than the normal useful economic life. Buildings are
valued at current market value in accordance with
1AS 16; no scheduled depreciation is therefore 4
applied.

| PROPERTY, PUANT AND EQUIPMENT

|

© Useful |
% economiclife |
| Fixture in rental buildings 10-25 years i
| i ; }

:§ ITequipment (broad sense) 3-5years ,
‘f 3~25years |

Other office and blarit equipment

ST o = N |

i
i
|
i

Non-scheduled depreciation is taken on
items of property, plant whose value is additionally
reduced. If the reasons for unscheduled deprecia-
tion cease to exist, write-ups are applied up to a
maximum of the amortised acquisition or produc-
tion costs.

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of
property, plant and equipment is capitalised, pro-
vided an additional economic benefit ensues for
the Company. Measures relating to the maintenance
of property, plant and equipment are recorded
as expenses in 'the fiscal year in which they occur.

10 Intangible assets Intangible assets mainly
comprise software. Software is valued at amortised
cost and written down over an expected useful eco-
nomic life of 3 to 5 years.

" Liabilities Liabilities that are not hedged items
of an effective fair-value hedge are reported as liabil-
ities at amortised cost, taking into account deferred
premiums and discounts on a pro rata basis. Inter-
est-free liabilities are shown at their present value.

12 . Provisions When determining provisions for
uncertain liabilities and anticipated losses relating
to incomplete contracts we use the best possible
estimate pursuant to IAS 37.36 et seq. In principle,
long-term provisions are discounted.

Provisions for pensions and similar obliga-
tions are formed on the basis of expert actuarial
reports pursuant to 1AS 19, Calculations are based
on the “projected unit credit” method; in addition
to the present value of the vested pension entitle-
ments, they also include unrealised actuarial gains
and losses. Among other things, these arise as a
result of irregularities in risk patterns (e.g. more or
fewer cases of disability or death than expected
based on the actuarial principles applied) orasa
result of changes in the parameters used for
calculation.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised
with in accordance with the “corridor” method:
Under this approach, gains and losses are not recog-
nised as income or expense in subsequent years
unless the cumulative gains or losses at the halance
sheet date exceed the “corridor” of 10 % of the max-
imum sum of the present value of the defined bene-
fit obligations and the assets of any external retire-
ment benefit scheme.

The interest rate assumed for calculations is
based on the long-term interest rate for first class
fixed-yielded corporate bonds on the balance-sheet
date. The amount of the provision recognised in the
balance sheet is based on the provision for the pre-
vious year plus the pension expense determined at
the start of the fiscal year less any payments during
the current fiscal year affecting liquidity.
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13 Other liabilities Other liabilities comprise,
among other things, accruals pursuant to 1AS 37.
This includes future expenses of uncertain timing or
amount but whose level of uncertainty is less than
that for provisions. Accurals include liabilities for
goods or services received or delivered that were
neither paid for, invoiced by the supplier nor for-
mally agreed. It also includes short-term liabilities
to employees, e.g. flexi-time credits and outstanding
vacation. Accruals are carried at the amount likeley
to be used.

Liabilities listed here must be shown under
provisions if they still cannot be precisely quantified
on the balance-sheet date and if the requirements of
IAS 37 on the recognition of provisions are met.

14 Foreign currency translation Currency transla-
tion is based on the principles 0f 1AS 21. According
to this standard, non-euro monetary assets and lia-
bilities as well as cash transactions that have not
been executed on the balance-sheet date are in prin-
ciple translated into euros using the market rates
ruling on the balance-sheet date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities carried at historical cost are
reported using the exchange rate on the date of the
acquisitions.

Individual components of shareholders’
equity are in principle translated at historic
exchange rates; the revaluation reserve is translated
using the exchange rate prevailing on the balance-
sheet date.

In principle, income and expenses arising
from currency translations by the individual Group
companies are shown under the corresponding
items in the income statement.

Average exchange rates are used for trans-
lating income and expenses, in accordance with
14821.30 (b) and 1AS 21.31.

15 Taxes onincome Taxes on income are ac-
counted for and valued in accordance with I1AS 12.
Apart from a few exceptions specified in the Stan-
dard, deterred taxes are calculated for all temporary
differences between the carrying amounts under the
FRS and the amounts on fiscal statements and also
for the differences resulting from uniform valuation
within the Group and differences from the consoli-
dation (balance-sheet method), Deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax loss carryforwards are cal-
culated to the extent that this is permitted under
IAS 12.34 et seq.

As the concept of deferred taxes is based on
the presumption of future tax assets/tax liabilities
(liability method), measurement is based on the
respective national tax rates expected to apply when
the differences are settled. Changes in tax rates
decided on the reporting date are taken into consid-
eration. ‘

For reasons of proportionality and in view of
the special fiscal positions of the German compa-
nies, we refrained from applying the increased tax
rate of 26.5 % in accordance with the Flood Victim
Solidarity Act [Flutopfersolidarititsgesetz] that was
only applicable for tax year 2003.
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16 Notes to segment reporting by business seg-
ment (primary segmenting) The Hypo Real Estate
Group (HREG) is divided into three business seg-
ments, which are referred to as primary segments:

HYPO REAL ESTATE INTERNATIONAL
(HREI) Thissegment pools our international busi-
ness in structured real estate financing. It includes
the earnings contributions of the following fully
consolidated companies: :
| Real Estate Bank International puc, Dublin
| Hypo Real Estate Capital Ltd., London (subgroup)

| Hypo Property Investment (1992) Ltd., London

| Hypo Real Estate Investment Banking Ltd.,

London

| Hypo Property Investment Ltd., London
| The Greater Manchester Property Enterprise
Fund Lid., London

| Hypo Property Participation Ltd., London

| Hypo Property Services Ltd., Londbn

| Zamara Investments Ltd., Gibraltar

| Pfandbrief Bank International S. A., Luxembourg.

WURTTEMBERGISCHE HYPOTHEKEN-
BANK (WiirttHyp) constitutes the business segment
WirttHyp. It specialises in real estate financing
that is eligible as cover stock in Germany and other
countries; refinancing is mainly through the issue of
mortgage bonds.

HYPO REAL ESTATE GERMANY (HREGe)
Essentially, this segment comprises the German real
estate financing business that is to be restructured. It
includes the earnings contributions of
| Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, Munich
| WestHyp Immobilien Management GmbH & Co. KG,
Dortmund

In addition to consolidation processes, the
column “Other/consolidation” for the Hypo Real
Estate Group also includes the earnings contribu-
tions of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG, Munich.
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17 Income statement, broken down by business segment
in € millions M i‘
J HREI WiirttHyp ~ HREGe  Other/ HREG |
[ consolidation %
2003 2003 2003 2003 2003 |
| Net intérest"inco'nié' ' V ‘ 137 10 ) 420 7 ' 674 2
frovisions on \ossesrqr) loans and advances o 37 25 190 - 252 J
Net interest income after provisions for losses on |
loans and advances 100 85 230 7 422 2
| Net commission income 55’ -4 -6 - 45 !
General administrative expenses 64 el 152 13 260 ‘,
[ Balance of other opérating income/éxpenses 3 -2 22 -2 19 |
! '()pe'ratir.\g result ) 92 48 94 -8 226 [
Net income from investments -5 6 -2 ~ -1 ‘K
| Balance ofotherinéome/expenéé; - - -103 34 ~69
' thereof: o
. Réstructuring expénses - - 86 - 86
| thereof: - 7
| Additions to reétruEtu}ing provisions - - 33 - 33
Result of &d-i';a}y activities/result before taxes 87 ‘ 54 -1 26 156
Ta;es\oh incomé o R o 30 2 5 3 40
L Net income 57 52 -16 23 16 (
| SO — o p— - P — o 5
|
18 Key ratios, broken down by business segment
| |
| in% }
T o HREI  WiirttHyp HREGe HREG |
;[ o o o 2003 2003 2003 2003 I
t Cost-income ratio (based on operating revenues) 33.2 29.8 34.9 352 |
| Return on equity beforetaxes ' 6.6 8.5 -05 3.8
l Return oh—équity after taxes {net of amortisation of go'c)‘dwil.l)‘ 4.3 8.2 -07 2.8
| Returnon e_d‘ljitvyrafter taxes - - 4.3 8.2 ~'o.7 2.8

3
1
t
i
i
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19

Balance-sheet figures, broken down by business segment

| TOTALVOLUME OF LENDING ) T N
‘ in € miflions
[ et T T T Wit mRtee ot HRtG |
consolidation
3112.2003 17,777 19,460 76,489 ' - 13,726 |
1.1.2003 ‘ 4,158 19,480 ' 89,125 102 112,865

" BALANCE-SHEET FIGURES

in € millions

i

{

;

{

[
|
1

| 112003

Placements wi"gh, Joans and advances to other banks

31.12.2003;

112003

thereof: b
Real estate fintancing
31.12.2003 ‘

‘ 1.1.2003
Municipal loans
31.1-2.2003 “
1.1.2003 s

Loans and'advarilces to customers

31.12.2003 :

112003 ’
thereof: {
Real estate finz;ncing
31.12.2003 |

1.1.2003
Municipal Idan;
31.12.2003 N
112003
Deposits from otthéf banks
31122003 ‘
!
Amounts owed t(‘; other depositors
31.12.2003 :

il
1.1.2003

= |-| Rél,-ﬂ_,w.,m

’ 1,829
sl

7091
3,290

587
359

620
847

. 47‘91.1 R

3959

242

1

Prbrhis%ory notesland other liabilities evidenced by securities

3112.2003

1.1.2003
thereof: :
Mortgage bonds:
3112.2003 ’
112003 (

Public-sector bonds
31122003 ‘L

i

112003

4,978

49

CWorttHyp

4,965

4,819

19,411

. 24,028' N
.2.1‘;
A

14309

B A

61,585 a
S 7ewe

B/

43290

22633
601

n209

12,532

6,019

5046

80,998

98‘368 T

mess
28,387

ks
59,350

TwRiGe

 Other/
consolidation

24,981
1,881 31,655

-1,224

- 253
- 378

- ) 17.427
- 20,858

- 85505
- 90,514
- 56
- 5398

- 28,489
- 34,410

19,351
- 18,830

8 7.844
- 6,725

- 110,15/3.
- 127,539
- 31931

- 32,602

- 6%1m
- 79,185

" HREG
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| CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
| in€mittions

' 325 2,568 -

HREl  WirttHyp =~ HREGe  Other/  HREG
consolidation
Contingent liabilities '
31.12.2003 8,858 27 120 - 9,005

i 1.1.2003 - 44 86 - 130
Other liabilities '

31122003 1,033 891 673 - 2,597

{ 1.1.2003 - 782 1,091 - 1,873

. p p— -

|

I

20  Risk provision rates, broken down by business segment

. B T I

] |

5 ?

HREI WiirttHyp HREGe HREG |

| 2003 2003 2003 2003 5

r Net addition rate (in %) 0.21 013 0.85¥ 0.63"

E Lgan loss r;tg (m%) _ S - 'cz 12 9.06 0.45 0.32 |
Total provisions for losses on loans and advances (in € millions) 1
31.12.2003 37 291 1,574 1,902 i

| -— N §

E 112003 21 266 1,194 1,481 3

[ Provision rate (in %) |

| 3112.2003 0.2 1.50 2.06 1.67 !

! = Coe : !

| 112003 0.5t 1.37 1.34 131 |

]

{7) Including risk shelter of wvs ac. T o - T R |

f 2) The loan loss ratio relates exclusively to loan losses in connection with Hypo Real Estate International's portfalio sale to nve Luxembourg prior to the spin-off. ’

21 Loans put on a non-accrual basis, broken down by business segment

o - i — e -’

’ in € millions é

i T MVHREI> WurttHyp HREGe (f;therv/~ T HRE&M’

) consolidation |

! Loans put on a non-accrual basis {
31.12.2003 - 2,893 1

!

The item loans put on a non-accrual basis
shows the volume of all loans and advances where
the payment of interest has been agreed, but where
the corresponding interest payments have not been
received. This portfolio contains not realised interest

income in amount of € 102 million that was not
shown as interest income in the Income Statement.
The “non-interest-bearing loans” for which we
have refrained from charging borrowers interest are
included herein.

Results |

Notes
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22 Capital Calculated in accordance with the
Basel Recommendation on Equity, the equity funds
of the business segments as at December 31, 2003

were comprised as follows (based on approved
annual financial statements):

CAPITA.L’,MB’kOKEN DOWN BY "BUSIN'E’S‘S SEGMEN:I'MM S i T i
in € miliions ’ .
%Mw_n S —— T Wt WREGe e
2003 2003 2003 2003
Core capital 1,300 646 2,262 4122
i s o
Supplementary capital 834 340 1,142 2,126
. : ‘ . G A
Equity capital 2,134 986 3,404 6,248
Tier i1l capital - - - -
Total equity funds 2134 986 3,404 | 6,248
The resulting ratios for the business segments
as at December-31, 2003 were as follows (based on
approved annual financial statements}:
| CAPITAL RATIO, BROKEN DOWN BY BUSINESS SEGMENT B -
in% !
b T T V o ~ HREl  WirttHyp HREG |
’ 2003 2003 2003 |
Core capital ratid 8.9 6.9 76 |
| N ~ - . - . |
Equity capital ratio 14.7 10.5 6 |
4 Ll - SO
Equity funds ratio 14.6 105 11 ng |
: = - s ———————— ——
: |
|
L i
23 Employees, broken down by business segment
S R - .
|
: HREI WiurttHyp HREGe Other HREG |
| : 31.12.2003 31.12.2003 31.12.2003 31.12.2003 3112.2003 |
| Employees 3 242 82 904 38 1,366 |

i
1



24  Segment reporting by region (secondary
segmenting) Different regions are referred to as sec-
ondary segments. Essentially, we currently differen-
tiate between Germany and the rest of Western

Segment Reporting

includes all other regions and also consolidation

effects. Allocation of values to regions is based on
the location of the registered office of the group

companies and/or their branches.

Europe. The column headed “Other/consolidation”

~ INCOME STATEMENT, BROKEN DOWN BY REGION

f in € millions

f o " Restof Cermahy Other/ H}p'o G'rodp |
) - Western Europe consolidation !
‘i 2003 2003 2003 2003 ;
{ Operating income 191 ' 541 6 738 i
* Provisions for losses on loans and advances 37 215 - 252 |
| General administrative expenses 61 186 13 260 i
| Operating result 93 140 -7 226 |
f Result of ordinary activities/ e
‘ result before taxes 88 41 27 156 |
r e—— P ————————— p— .
| |
| COST-INCOME RATIO, BROKEN DOWN BY REGION T T ,
boin% l
| T o Rest of "C'ermar'ly meHypdGrodbm’
} Western Europe 1
i 2003 2003 2003 |
? Cost-income ratio (based on operating revenues) 3.9 34.4 35.2 |
i |
| VOLUME OF LENDING, BROKEN DOWN BY REGION T
| in€millions ]
g - T " Restof  Germany  Other/  HypoGroup |
| Western Europe consolidation !
f Volume of lending i
E 31,12.2003 17,776 96,025 -75 13,726 ]
; 11.2003 4158 108,605 102 12,865 |

i
""EMPLOYEES, BROKEN DOWN BY REGION T B |
| |
S o T 7 Restof M”Ge'rma‘y;yw i WOtAherw“wHypo Groupﬁi
i Western Europe i
| 3112.2003 31.12.2003 31.12.2003 31.12.2003 |
f Employees 195 1,133 38 1,366 |

i

)
!
- T 1
1
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Notes to the Income Statement

25 Net interest income

| NETINTERESTINCOME

‘ in € millions ‘

: ‘ i 2003

| Interest income from | 8mB

% Lending and mc'\ney;markét' business o —::_;6?{; ?

E Fixed-income sécurities 1,76—5

1 Equitysecuritie;andothervariable—yield

f securities 8

? Subsidiaries + ;:::_37

E Investment proﬁerties T 4

; lnterestexpenséfor . i i m?;a l

| Deposits 3174
Promissory noteg and other liabilities —

evidenced by securities
Subordinated ca:pita]

Other '
Total

t

PR

"INTEREST MARGIN
in%

P S
based on average risk assets (812}

t .
based on average volume of business

31.12.2003

Provisions for losses on loans and advances
amounting to € 252 million are shown as a net

amount after offsetting HVB AG’s risk shelter in favour

of Hypo Real Estate Bank AG of € 460 million. No
specific charges for bad and doubtful debts arose
within the business segment Hypo Real Estate

International in 2003. Nevertheless, we applied a

general bad debt charge as a precautionary measure.

In the case of Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank
AG, an amount of € 25 million was allocated to pro-

visions for losses on loans and advances.

27 Net commission income

i in€ millions

Securities and custodial services
Foréign trade /rﬁoney transfer operations
| lendingoperations
Cihé;serviceoperafidﬁg
Total

28  General administrative expenses

§

in € miltions

i
et e e ot e R e
i
i
{

26 Provisions for losses on loans and advances

Personnel expenses

Waﬁgés and salaries

Social security costs

Pension expenséé and related
employee benefits costs

i
|

No stock option schemes involving shares
in Hypo Real Estate Holding AG.or similar forms of
remuneration were granted to Executive Board

members, Supervisory Board members or employees

in 2003.

in € millions : Other general administrative expenses ["—1_5'7 l
| Depreciation/amortization and ‘ :

Additions | valuation adjustments F 19

{ Allowances for lo%ses on loans and advances on p&f&ﬁé?@,ﬁént and equipment a Lj, *:6:
Loan-loss-provisions | onsoftware and other intangible assets
Releases | ‘ [ =30 .. | excludinggoodwill 13

| Allowances for losseson loans and advances | ~29 Total N 260

| Loan-| 085-provisi C‘;n‘s o B B P
Recoveries from v&rite-offs of loans and advances -z
Total i . ' 252




29  Balance of other operating income and
expenses

The largest individual items under other
operating income are represented by gains on the
sale of land and buildings amounting to € 28 mil-
lion. In addition, rental income of € 7 million was
recorded from land and buildings that are not
classed as investments. Income from the writeback
of provisions that are not related to lending busi-
ness amounted to € 2 million.

Losses from the sale of land and buildings
amounted to € 8 million, Depreciation on cuirent
assets amounted € 10 million. Expenses from alloca-
tions to accruals and provisions that are not related
to lending business amounted to € 1 million.

Apart from the above, the othér operating
income and expenses do not contain any individual
amounts of major significance.

30  Operating income

] e

[ in €millions i

Net interest income
Net commission income

Balance of other 6befating income
and expenses 19

in € millions i
2003
'Ort‘he‘r“oaér?a_tin g income S 17
Other—c;per_éﬁ}{.g expénses - 28
Balance of other operating income |
| and expenses 19
l

Results
Notes
Notes to the Income Stoteinent

net income. It also shows expenses relating to and
gains from the sale of investment properties. The
income from held-to-maturity assets amounted to
€ 26 million. Overall, a net expense of € 99 million
was recorded from available-for-sale investments.
Investment properties accounted for expenses
of € 6 million. The sale of such land and buildings
resulted in gains of € 4 million.

32 Balance of other income and expenses

!
i
in € millions i
1

Other income

: Other expenses

thereof:
Othertaxes
Restructuring costs
‘thereof:

Additions to restructuring
provisions 33

Balance of other income/expenses - 69

-

Restructuring costs amounting to € 86 million arose
in connection with the restructuring of the busi-
ness segment Hypo Real Estate Germany. These
expenses comprise personnel expenses of € 29 mil-
lion, special 1T write-offs of € 34 million and other
general administrative expenses of € 23 million.
Restructuring provisions amounting to € 33 million
were recognised pursuant to IAS 37 for further re-
structuring measures within the segment.

33 Taxes on income Taxes on income are divided
as follows:

Total - - 738

31 Net income from investments The net income
from investments shows income from the sale of
held-to-maturity and available-for-sale financial
instruments and also changes in the valuation of
such instruments that are to be recorded as affecting

TAXES ON INCOME

i in € millions ;
| T 003
| Current taxes T 36
| Deferred taxes 4
¥ . e ———
{ Total 40

99
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As a result of the spin-off, Hypo Real Estate Holding
AG incorporates the market values recorded by HVB AG
in the fiscal transfer balance sheet as of December
31, 2002 into its fiscal balance sheet. Therefore the
spin-off takes place neutral for income tax purposes.
As part of the spin-off process, HVB AG’s loss
carryforward for corporation tax and trade tax pur-
poses that exists on the transfer record date was
transferred to Hypo Real Estate Holding AG on a
prorata basis, in accordance with the apportionment
ratio (77:23) announced in the spin-off report
(approximately € 390 million according to HVB AG’s
extrapolation of March 2003). Both the amount of
the available loss carryforward and also the appor-
tionment ratio still have to be confirmed by the fiscal
authorities at HVB AG. In view of the fact that Hypo
Real Estate Holding AG has no influence on this tax

audit procedure or its results and that the restrictions -

of section 8 para. 4 of the German Corporation Tax
Act [KStG] have to be taken into account regarding
the continued existence of the loss carryforward that
has been transferred, no deferred tax assets have been
applied as at December 31, 2003 because the account-
ing criteria pursuant to IAS 12.34 et seq. are not met.
Accompanying to the spin-off, HVB AG granted
the Hypo Real Estate Group an income equalisation

WRECONCILIATION T

in € millions

that was intended to follow the retroactive effect
caused by the spin-off. HVB AG also deducted the
taxes owed for the retroactive period; amounting to
€15 million. These have been taken into considera-
tion in the item current taxes and also as an aperi-
odical effect within the reconciliation.

A key influencing factor in reducing current
taxes was the profit and loss pooling agreement
concluded between Wiirttembergische Hypotheken-
bank and DIA Vermigensverwaltungs-GmbH, which
has now been merged into Hypo Real Estate Holding
AG. We are of the opinion that the agreement is
effective, as we do not believe that the challenges
pending in this connection have any chance of suc-
cess. It was possible to offset the loss carryforwards
resulting from the spin-off against the profits trans-
ferred to Hypo Real Estate Holding AG, resulting
in a reduction of tax burden of € 19 million for the
Hypo Real Estate Group.

The differences between the expected (com-
puted) taxes on income and the taxes on income
actually shown are outlined in the following recon-
ciliation, which takes consolidation measures into
account: '

Result of ordinary‘\operating activities/result before taxes
Applicable (Iegal) tax rate o
Expected (computed) tax expense S
Tax effects

arising from foréign income
| arising from tax \rate dlfferences

arising from losses

arising from tax: free income L -140
arlsmgfrom non -deductible expenses 4 S T :1;3
'arlsmg from valuatlon adjustments and the non- appllcatton of deferred taxes 125
arising from the wrlte up of deferred taxes T ' ‘ ylnzg
arising from prlor years and other apenodlcal effects %
Accounted taxes ctn income ;:__4‘_0)
Group taxratio ‘ T 256%
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The applicable tax rate to the year under
review was 26.38 %. o

The effects from foreign income relate to
differences in tax rates of foreign tax jurisdictions.
They arose because foreign income was taxed at
different tax rates.

The item effects from tax rate differences
includes deviations arising due to different munici-

pal trade tax percentages, the trade tax burden itself

{deferred and current) pursuant to 1AS and also the
reducing effect resulting from the deductibility of
trade tax when calculating corporation tax and soli-
darity surcharge as well as the effects of the Flood
Victim Solidarity Act [Flutopfersolidaritdtsgesetz]
that are taken into consideration.

Offsetting by Hypo Real Estate Holding AG
against the corporation tax and trade tax loss carry-
forwards resulting from the spin-off is shown in the
item tax effects from losses.

The item tax effects from tax-free income
includes the tax effects of the risk shelter provided
by BVB AG and also the effects of the income equali-
sation granted to Hypo Real Estate Holding AG by
HVB AG in connection with the spin-off. This item
also includes effects from tax-free income from
participations, dividends and gains/losses on sale.

The effects from non-deductible expenses
primarily relate to that cannot be deducted for tax
purposes and that are not to be shown as deferred
taxes due to the permanent nature of the difference.

The effects from valuation adjustments and
the non-application of deferred taxes mainly re-
sulted from fiscal loss carry forwards that, irrespec-
tive of the spin-off-related loss carryforward of Hypo
Real Estate Holding AG, did not meet the criteria for
showing deferred tax assets pursuant to 1AS 12. For
an amount of € 458 million, no deferred tax assets
were taken into consideration as the criteria for
recognising them pursuant to IAS 12.34 et seq. were
not met. At € 4 million, valuation adjustments pro-
duced an increase in expenses.

The item tax effects from the write-up of
deferred taxes resulted from the recognition of
deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences
that had not yet been included in deferred taxes.
This resulted in deferred tax income of € 5 million.

The item tax effects from prior years and
aperiodical effects includes current taxes from pre-
ceding years amounting to € 4 million that arose
due to tiscal audits or new information on fiscal
obligations. Effects not relating to the period under
review largely related to income equalisation with
HVB AG.

The Group tax ratio is the ratio between the
tax on income shown (current and deferred taxes)
and the net result for the year before taxes. It was
affected by the Group’s tax policy, which is reflected
in the aforementioned effects.

The deferred tax liabilities/deferred tax
assets relate to the following items:

 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS |
)

in € millions

1.1.2003

Deferred tax liabilities |
Loans and advances to other T _ E
| banks/customersincluding {
provisions for losses on loans !
andradvances _A.w,__l_j ‘ 52 ';
i Investments E‘WW 154 55 [
! Property, plant and equipment/ [
intangible assets - 3 ’
| Other assets/liabilities mﬁf} 1761 |
Recognised deferred ‘—i
tax liabilities 1,219 1,87
o [_WM_.,J
Deferred tax assets o J
Investments A 7
Property, plant and equipment/ ::#_“]
intangible assets 2 4
Pr(;visions 14 13 }
. Other assets/liabilities :—:5:17;;' 2,716 ¥
5 Placements with, loans and {
j advances to other banks/ {
| customers including provisions ’
for losses on loans and advances 4 ~ i
‘ Recognised deferred ’
| taxassets 2,199 2,740 ‘
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For the domestic companies within the Group,
deferred taxes were measured using the uniform
rate of corporation tax including the solidarity sur-
charge of 26.38 % and the rate of trade tax, which
depends on the applicable municipal rate fixed by
the municipality. Because trade tax can be deducted
when calculating corporation tax, Hypo Real Estate
Holding AG’s overall rate for valuing deferred taxes
was 40.86 %.

As at the reporting date, unused tax loss car-
ryforwards —excluding the loss carryforwards trans-
ferred as part of the spin-off that are now expected
to amount to € 349 million — totalled € 459 million.
Deferred tax assets relating to an amount of € 1 mil-
lion were shown as the criteria for recognition pur-
suant to 1IAS 12.34 et seq. were met. There is no time
limit regarding utilisation of the lass carryforwards.

"During the year under review, the available-
for-sale reserve was reduced by deferred taxes
amounting to € 66 million. During the current year,
deferred tax assets of € 142 million were offset
against the cash flow hedge reserve.

34  Earnings per share

[
i

%
2003

in € millions 15

Net income adju?sted for minority interests,

Net income aﬂdjurst'ed for minorify interests and

before amortisation of goodwill, in € millions n5
Average no.of shares o 134,072.175
Earnings per sha}e N
(excl. amortisation of goodwill),in € 0.86
: Earnings per shazre,in€ T 086 :

As no conversion or option rights in respect
of contingent capital were outstanding for the year
2003 on the balance sheet date, no calculation was
made showing diluted earnings per share,

35 Statement of value added

in € millions

O‘perating'inc‘omé

Net income from investments

Total income /

Provisions for losses on loans and advances
Other general édmi”n/iétruati»ve'expenses
Depreéiation/amor{isé}fcﬁn on

| property, plant and equipment

| and intangible assets 19
Other expenses (excludihg taxes) and -
additions to restructuring provisions 69
Value added T o 290

{ |

CUsETT S R -
in € millions
S A T em
Value added o _;9;

: Emb\oyees(personnel expense) ' Mw“»‘o;a‘

Publicéh}horitieé {taxes) S i [jj
Minority interests 1
C-ompanies ‘;1;;

-

|
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36 Cash reserve

in € millions

=

! Cashon hand and central

bank balances
bl
. Total

38 Loans and advances to customers

" LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BROKEN DOWN |

BY TYPE OF BUSINESS in € miltions

’ & “3112.2003 J 11,2003 f
ooy rEm——

S { | Loans and advances L__.85’53E_J 90,514 ;
{jljfggw_] 1. 2003 1 Municipal loans ‘ 28,489 | 34,410 5
r i Real estate loans 51,746 53,951 I
l . L2 .

| 489 79 | » (})trher loans and advances 5,270 2,153 |
} 489 79 j Total 85,505 90,514 |
1

|

37 Placements with, loa
other banks

{

| LOANS AND ADVANCES TO OTHER BANKS BROKEN
DOWN BY TYPE OF BUSINESS in € millions

ns and advances to

‘
| Placements with, loans and
7 advances
Mumcupalloans
Real estate loans
 Other placeménts, loans
and advances
Investments
Total

1.1.2003

{3192, 2003
19,216 22,221
17,427 20,858
B33 318
1,536 ‘ 985
5,765 9,434
| 2498 31,655

| LOANS AND ADVANCES TO OTHER BANKS BROKEN

DOWN BY MATURITIES inem

illions

( Repayable on demand

% With agreed maturmes
| up to 3 months

% from 3 months to1 year
!

|

i

|

{

l

::"“—@ ] 8125
L e | 4881

( 31.12.2003 } 11.2003
'7_‘1“,6?6*} 1,01
23.36_5] 30,644

from1 year’ to 5 years 9.274 8,634 |
from 5 years and over 7484 9,004
. -
\‘Total 24,981 L 31,655
e - T
|
; J

" "LOANS AND ADVANCES TO N
E SUBS.DlARIES in € millions

ION-CONSOLIDATED

I

j' Non-consolidated
I subsidiaries

f Total

L

b

" LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, BROKEN DOWN |
BY MATURITIES in € miltions

!

|

_ ‘5{35.’568‘;'_‘_]*_“ “”1.1.206‘37
Unspecified terms 2@ 97 {
With agreed maturities 85,251“} 90,417 i
uptogmonths - 3,812 4,452 |
from 3 monthsto 1year T 5,110 N 4,49 (
from1year to s years 22,655 26,082 i

from 5 years and over 53‘671{1 55,392 |

Total [ 85,505 90,514

p——— = W

1
{
!

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO NON-CONSOLIDATED |
SUBSIDIARIES AND COMPANIES" in ¢ miltions #

13112.2003 ] 11.2003 |
Non-consolidated ‘
subsidiaries 1,687 77 !
Companies in which a :mT ‘ |
participating interest is held 499 245 ?
Total 2,186 322 ]

{7 3)in which a participating interest is held.




39  Allowances for losses on loans and advances

DEVVEI:OPME'N{T»N e e R e i

in € miltions

[ T ndividual lendmg risks  latentrisks
Balanceatm.z&og ' ST ,398 S 7
Changes éffect(ng income h 149 103

| +Gross additions 17§ . 163

—Releases ‘ ";29’ . -

i Changes not affectmgmcome o _ '237‘ V -68

~Use ofeX|st|ng|oan dossallowances -‘—303 -68

+/- Effects ofcurrencytranslatlons and other changes not - S
affecting income 540 -
Balanceat 31.12.5003 1,784 S 12

‘In particular, the changes not affecting net
income show the amounts received under HVB AG’s
risk shelter.

| BREAKDOWN OF ALLOWANCES FOR LOSSES ON LOANS AND ADVANCES T S
: in € millions ;
[, D RS p——————— - 23003 ] pur——— ,.1.1..2003 = ‘
E Loans and advances to customers i Ab;«ﬁ1,7“184~ 1,398 i
;; General loan- loss allowances B n | . 77 ‘
l Total : 1,896 | 1,475
r S B S O SR s e SO
i

40  Analysis of loan default risk

| w

1) Total provisions for losses on loans and advances/volume of lending.

' VOLUME OF LENDING . | | RATIOS OF PROVISION TOTOTAL LENDING ,
in € millions ’ 5 in € millions ‘

EﬁFMWMMM‘WMTM"WWWMWW 3. 12. zoo;wwmw 1".1.2003W§E Em T o W—m - -1.1.2003 ' !
Placements with, Joans and T T f Total provisions for losseson | | o
advances to other banks 19,216 22,221 E , loans and advances 1,902 1,481
Loans and advanées to ::] o T [ Write-downson loans | 1 ‘
customers 85,505 90,514 [ andadvances 1,896 1475 |
Contingent liabilities ‘ WFS_] T 30 | : Loan-loss provisions :_“'i 6 |
Total ' [ 113,726 o 112,865 j : Volume of iénding o m’ﬁg,—{zG 112,865

T " T — e 5 Provisionrate’in% ,_*_‘;6,7* 1.31

|
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{ NET ADDITION RATE T T I LOAN LOSS RATIO {
| in € millions ) ‘ in € millions [
V‘r_* A O E—— ,.[}1 22003
; Provisions for losses on loans and advances™ Use of existing loan-loss allowances 37{
| Volume of lending - Recoveries from written off T2
| Net addition rate? in % Loan losses 369
i’“méi?g}isﬁkﬂsﬁé&er of e AG. - 1 VO'U"?E of lending _’j;j{f’
! | Loan loss ratio”in % 0.32
‘ [ TiJioan losses/volume of lending. WN"M"ﬂ]'
]
q1 Investments
| ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENTS T - T i |
{ in € millions ;
z - 3112.2003 ""1.'1'.2'603?
-f Held to- matunty investments 16,379 20703 |
[ Debt securities and other flxed income secuntles 16,379 J 20,703 ‘i
; Avanlable for-sale investments 20,055 19,411 |
; Shares-in non- consohdated subs:d(anes 242’j[ 591 |
Participating interests | 6 14 I
Debt securities and other ﬂxed income secunt»es 19,807 18,806 1
Investment propertles 37 100 |
Total 36,47 40,214 }

{ THE CARRYING AMOUNTS AS OF DECEMBER 31,2003 WERE BROUGHT TO ACCOUNT AS FOLLOWS

( in € millions )
j - T T 7 Non- participating  Debt securities  Shares and Total
consolidated interests and other other

{ affiliated fixed- variable-

[ subsidiaries income yield

§ securities securities

;‘ Marketable securities N ‘ - - 29,549 - L 29549

| Listed securities - - 27,237 - L 27237

,E Unlisted securities - - 2,312 -~ JW 2312

There were no restrictions on disposals or
collection of income from investments.

-

05
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N

in € miltions

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN HELD-TO-MATURITY AND LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS AS WELL AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES |

|
3

{

: T " Held-to- Non-consoli- Myi’articipatil;lignFﬁéf)t"securities " Investment

| maturity dated, interests and other properties

f investments  subsidiaries fixed-income

! N securities

Acquisition costs

i Balance at1.1.2003 20,671 603 g 18,814 125

é Additions J 20 141 - 2,891 -

r Reclassifications -174 - - -350 - l

| Disposals -3,912 —490 -3 ~1,544 -87 {
Balance at 31.12.2003 16,605 254 6 19,81 38 }
Changesin valﬂxation not affecting income
Balance at 1.1.2003 - - 5 -8 -
Additions - - - 5 -

| Disposals ‘ - - -5 -1 -

| Balanceat 31.123003 - - - -4 -

|

| Write-downs and write-ups affecting income
Balance at11.2003 32 -12 - - -25
Changes arising from foreign currency
translations ‘ -159 - - - - J
Impairments - - ~ - -2

. Reversals of premiums and discounts -10 - - - -
Reclassifications -~79 - - - -
Disposals : 10 - - - -26 ‘
Balance at 3112.2003 —226 —12 - - -1 ;
Carrying amoun&s
Balance at 31.12.2003 16,379 242 6 19,807 37
Balance at 1.1.2003 20,703 591 14 18,806 100

T Yowal

40,222
3,052
~524

-6,036

36,714

—-239

36,47

40,214

Disposals of held-to-maturity investments

relate to redemptions on maturity.
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| THE ITEMS DEBT SECURITIES AND OTHER FIXED-INCOME SECURITIES AS WELL AS OTHER VARIABLE-YIELD SECURITIES |

! COMPRISE THE FOLLOWING in € miltions

| Debt securities and other fixed-income securities
Money market securities ’

by publicissuers

|
%
! Bonds and debt securities
i
{ by otherissuers

!

" 31.12.2003 | 1.1.2003
] e
— .
m 16,540

Debt securities issued by'gr.oup companiés

— — B A

f
|

LI 1,798 |

1
|
!
|
£
1
|

There were no debt securities and other fixed-
income securities of non-consolidated subsidiaries
and companies with whom a participatory relation-
ship exists:

FAIR VALUES OF INVESTMENTS On the
balance-sheet date, the fair value of investment
properties amounted to € 36 million.

|
i
!
|

-

o7
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42  Property, plant and equipment

P

in € miltions

Land and buildings
used for operational
purposes and e
buildings under
construction

PlantVanc'lv T ﬁénfunderv

operating construction
quipment

Yotal

Acquisition/p}dddction costs o i
| Balancea't1.1.2i‘oog ' 97 47 o 30 174
i Additions - n 13 24 ¢
E Diéposals » '—”8'3 T8 ’ -43 ____-_-*EZ
Balanceat31.12t.2oog 14 50 - T 64
Amortisation)éeﬁeciation and write-ups :
Balance af1.142<i)og ' ' "6 35 -~ [_j
Scheduled dep}eciation/amortis;;fiovn ‘ ) - 6 - 6 !
| UhschédUIedd‘épréciatidn/émort‘isation‘ V 1 - - % :
E Disposals ) 6 7 - 3 :
| Balanceétgmui}zoog E 34 - ~—~£ ;
Carrying amour;ts
Balance at 3112.2003 T ou 16 - T 29
{ Balanceah.mzc}og g ' 30 133
I

i




43 intangible assets

Notes to the Balance Sheet

44 oOther assets

f'"*’ijEVE’féFMENT‘ OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS } ]
L in € millions in € millions !
T software  sSoftware | | o 1.2003 |
1 of wr.ﬂch ‘ of which i Positive fair values from I
{ acquired internally % derivative financial instruments 4,659 5,233 {
K N o generated | 8 e |
| Acquisition/production costs 1 Other assets ,-h_f_i_, 404 i
| Balance at 1.1.2663 29 : 45 Deferred charges and J I
Additions - P 2 ; prepaid expenses 175 4 1
D'isbosals ' g ’ —47 | Total f 5,029 5,951 |
Balance at 31.'12.:20”0‘3 ' 25 o - i ! E’
Lo j
Amortisétid;w/depreciation and write-hbs {
Balance at 1.1.2003 i 17 ‘3 | POSITIVE FAIR VALUES FROM DERIVATIVE
Scheduled amortisatilon/deprecia{ion 4 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS The positive fair
| Disposals v 9 12 | values from derivative financial instruments include
Balance at 31.12.2003 12 - in particular the derivatives used to hedge against
‘ S the risk of changes in market interest rate risk.
I Carrying amounts - _ '
E Balance at 31.12.2003 o 13 - 45  Taxassets The item tax assets is classified
| Balanceat11.2003 2 42 into tax assets relating to current taxes and deferred

—
i
|

Amortisation/depreciation of software and

other intangible assets is shown under amortisation/

depreciation of intangible assets within general
administrative expenses.

tax assets:

f

in € millions

{
i
% Current tax assets N 57 35

]

|

]

3142.2003 1.1.zoog"7f

: i
Deferred tax assets 2,1 2,740

99 74 }

| Total | 2256 3715 |

| I

During the year under review, deferred tax
assets fell by € 542 million. Deferred tax assets on
tax loss carryforwards were only applied if the crite-
ria pursuant to IAS 12 were met (see also Nots 33).

{

Results |
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46  Subordinated assets The following balance
sheet items contain subordinated assets:

| in € millions

31.12.2003 11.2003 |

f
k Investments : 153 S 72
|

| Total 1%3 72

47 Repurchase agreements As pledgor of genuine
repos, we have pledged assets with a carrying
amounts of €4.7 billion. These assets remain as part
of our assets, and the countervalues received are
shown under liabilities.

48  Securitisation Securitisation involves the full

- or partial passing on to the capital market of lending

risks for selected loan portfolios that have been
precisely defined in advance. The prime aim of our
Bank’s own securitisation programmes is to reduce

our loan portfolio risk. In the case of so-called syn-
thetic securitisation, the risk is transferred and the
pressure on equity reduced through the provision of
collateral in the form of guarantees or credit deriva-
tives; in the traditional forms of securitisation risk is
transferred and the pressure on equity reduced
through the sale of balance-sheet assets.

In 2003 the Hypo Real Estate Group setup a
securitisation programme with a term of 20 years.
As at December 31, 2003, the volume of lending
placed in this way amounted to € 592 million and
this resulted in a € 487 million reduction in the
pressure relating to BIS risk weighted assets.

At the year-end, the volume of lending of all
current securitisation programmes of the Hypo Real
Estate Group amounted to € 10.1 billion, and the
reduction in the pressure relating to BIS risk
weighted assets amounted to € 7.1 billion.

Securitisation programmes usually provide
for a small part of the risks being retained in the
form of a first loss piece or interest subparticipation
on the part of the pledgor.



For the programmes listed below, no first loss pieces

are held. The interest subparticipations total € 191

Notes to the Balunce Sheet

million:
g” SECURITISATIONS o
|
| Assignee Transaction Maturity  Typeofasset  Volume  Reductionin |
{ name years securitized of eis weighted
lending risk assets as
per Bis rules
in years in € millions in € millions
| Westfalische Hypothekenba;nk AG ' European Dream ' 5 European 600 480
| g . 2000 s
Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank ac WiirttHyp 4 Private 409 7
| 200071 mortgage
E loans
‘ Total 199816 2000 1,009 651
Hve Real Estate Bank aG. HvB Real Estate 55 Private 1,013 427
| 200141 mortgage
I loans
{ HvB Real Estate Bank AG NirnbergHyp 55 Private 240 185
| 20011 mortgage
| loans
$ Westfilische Hypothekenbank AG Dutch Dream 7 Commercial 785 690
i 20011 mortgage
; loans
j Wééifélische HybéihekénbankAG o Eurbpean Dream 5 European 8t 684
20011 MBS
Wiirttembergische Hypot'hekenbank AG WUrttHyp n Commercial 762 579
20011 mortgage
loans
Total 2001 3,655 2,565
HVEB Real Estate Bank G ) Provide Comfort 52 Private 2,326 1,227
; 2002-1 mortgage
| Joans
Westfalische Hypothekeﬁbank A Duke 2002 6 Commercial 774 737
5 mortgage
t loans
'!( Westfalische Hypofhékenbank AG Geco 2002 7 Commercial 937 818
l mortgage
é joans
1\ WUrttembergiséhe Hypotheke-nbank AG WerttHyp EU- 26 Commercial 783 653
mortgage
{ ) foans
| Total 2002 4,820 3,435
T WUrttémbergische l:Iypothekenbank AG WirttHyp F-1 20 Commercial 592 487
‘% mortgage
} loans
% Total 2003 592 487
!
; Total 10,076

7138

-

n
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49 Deposits from other banks

in € mitlions

o

" 'DEPOSITS FROM OTHER BANKS BY MATURITIES

Repayable on demand
With agreed maturities
uptos months

from3 7m6>ntii1's ton year
[ from 1yearto 5 years

from 5 years and over
Total

.

i 31.12.2003

1.1.2003 |

__m ] 135
18,581 18,695
8,144 10169 |
4779 5610 |

445 | 1155

] “HI9T | 1,161

} 19,351 1?1330 ‘

in € millions

AMOUNTS OWED TO NON-CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

e e e g e

Non-consalidated
subsidiaries
Total

Py

51 Promissory notes and other liabilities
evidenced by securities

ROMlSSOR\’ NOTES AND OTHER LIABILITIES EVIDENCED ]

-,f BY SECURITIES" in € miltions

11.2003 |

TR |
Debt securities in lssue 85,170 100,172 |
Mortgage bonds ___E‘i:/g‘( ‘1'7,089 }
‘Public-sector bonds™ W '67,331 1‘
Other debt securities » ﬁ?-gzviéj 14,603 ,

N\oney -market securmes ::ﬁg 1149
Reg|stered notes in ISSUE _mﬂ 27,367 ]
Mortgage bonds - 13,8;6~ 15,513 2
Pubhc sector bonds ‘.—m 1,854 ,

i

Total

:{ 1} broken down by type of business.

50  Amounts owed to other depositors

| AMOUNTS OWED TO OTHER DEPOSITORS BY MATURITIES |

1 in € millions

Repayable on de'jmand '

With agreed maturities
uptos months'

from1 yearto s\years

!
E
i from3 months\tm year
|

from 5 years and over
| Total

i ' PROMISSORY NOTES AND OTHER LIABILITIES EVIDENCED ]

1195 _ } BY SECURITIES! in € mitlions ’

4195 - i T [g 12.2003 ] T 12003 ’

e : T | With agreed maturities f,

f upto3months __@Zj E 11,888 ‘,

from 3 months to1year o ——wﬁ,sss 21,370 g

“from yearto 5 years ﬂ—*ﬁﬂ 65,512 |

| from 5 years and over o Hwﬁzﬁzﬁ? 28, 769 ;

f Total S 10,153 127,539 '

brokendown by maturities.

31.12.2003 12003 | ‘ I
325 | 262 | | PROMISSORY NOTES AND OTHER LIABILITIES EVIDENCED |

7510 6,463 | BY SECURITIESY in € miliions ;

_6s3 ] 7 [Br2003 [ 112003 |

| 722 8‘8}1' g Co;r/lvpaniesin which ) \‘

[“ﬁgﬁ‘ 3,136 [ aparticipating interest &

r——3“28‘7: ’ 2,086 | E is held - 21

I 7,844-} 6,725 T&tal S - 21 X‘

g [ ——
t
!

i

i |) companies wnh whom a partrc:patory relatmnshnp exlsts 5

4 H
Al

“AMOUNTS OWED TO NON-CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES ‘

in € millions

1
P
[ S
’ Non-consolidated

E subsidiaries
Total

Lﬁwz.zoos 1. 1 200;
l 9 3 |

el 1)

o e et s e e e




52 Provisions

" ANALYSIS OF PROVISIONS
in € millions

e 22003 | 112003 |
Provisions forvpréhgans and T o '
similar obligations 140 131
Restrdéturing provisions ] » |
compliant with 1as 37 35 n
Loan-loss provisions r‘—' 6 | 6

‘[L Other prqvi;ions 29 | 10

| thereof: | ]

Ldng-term liabilities to
employees

Results
Notes

Notes to the Balance Sheet

The following interest rates and valuation
parameters were applied when calculating the pro-
vision for in-house pension entitlements:

| INTEREST RATES AND PARAMETERS. |
j in%

T [ 3mace3 | 112003
v interest rate e 5.5 . ' 5.5
5]

| Rate of increasein

; pension obligations 1.5
E Rate of increase in future
compensation and vested

rights 25

Rate of increase over career

Total

PENSION PROVISIONS Provisions for
pensions and similar obligations include in-house
employer’s pension direct commitments for com-
pany penhsions payable to employees of the Hypo
Real Estate Group.

In-house employer’s pension commitments
are partly dependent on final salary, and partly
based on modular plans with dynamic adjustment
of vested rights. In addition, group companies pay
contributions for commitments by external institutes.
The pension obligations financed via pension funds
or retirement benefit corporations with matching .
cover are either contribution-based {(defined contri-
bution plan) or can be treated as contribution-based
pension obligations in material terms pursuant to
IAS 19.58 and 1as 19.104. Expenses in respect of
contribution-based pension obligations amounted to
€ 3 million.

The cash value of earned in-house pension
obligations amounted to € 137 million.
Unrealised actuarial losses amounted to
€ 3 million; the 10% corridor was not exceeded.
The change in the liabilities-side provision
for pension obligations was as follows:

| ANALYSIS OF THE PENSION OBLIGATIONS

S
E in € millions l

i
t
i

. Balance at1.1.2003

| +Pension expenses
| !

i - Payments affecting liquidity LW B 5
; +/;Changes not affecting income [--W_wi
| Balance at31.12.2003 | " 130

i
|

i

Pension expenses camprise € 4 million repre-
senting the present value of pension entitlements
earned during the fiscal year as well as interest ex-
penses of € 7 million.

-

13



RES“TRUCTUR]iNEKND OTHER PROVISIONS

in € milligns |
T o T Restructuring  Lloan-loss ~ Other |
provisions provisions provisions ‘

. pursuant toias 37 ;

| Balance at1.1.2003 n 6 10 ;
! Transfers to provisions 33 2 23
Reversals ) - -1 =2 :
Reclassifications - -1 -1

! Amounts used| -9 - -1 ‘
; Balance at 31.122003 35 6 29

In particular, restructuring provisions were
formed pursuant to 1AS 37 for the restructuring of
the business segment Hypo Real Estate Germany.
The provisions largely relate to manpower reduc-
tion programmes that have already been agreed.

53 Other liabilities

Other provisions include provisions for litiga-
tion expenses, payment of damages, provisions for
anticipated losses and long-term liabilities towards
employees such as provisions for anniversary pay-
ments, early retirement or part-time jobs for older
employees.

i
H

{
[ -
| in € millions

P N e A Al i i

}

H - . e e
; Negative fair values from derivative financial instruments
[ b . -
| Otherliabilities
|
|
!
!
i
|

. r
i Deferred income

| Total

1.1.2003

| 31122003 |

T
[ 391 546
95 | 207 |

NEGATIVE FAIR VALUES FROM DERIVA-
TIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS The item nega-
tive fair values from derivative financial instruments
includes in particular derivatives used to secure
against changes in market interest rates.

OTHER LIABILITIES Other liabilities mainly
include liabilities from the offsetting of results and

also interest deferrals and accruals pursuant to
IAS 37. Accruals include in particular trade
accounts payable in respect of invoices still out-
standing, short-term liabilities to employees and
other accruals in respect of commission, interest,
operating expensss, etc.




54  Taxliabilities The item tax liabilities com-
prises tax liabilities relating to current taxes and
deferred tax liabilities:

E

|
Results l 15
Notes |
Notes to the Balance Sheet |

| SUBORDINATED CAPITAL, BROKEN DOWN BY

|
| MATURATIES in € millions !
|

E 514.;5_.‘2“55;;} 112003 |
. With agreed maturities ] |
| upto3months :::::_3_27 99 ]
E from 3 months to1 year - —56-1 83 |
f from1year to 5 years [::;‘2783“ 614 ;
| from s years and over 1,067 | 1183 |
’ Total 2,476 1979 |

| in € millions E
T | 31a2.2003 mﬁmwi.fzboaw}
| Current tax liabilities T 5g | 73|
| Deferred tax liabilities [ 1,219 ' 1871 ]
| Total | 1,273 1,944 {
1
{
;

-
¢
i
i

The item current tax liabilities contains both
provisions for taxes on income and also income tax
liabilities. There was a reduced need for provisions
due to the profit and loss pooling agresment con-
cluded between Wiirttembergische Hypotheken-
bank AG and DIA Vermégensverwaltungs-GmbH,
which has now been merged into Hypo Real Estate
Holding AG (see also Note 33).

Compared with January 1, 2003, the item
deferred tax liabilities was reduced by € 652 million.

55 Subordinated capital

| ANALYSIS OF SUBORDINATED CAPITAL

i in € millions
{

i T suaces | taaces
| Subordinated liabilities T 1228
Participati'h‘gfértificates T
. outstanding

t Total 2,476 1979 |

f

| |
! J

In fiscal 2003, in accordance with bank regu-
latory requirements based on the provisions of sec-
tion 10 paras. 5 and 5 a of the German Banking Act
[Kreditwesengesetz, KWG] and also in accordance
with the Recommendation on Equity issued by the
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision in July
1988, the subordinated capital was shown as core
capital, supplementary capital and/or tier III capital.

SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES Subordinated
liabilities do not contain any individual items ac-
counting for more than 10% of the overall amount.

With all subcrdinated liabilities, there can be
no early repayment obligation on the part of the
issuer. In the event of bankruptcy or liquidation,
such liabilities may only be repaid once all non-sub-
ordinate creditors have been satisfied.

Interest expenses of € 114 million arose in
respect of subordinated liabilities. The subordinated
liabilities contain pro rata interest of € 40 million.

There were no subordinated liabilities to
non-consolidated subsidiaries and companies with
whom a participatory relationship exists.

3
|
\
¢
|
J
|
!
}
i
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Issued participatory capital mainly comprises

the following issues:

| PARTICIPATING CERTIFICATES OUTSTANDING

tion certificates

2 in € millions
| Clssuer " Yearofissue ~ Type  Nominal  Interestrate  Maturity |
J amount
| in € millions in%
| Hypo Real Es’c:;‘f“eT Bank aG 1995  Bearer participa- 26 8.25 2006
:} tion certificates
! HypoReal Estate Bank AG 1995  Bearer participa- 38 8.00 2006
tion certificates
Hypo Real Estate Bank AG 1995  Bearer participa- 64 variable 2006
“ tion certificates interest rate
Hypo Real Estate Bank AG 1999  Bearer participa- 70 7.00 2010
3 tion certificates
ﬁ%o Real Estate Bank AG 1993 Bearer participa- 38 7.00 2009
‘ : tion certificates
! HypoReal Estate Bank AG 1998  Bearer participa- 38 variable 2010
E tion certificates interest rate
‘] Hypo Real EstateﬂHolding AG 1997  Bearer participa- 102 © 6.75 2007
| tion certificates
* Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank ac 1994  Bearer participa- 51 7.90 2004
( tion certificates
; Wirttembergische Hypothekenbank A 1997  Bearer participa- 102 6.75 2008
: ‘ tion certificates
E Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank ac 2001 Bearer participa- 50 7.00 2012
| ‘ tion certificates
i Wurttembergische Hypothekenbank ag 2002  Bearer participa- 50 7.00 20713
| .

The interest entitlement is reduced to the
extent that a payout would result in the respective
issuer recording an annual deficit or net loss for the
year. Holders of participating certificates outstand-
ing participate in any net loss for the year recorded
by an issuer through a reduction in their repayment
entitlements; this is based on the ratio between the
repayment entitlements and the subscribed capital

as shown in the balance sheet plus revenue reserves
and additional paid-in capital as well as participa-
tory capital.

Net profits for subsequent years must be used
to bring repayment entitlements back up to their
nominal value. The participating certificates out-
standing certify subordinated creditor rights; they
do not guarantee any share in liquidation proceeds.

P
i
{
I
i
|
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56  Minority interests

in € millions

DN

¢ Balance at1.1.2003 ) 126
ACFhan‘ges in valuation financial instruments
not affecting income

l Tréhsfer from net incom__e" )

i Changes in consolidated group

Changes ari's>ihg'from foreign currency

' Balance at 31.12.2003

57 Shareholders’ equity On December 31, 2003,
Hypo Real Estate Holding AG’s subscribed capital of
€ 402 million was divided into:

| ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
|

Number
L

Nates to the Balance Sheet

CASH FLOW HEDGE RESERVE During the
year under review, the cash flow hedge reserve
rose by € 297 million from € -1,166 million to
€ -1,463 million. This rise is largely (€ 172 million)
due to the acquisition of the minority interests in
the mortgage bank participating interests as this led
to a corresponding reduction in the minority inter-
est relating to the cash flow hedge reserve.

58  Treasury stock Neither we nor any of our
dependent companies or companies in which we
have a majority holding held shares (own shares)
in Hypo Real Estate Holding AG.

59  Foreign-currency assets and liabilities Trans-
lated into euros, the total amount of assets in foreign
currencies on the balance sheet date was € 16.7 bil-
lion and the total amount of foreign-currency liabili-
ties was € 11.9 billion. Of these, our most important
foreign currencies accounted for the following
amounts:

|
[ in € millions |

i Shares of common bearer stock A ﬁ}é@;ﬁ; P i
\ Shares of registered non-voting preferred stock { 3,638,400 A ‘ ; . Bﬁi{geij 112063—“
‘ ™ ! Foreign-currency assets {j—ﬁj 9,558
’ g of which w~ﬁ

. usb . &30,_52' 2,463
T AUTHORISED CAPITAL INCREASE | | JpY 1045 | 592
: in € mitlions é CHF 2,594

r Year resolution Mkilé}iabléM—”variginarw “Balance ;t~

|

|
|
2,094 j
|
|
|

Foreign-currency liabilities 11156] 14,367

of which L
Uso 332 ] 8,898
1 - CHF 3,168 1,922

% adopted unit amount 31.12.2003

E 2003 13.5.2008 120 120
s — o
!

|

!

| ANALYSIS OF RETAINED EARNINGS T i
f in € millions ‘1
| | 32003 [ 112003 |
é Legal reserve N - [
| Reserve for treasury stock - -
i Other retained earnings - 358W1 368 %
| Total 358 | 368 i

®
| T‘

There are considerable differences between
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies as only
balance-sheet items have been taken into account
here. The off-balance-shest volume ~ which also
includes the volume to secure transactions con-

’ cluded ~ is not shown.

Results
Notes

|
|
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60  Trustbusiness The following tables show the
volume of fiduciary business not shown in the con-

solidated balance sheet.

| TRUST ASSETS

in € millions

"| THESE ARE ANALYSED AS FOLLOWS

61 Assets assigned or pledged as security for own
liabilities

! in € miliions ]

sz.zoo; ]

6,926

521 -

E - 'Nﬁ T 31.12.2933_{ 1.1‘.>z"oog.mg Deposits from other banks
Loans and advances to S { Contingent liabilities

customers 1,182 10 { ‘ Total o V
! Total 1 1,182 10 ;

i
;
\
;
]
!

| TRUST LIABILITIES

in € millions

e et e e A

Deposits from other banks
Other liabilities|
Total

112003
109

-

7447 5,214 |

7
i
i t
H t
i
i

The assets pledged as security for own liabili-
ties can be broken down as follows:

'ANALYSIS OF ASSETS PLEDGED |

1

in € millions I

112003 |

L-ss_m -
L 529 559

Investments o [ 6385 |
Total o | =

Placements w'ith,rloéns and
advances to other banks
Loans and advances to

customers




Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

62  Notes tothe items in the Cash Flow Statement
The cash flow statement shows the payment flows
for the fiscal year, classified according to “operating
activities”, “investing activities” and “financing
activities”. Operating activities are given a wide basis
of definition with differentiation based on operating
results.

The item shown as cash and cash equivalents
corresponds to the balance sheet item “cash reserve”
and contains cash at hand and central bank balances.

The item entitled change in other non-cash-
flow-related items contains the changes in the valu-
ation of financial instruments, the net additions to
deferred taxes, the change in provisions, the change
in prorated and deferred interest, the reversal of
share premiums and share discounts, as well as
minority interests in the result for the year.

The item other adjustments contains the
results shown in the financial statements insofar as
the corresponding payments are shown separately
after the relevant sub-totals, i.e. interest and dividend
income, interest expense, extraordinary income and
expenses and expenses in respect of taxes on in-
come (IAS 7.29 et seq.). This item contains both the

Results | 119
Notes |

Notes to the Balance Shegt |

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement
Information on Finencial Instruments compliant with IAS 32

non-cash-flow-related and cash-flow-related result
components. Cash-flow-related results are added
back (inflows) or deducted (outflows) after the sub-
total and before the total cash flow from operating
activities.

Information on Financial Instruments compliant
with IAS 32

63 Fairvalues of financial instruments The recog-

nised fair values of financial instruments pursuant
to IAS 32 correspond to the amounts at which, in
our opinion, an asset could be exchanged on the
balance-sheet date between willing, independent
expert business partners or at which a liability could
be settled between such business partners.

The fair values were determined as at the
balance sheet date based on the market information
available and using the Company’s own methods of
calculation.

The fair values of certain financial instruments
reported at nominal values are almost identical to
their carrying amounts. These include, for example,
the cash reserve and receivables and liabilities with-
out a specific maturity or interest tie-up. For other

e

; in € millions
N T carrying amounts " Fairvalue
2003 2003
! Assets _ !
| Cash reserve 489 489 |
% Placements with, loans and advances to other banks 24,98 29,105
g Loéds and ad:vanc!s_sfo customers ‘85;505 87,972
| Investments 36,471 36,773
{ Other assets 5,029 5,029
Liabilities h |
Deposits from other banks 19,351 20,862 [
Amour'jtsﬁq'\fv'eq to other depositors ) ] 7844 8,249 ;
Promissory notes and other liabilities evidenced by securities 110,153 12,681 |
| Otherliabilities ’ 8,786 ' 8,786
Subo'rdinated capitéi 2,476 2,518
Other items l
i‘ Coﬁtingént Iiabi}l»itAi.e>sA » 9,005 9,005
Irrevocable loan commitments 2,571 2,571
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receivables and liabilities, the future expectéd cash
flows are discounted to the present value using cur-
rent interest rates.

Quoted market prices are applied for market
securities and derivatives as well as for quoted debt
instruments. The fair value of other securities is
determined as'the present value of future expected
cash flows.

The fair values of interest and currency inter-

est swap agreements and also interest rate futures
are determined on the basis of discounted future
expected cash flows. The market interest rates appli-
cable to the remaining maturity of the financial
instruments are used for the purpose of this calcula-
tion.

The fair value of forward exchange transac-
tions is determined on the basis of current forward
rates. Options are valued using exchange rate quota-
tions or recognised models for determining option
prices.

The fair values of irrevocable loan commit-
ments and contingent liabilities correspond to their
carrying amounts.

For assets, the difference between fair values
and carrying amounts amounts to € 6.9 billion and for
liabilities € 4.5 billion. The balance of these amounts
is € 2.4 billion. The development of this parameter
over time depends on changes in market prices and
the valuation parameters applied in calculating fair
values, including in particular changes in interest
rates and changes in financial instrument portfolios.

64  Economic assessment of the cash flow hedge
reserve Control of our mortgage banks is based on
ensuring extensive hedging against interest rate
risks so that future income is protected against inter-
est rate risks at an early stage. These hedging meas-
ures take place at portfolic level — in other words,
corresponding, homogenous portfolios are hedged,
rather than individual loans.

At present, these hedging transactions that
are justified in economic terms and referred to as
macro fair value hedges are not recognised under the
current provisions of 1AS 39. Although in principle
the current draft “Recognition and Measurement —
Fair Value Hedge Accounting for a Portfolio Hedge
of Interest Rate Risk” will in future enable the recog-
nition of such portfolio-based hedging transactions,
it will not be possible to make the effectiveness test

prescribed for this commensurate with a Bank’s con-
trol systems. It is therefore unlikely that correspon-
ding reporting will be possible even after the new
standard enters into effect.

In financial terms, it is not appropriate to show
only fluctuations in the market values of derivatives
via the current income statement and not the oppos-
ing fluctuations in the market values of the under-
lying transactions; it has therefore been decided to
apply cash flow hedge accounting and show the
fluctuations in the market values of derivatives as
not affecting net profit or loss. However, this means

that the corresponding effect must be shown under

shareholders’ equity.

Taking the above into consideration, the fol-
lowing section outlines the effects on our financial
statements for the year ending December 31, 2003.

According to current IAS provisions (1AS 39.10),
loans and advances must be classified into the fol-
lowing categories:

1. Originated loans and receivables

2. Available for sale

3. Held to maturity

As our loans and advances mainly relate to loans
and advances to customers or financial institutions
within the real estate or municipal sector, the ma-
jority of our loans and advances are classified under
“originated loans and receivables” or “held to
maturity”. According to [AS 39.68 and IAS 39.73,
these categories must be shown at amortised cost.
According 10 1AS 39.69, the derivatives used for
hedging purposes must be shown at their market
price. This means that because of the development
of interest rates, a negative cash flow hedge reserve
is determined even in the case of an effective cash
flow hedge.

In order to evaluate the economic signifi-
cance of this deducting item in the shareholders’
equity pursuant to IAS 39.158 a, the balanced hid-
den reserves {difference between carrying amounts
and market value (fair value) must be considered in
the interest-bearing assets and liabilities as at
December 31, 2003 {cf. Note 63 on 1S 32). On the
balance-sheet date, the cash flow hedge valuation
result amounted to €-~1,463 million, whereas the
balanced hidden reserves amounted to € 2,407 mil-
lion. The hidden reserves are therefore clearly
higher than the negative valuation result relating to
the cash flow hedge.
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65  Significant concentrations of assets and
liabilities The Group’s assets and liabilities exhibit
a balanced structure and do not contain any signifi-
cant areas of concentration.

| SHARE OF LOAN VOLUME

in%
B o | 322003 | 112003
:! L. - eSS S vad
i Municipal loans 0.
| Municip sl 8
| Mortgageloans 45.7 481
Other loans and advances " 6o | 2.8

Contingent liabilities
Total ' » |

73? 01
100.0 100.0

1
1
|
|
|

|
|

Similarly, the balanced maturities structure
of our liabilities does not reveal any significant con-
centrations of risk.

Detailed information on the risks associated
with our business is contained in the Risk Report.

66  Key capital ratios (based on the German Com-
mercial Code) According to the Recommendation
on Equity issued by the Basel Committee for Bank-
ing Supervision in July 1988, the core capital ratio
{core capital/risk weighted assets) may not fall
below 4.0 % and the equity capital ratio (share-
holders’ equity/risk weighted assets) may not be
less than 8.0 %. At the same time, the equity funds
ratio calculated on the basis of the relationship
between equity funds and total risk weighted assets
plus 12.5 times the weighting amount for items sub-
ject to market price risk (including options transac-
tions) must be at least 8.0 %.

Equity funds consist of core capital and
supplementary capital (shareholders’ equity) plus
tier I1I capital and are comprised as follows, accord-
ing to approved annual financial statements as at
December 31, 2003:

Results
Notes

Information on Financial Instruments compliant with 1AS 32
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1) C:;’};;x‘nlid‘at*ed pursuéngyk'o—sgctviarloié a;myar;Ban’kingrAa\[;(vwzir]‘.

" EQUITY FUNDSY

in € millions
o [ 31122003

Core capital - 717245

! Supplementary capital mw;;{
Equity capital 6,248
Tier Ill capital L
Total equity funds j 6,248

The risk weighted assets and positions sub-
ject to market risk were as follows:

| RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS

in € biltions

On-balance-sheet assets
i Off-balance-sheet assets

Total risk weighted assets

Positions subject to market risk in € millions
! Currency risks '

Total positions subject to market risk

Calculated in accordance with the Basel Re-
commendation on Equity, the following ratios

applied as at December 31, 2003 (based on approved

annual financial statements):

- KEY CAPITAL RATIOS

|

i
i
)

i in%

L i o LAii‘.Kiz.“iT)aj* .
| Core capital ratio F 76
t Equity capital ratio Y

I Equity funds ratio (overall indicator) Y

pr— S— e,

!
|

According to sections 10 and 10 a of the
German Banking Act [KWG] equity funds amount to
€ 6,366 million. The liable shareholders’ equity,
which comprises core capital and supplementary
capital less the deductible item, also amounts to
€ 6,366 million. Supplementary capital does not
include any unrealised reserves pursuant to section
10 para. 2 b sentence 1 nos. 6 and 7 of the German
Banking Act [KWG].
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67  Contingent liabilities and other commitments

l in € millions

Contingent Iiab’ilities’)
From guarantees and mdemmty agreements
Performance guarantees and mdemmtles

Other |IabI|ItIGS\

Irrevocable Ioan commitments
Book credits
Mortgage and{municipal loans

Other commitﬁents
+
Total

1.1.2003

[ 31122003 |
L9095 130
| 9,005 130
L9005 | 130
|
w9 ] 1873
N -
2,535 1,871
T 26 2|
i 1,602 2,003 ,

[

1) ln pnncnp\e the amount of :ontmgent habn\mes equa‘les to the amount of contmgent cI ms.

The contingent liabilities from performance
guarantees and indemnities include guarantee obli-
gations of Hypo Real Estate Bank International vis-
a-vis HVB AG in an amount of € 5.2 billion; these
were issued as part of the synthetic transfer of the
“Western Europe” real estate finance portfolio.

The other contingent liabilities and other lia-
bilities do not contain any individual items of sig-
nificant importance.

68  Information on relationships with related parties

in€

Hypo Real Estate Holding AG has issued the
loss indemnity declaration for the deposit protec-
tion fund established by the Bundesverband
deutscher Banken e.V. Berlin as prescribed by the
applicable Articles of Association.

k REMUNERATION PAID TO MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY’S ORGANS

! To members ofthe Executive Board of Hypo Real Estate Holdlng AG
’ Georg Funke, Chalrman
Johann Berger
Or.Paul Eisele .
Dr.Markus Fell *

Frank Lafnby

i for Supervisory Board activities

- . i - S e - - e e
To members of the Supervisory Board of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG

Fixed  Profitt  Long-term Total
related incentive
components? components
2003 2003 2003 2003
P 164 soo 3,450, 000 - 5,554,500
750 ooo 1350000 - 2,100,000
h 300 000 450, 000 - 750,000‘
249, soo“ v 620 000 - 869,500
460 000 450, ooo - 850,000
» '405,000 ) 580 000 - 985,006
243,600 - - 243,600

_1) Pro%ft-relaied remun?erét‘ib}l f-ovrhz;c”zoj but only paid in 2604. h ’
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In 2003, the members of the Supervisory
Board did not receive any remuneration for per-

sonal services.

On the balance-sheet date, there were no
receivables or contingent liabilities in respect of
members of the Supervisory and Executive Boards

of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG.

Shares and share derivatives of Hypo Real Estate
Holding AG purchased or sold by members of the

Executive and Supervisory Boards since the first

quotation of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG shares, in
accordance with the disclosure obligation pursuant
to section 15 a of the Securities Trading Act [WpHG]

{directors’ dealings}):

| DIRECTORS DEALINGS 1

[ |

; Typeof Name of the Securities  Completion Price per No. of Nominal ’ j

| transaction security or identification date share securities amount of | !

4 derivative number/ the security/ |

| ISIN number derivative ,

\ Kurt F.Viermetz Purchase Ordinary wkn: 802770 6.10.2003 £11.2725 10,000 €3~ [ |

! bearer shares ISIN: DE per share |

! of Hypo 0008027707 total |

} Real Estate €30,000-~ ?

| Holding aG | y
|

On December 31, 2003, the members of the
Executive and Supervisory Boards together held

less than 1% of the total shares issued by

Estate Holding AG.

69 Employees

| AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Hypo Real

Employees(ekciuding trainees)
i Fﬁlljtimeemployééé

f Part-time efnployees

| Trainees

! . -
{ Total
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70  Summary of quarterly financial data

i
H
|

in € millions

.

D

| 1Quar‘ter 2 Quartér 3. QuAa'rtérm '4. Quarter - ;‘
" 7 2003 o 2003 2003 2003

Income/expenﬂses A - - - 1

‘ Net interest inicome o 168 ”V@o 181 175 J

| Provisions for losses on loans and advances 63 67 59 63

5 Net interest inéome after provisions for losses onloansandadvances 103 83 122 m2 ‘
Net tofnmissic;n income o - 2 12 - N |
General admin;istra‘tive expenses ‘ 57 ”59 7 73

| Balance of other operating income and expenses 3 2 6 8|

| Operating resuflf R 47 o 57 88 |
Net income fro\‘m investments -7 . 9 ‘ -15 12

i Balance ofothérincome/expenses -5 12 -18 -34

| Result ofordinéw activities/result before taxes '35 ' j1 24 ' 66
Taxes on incom;a . ' 7' 8 28 -3

| Netincome ' 28 23 -4 69 i

i ;

L

n Summary of annual financial data

% in € millions |

S ES e eSS 2003 “roonl S
Income/expensés i ' - ‘i

| Netinterest inco‘yme 674 670 733 |
Provisions for Iogses on loans and advances 25‘2 505~ 282

| Net interest income after provisions for losses on loans and advances 422 165 451

[ Net commission{income o . 45 n 17
Trading result A ) o . - -1
General adminis{rative expehses 260 23§ 227
Balance of otherbperatingincome and expenses '19> oy 52

} Operating result_;rm B B 226 ) 4—~42 292 |

2 Netincome from“investments -1 62 §6 1
Balance of other income and expenses ~-69 -4 -13 |
Resuit ofordinari} activities/result before taxes T ) o 156 T 345 {
Taxes on income » . 46 ' 27 103 |
Net income ! 16 en 242

)

: 1) The financial a‘ata-a's‘ at December 31:‘2-00.5 and ‘avlus\o"trr;ﬂé-c.grﬁpav‘étiv; figuresvfmd’rbut'h'e“;i.s‘ca'IM;éa‘r‘érwvvdvilhg“bécve»ﬁ{l;; ;12501 are bérse’d on i??eus—eghr;nerﬁbt"a;t‘a”f‘o; MVE AG'S
“Hypo Group” segment contained in the consolidated financial statements of HvB ag for fiscal 2002 (including the comparative figures for fiscal 2001); they have been
enhanced in terms of Gepth of detail and the figures for fGH Bank have been excluded,

{
|
!
i




72 Members of the Supervisory Board and of the
Executive Board
SUPERVISORY BOARD EXECUTIVE BOARD
Kurt F. Viermetz, Chairman Georg Funke, Chairman
Dr. Ferdinand Graf von Ballestrem Johann Berger
Dr. Gotz Wricke Dr. Paul Eisele
Dr. Markus Fell
Frank Lamby

Munich, March 12, 2004

Hypo Real Estate Holding
Aktiengesellschaft

The Executive Board
Funke Berger Eisele Fell Lamby
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Auditor’s Report

We have audited the consoclidated financial state-
ments, comprising the balance sheet, the income
statement and the statements of changes in share-
holders’ equity and cash flows as well as the notes
to the financial statements prepared by Hypo Real
Estate Holding AG for the business year from Janu-
ary 1, 2003 to December 31, 2003. The preparation
and the content of the consolidated financial state-
ments in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS) are the responsibility of
the Company’s management, Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these consolidated finan-
cial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with German
auditing regulations and German generally accepted
standards for the audit of financial statements prom-
ulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftspriifer (fpw).
Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit such that it can be assessed with reason-
able assurance whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatements.
Knowledge of the business activities and the eco-
nomic and legal environment of the Group and
evaluations of possible misstatements are taken into
account in the determination of audit procedures.
The evidence supporting the amounts and disclo-
sures in the consolidated financial statements is
examined on a test basis within the framework
of the audit. The audit includes assessing the ac-
counting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial

staternents. We believe that our andit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the net assets,
financial position, results of operations and cash
flows of the Hypo Real Estate Group for the business
year in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

Our audit, which also extends to the group
management report prepared by the Company’s
management for the business year from January 1,
2003 to December 31, 2003, has not led to any re-
servations. In our opinion on the whole the group
management report provides a suitable understand-
ing of the Group’s position and suitably presents the
risks of future development. In addition, we confirm
that the consolidated financial statements and the
group management report for the business year from
January 1, 2003 to December 31, 2003 satisfy the
conditions required for the Company’s exemption
from its duty to prepare consolidated financial state-
ments and the group management report in accor-
dance with German law.

‘Munich, March 19, 2004

KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft
Aktiengesellschaft
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft

Paskert Techet
Wirtschaftspriifer Wirtschaftspriifer
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SuperviSory Board

Name

Kurt F. Viermetz
Chairman
(since 14.5.2003)

Dr. Ferdinand Graf von Ballestrem
(since 14.5.2003)

Positions held on other statutory
supervisory boards of German
companies

ERGO Versicherungs-ac
(Member of the Supervisory Board)
since 5.6.2003

Ruhrgas AG
(Member of the Supervisory Board)
since 25.3.2003

Bayerische Hypo- und Vereinsbank AG
(Member of the Supervisory Board)
until 3112.2003

sHw Aktiengesellschaft
{Chairman of the Supervisory Board)

Renk Aktiengesellschaft
(Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board)

maN Technologie AG
(Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board)

MAN Roland Druckmaschinen ac
(Member of the Supervisory Board)

Bayerische Versicherungsbank ag
" (Member of the Supervisory Board)

HvB Real Estate Bank ac
{Member of the Supervisory Board)
until 30.9.2003

Membership of comparable controlling
bodies of commercial enterprises in
Germany and other countries

Grosvenor Estate Holdings Ltd.
(Member of the Supervisory Board)
London, Great Britain

Hypo Real Estate Bank International, puc
(Chairman of the Board of Directors)
Dublin, Ireland, since 12.11.2003

Mman Capital Corporation
(Chairman of the Board of Directors)

MF1 UK Ltd.
(Chairman of the Board of Directors)




Name Positions held on other statutory
supervisory boards of German
companies

Dr. Gotz Wricke
{since 14.5.2003)

Hamburg-Mannheimer
Rechtsschutzversicherungs-ac
(Chairman of the Supervisory Board)

HvB Real Estate Bank AG
(Member of the SupervisorynBoard)
until 30.9.2003

Boards 131
Supervisory Board

Membership of comparable controlling
bodies of commercial enterprises in
Germany and other countries

Hamburg-Mannheimer N.V.
{Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
Brussels, Belgium

Lion Belge S.A.
(Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
Brussels, Belgium

Union Versicherungs aG
{Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
Vienna, Austria
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Executive Board

Name

Georg Funke !
Chairman
(since 28.7.2003)

Johann Berger
{since 28.7.2003)

Dr. Paul Eisele
(since 28.7.2003)

Dr. Markus Fell

(since 28.7.2003)

* Group mandate

V

Positions held on other statutory
supervisory boards of German
companies

Hypo Real Estate Bank aG*
(Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
seit 1.10.2003

Westfalische Hypothekenbank ac*
{Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
12.3.2003-3.11.2003

Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank ac*
(Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
seit 7.5.2003

Westfalische Hypothekenbank ac*
12.3.2003~3.11.2003

Hypo Real Estate Bank Ac*
since 1.10.2003

*

Hypo Real Estate Bank A
since 1.10.2003

Westfalische Hypothekenbank Ac*
12.3.2003-3.11.2003

Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank ac*
since 8.8.2003

Membership of comparable controlling
bodies of commercial enterprisesin
Germany and other countries

FGH Bank N.V.*

{Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
Utrecht, the Netherlands

until 24.10.2003

pBt Pfandbrief Bank International S.A*
(Member of the Administrative
Board) Luxembourg, until1.9.2003

Bankenverband Baden-Wiirttemberg
(Member of the Board)

Verband Deutscher Hypothekenbanken e.V.

(Member of the Board)

Hypo Real Estate Capital France S.A*
(Membre du Conseil de Surveillance)
Paris, France

since10.7.2003

Hypo Real Estate Capital Ltd.”
(Non-Executive Member of the Board)
tondon, Great Britain

since 20.6.2003




Name

Continuation Dr. Markus Fell

Frank Lamby
(since 28.7.2003)

* Group mandate

Positions held on other statutory
supervisory boards of German
companies

Hypo Real Estate Bank ac*
(Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
since 1.10.2003

Westfalische Hypothekenbank ac*
18.7.2003~3.11.2003

Wirttembergische Hypothekenbank ac*
(Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
since 7.5.2003

Boards
Executive Board

Membership of comparable controlling
bodies of commercial enterprises in
Germany and other countries

Hypo Real Estate Capital Corporation*®
(Non-Executive Member of the Board)
New York/us, since 9.9.2003

pe) Pfandbrief Bank International 5. A*
(Member of the Administrative Board)
Luxembourg, since 1.9.2003

Hypo Real Estate Capital France S. A
(Vice-Président du Conseil de Surveillance)
Paris, France

Hypo Real Estate Capital Ltd.
(Non-Executive Member of the Board)
London, Great Britain

Hypo Real Estate Capital Corporation®
(Non-Executive Member of the Board)
New York/us, seit 2.5.2003

Hypo Real Estate Capital Iberia S.L."
(Miembro del Consejo de Administracién)
Madrid/Spain

eNL-Beteiligungsgesellschaft
Neue Lander GmbH & Co. kG
(Member of the Advisory Council)
until 31.12.2003
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Glossary

Advanéed approach Under the advanced
approach method, a bank with a sufficiently devel-
oped internal capital allocation procedure (strict
criteria in terms of methodology and disclosure) is
permitted to use its internal assessments regarding
the credit standing of a debtor when assessing the
credit risk within its portfolio.

There dre specialised analysis procedures for
different types of loan commitments — e.g. loans
to corporates and retail customers — that exhibit dif-
ferent loss characteristics.

Asset/liability management "Measures$ by a
bank to manage the balance-sheet structure and
to limit the risks resulting from mismatched maturi-
ties and insufficient liquidity.

Assets book Risk-carrying positions that are
not allocated to the > trading book.

Available-for-sale assets Financial assets that
are available for the company to sell and that do not
relate to loans, financial instruments held for trad-
ing or > held-to-maturity financial instruments.
Available-for-sale financial instruments include in
particular fixed-income securities that cannot or
should not be held to maturity and also equity
instruments with no final maturity.

Basel Il The term ‘Basel II’ stands for a new
capital adequacy framework, which will be pre-
sented by the Basel Committee on Banking Super-
vision in summer 2004. The committee meets on a
regular basis atithe Bank for International Settle-
ments (BIS) and is formed by representatives of the
central banks and banking supervisors of the major
developed nations. It gives general strategic recom-
mendations on the framework and standards for
banking supervision. Basel II will in comparison to
the first capital adequacy framework (Basel I) from
1988 define new general conditions for the measure-
ment of risk weighted assets and the minimum

capital requirements for credit institutions. The
transformation of these guidelines to German law is
expected to be done by 1.1.2007.

BIS Bank for International Settlements head-
quartered in Basle; as the central bank of the central
banks, it is in particular responsible for cross-border
banking supervision and for the establishment of
internationally valid equity capital requirements for
supraregionally operating banks.

BIS equity funds Equity capital that is recog-
nised for regulatory purposes and complies with the
Recommendation on Equity issued by the Basel
Committee for Banking Supervision in July 1988
(last amended in January 1996) for financial insti-
tutes operating on the international stage. It com-
prises liable equity capital (Tier-1 capital and sup-
plementary capital) and tier III capital:
| Tier-1 capital or tier I capital: largely subscribed
capital, reserves and certain hybrid capital instru-
ments,
| Supplementary capital or tier I capital: includes
in particular participatory capital, long-term subor-
dinated liabilities, unrealised gains from listed secu-
rities and other valuation adjustments for inherent
risks.
| Tier IlI capital: mainly comprises short-term sub-
ordinated liabilities and surplus supplementary
capital.

Blue Chips Description for shares with high
market capitalisation, high exchange transactions
and high popularity, which mostly form part of the
main index in their country of origin.

Capacity to meet interest payments Degree to
which the rental income from a financed building
must, in long-term financing, at least cover the inter-
est service payments.

Ratio: DSC (debt service coverage)




Cash flow hedge Security against the risk of
loss of future interest payments under a variable-
interest balance-sheet transaction obtained by
means of a > swap.

Cash flow statement Representation of a
company's inflow or outflow of funds from operat-
ing, investment and financing activities during a fis-
cal year and calculation of the cash in hand (cash
reserve) at the beginning and end of the fiscal year.

CDAX The CDAX contains all German compa-
nies from the Prime and General Standard market
segments. The index represents the entire breadth of
the German stock market, i.e. all companies listed
on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange.

Clearing bank A bank that is a member of a
national clearing system for the multilateral
clearing of receivables and liabilities in interbank
transactions.

Coliateral risk Risk of a potential loss in the
value of collateral due to factors relating to a
specific property or emanating from the real estate
market.

Commercial paper (cp) Money market instru-
ments in the form of bearer instruments that do not
have standardised maturities but can be geared to
individual investment requirements and are paid on
a discount basis.

Their maturities vary between 1 and
270 days.

They are issued on the money market by
debtors with an irreproachable credit standing; they
are issued in high amounts and with high minimum
nominal values.

Glossary

Concentrationrisk Risk resulting from con-
centration of the credit risk on a single party (coun-
terparty, issuer, country or borrowing customer) in
the portfolio or among a group of parties that over a
period of time exhibit a parallel development in
terms of probability of default — caused, for exam-
ple, by similar economic dependencies. Synonym:
cluster risk

Corporate governance Corporate governance
refers to the legal and factual framework for manag-
ing and monitoring companies. The recommenda-
tions of the German Corporate Governance Code
create transparency and are intended to strengthen
confidence in good and responsible management;
they are primarily aimed at protecting shareholders.

Cost-income ratio Relationship between gen-
eral administrative expenses and the total of net
interest income, net commission income, trading
profit/loss and net other operating income and
expenses; a low cost-income ratio indicates high
productivity.

Counterparty risk Risk that, as a result of
default on the part of a contracting partner, it will no
longer be possible to collect an unrealised profit
from outstanding interest- and currency-related
derivative and futures transactions.

The counterparty risk is differentiated
according to settlement risk {(from the value date
until settlement) and pre-settlement risk (from the
date of conclusion until the value date).

Country risk’ Risk that a business partner in a
certain country will be unable to fulfil his contractu-
ally agreed obligations due to political or social
unrest, nationalisation or expropriation, non-recog-
nition by governments of foreign debts, currency
controls or a devaluation of the national currency.
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Credit Hefault swap Financial contract where
the risk of a credit event that is specified in advance
(e.g. insolverncy or deterioration in credit standing)
is transferred by an assignee to a guarantor. Irrespec-
tive of whether or not the credit event materialises,
the guarantor receives a regular premium payment
from the assignee for taking the credit risk.

Credit derivatives Derivative financial instru-
ments that allow one party to the transaction
(assignee) to transfer the credit risk relating to a loan
or a security to another party (guarantor) against
payment of a premium. The risk purchaser therefore
bears the credit risk relating to the loan or security
without actually having to purchase it (e.g. > credit
default swap, > total return swap or > credit-linked
note). :

Credit risk Credit risks include the loan
default risk, counterparty risk, issuer risk and coun-
try risk; they refer to the potential loss that could
result from the default or deterioration in credit
ratings of loan icustomers, of issuers of borrowers’
note loans promissory notes and debt securities, or
of counterparties in money-market, securities and
derivatives transactions.

Credit-linked notes A note issued by an
assignee that is only repaid at the nominal value on
maturity if a previously specified credit event does
not materialise jon the side of the debtor. If the credit
event does actually occur, the credit-linked note is
repaid after deducting the agreed compensatory
amount. In contrast to credit default swaps and total
return swaps, the assignee receives his monetary
payment in advance from the guarantor.

DAX Measures the performance of Germany's
30 largest companies within the Prime Standard
segmient in term's of order-book sales and market
capitalisation. The index is based on the prices of
the Xetra electronic trading system. Calculation

commences at 9.00 a.m. and ends with the prices
from the Xetra closing auction that starts at
5.30 p.m.

Debt issuance programme (p1P) Framework
agreement for the simplified launching of capital
market issues with a maximum utilisation volume.
A DIP is not a debt instrument but a platform that is
in particular designed to standardise and simplify
international issuing processes.

Debt service coverage margin Relationship
between the net income that can be earned from
a property and the debt service applicable to the
property in question.

Default probability Expected average proba-
bility that a business partner will fail to fulfil his
obligations, based on statistical analyses of historic
default patterns.

Deferred taxes Taxes on income that are
payable or receivable at a future date and that result
from different carrying amounts being shown in the
fiscal and commercial balance shests, On the report-
ing date, they do not yet represent actual receivables
or liabilities vis-a-vis tax authorities.

Degree of diversification Degree to which the
portfolio is spread across several countries and sec-
tors of industry in order to reduce risk.

Developer Developers develop and execute
real estate projects (generally large commercial proj-
ects) with the aim of securing a swift sale.

'Dow Jones EURO STOXX 50 A European blue-
chip index. It contains the 50 leading stocks within
the Euro zone.

DOW JONES INDUSTRIAL AVERAGE (ps1a)
INDEX The broadest market indicator showing the




performance of the United States’ New York Stock
Exchange. A price index comprising the weighted
average of 30 actively traded blue-chip stocks,
mainly industrial stocks.

Due diligence here: Detailed analysis of real
estate properties in terms of possible risks present
(e.g. soil and groundwater contamination).

Earnings per share Indicator comparing the
net income for the year after taxes with the average
number of ordinary shares.

Fairvalue Amount at which an asset would
be exchanged or a debt settled between expert, inde-
pendent, willing business partners; often identical
with the market price.

Fair-value hedge Hedging of a fixed-income
balance-sheet position (e.g. a receivable or a secu-
rity) against the market risk by means of a > swap; it
is valued at market value (> fair value}.

Financial instruments This term is in particu-
lar used to summarise credits and loans extended,
interest-bearing securities, shares, participating
interests, liabilities and derivatives.

Forward transactions The purchase/sale of
financial instruments on a fixed date and at a fixed
price; a distinction is made between contingent for-
ward transactions (> options) and unconditional for-
ward transactions (> futures). In contrast to spot
transactions, the date when the contract is con-
cluded and the date of performance for the contract
are different.

Futures Contracts that are standardised in
terms of volume, quality and settlement date under
which a trading item belonging to the money mar-
ket, investment market, precious metals market or
currency market is to be delivered or purchased on a

Glossary

specific future date at the specified market price. In
many cases, a balancing payment has to be effected
in place of delivering or purchasing securities.

German Minimum Requirements for the Con-
duct of Lending Business (MaK) Minimum require-
ments that must be met by all credit institutes in
order to limit risks from lending business, taking
into account the respective type and extent of busi-
ness conducted.

German Minimum Requirements for the Con-
duct of Trading Operations{MaH) Minimum require-
ments that must be complied with by all financial
institutes in order to secure solvency and must be
supplemented/specified in more detail in internal
instructions, taking into account the respective type
and extent of trading activities.

They include requirements with regard to
risk control and risk management, the organisation
of trading operations and auditing, as well as regula-
tions for specific transaction types.

They were issued in October 1995 by the Fed-
eral Banking Supervisory Office (BaKred), which is
now known as the Federal Financial Supervisory
Office (BaFin).

Goodwill Amount that a purchaser of a com-
pany pays in excess of the > fair value of the indi-
vidual assets after deducting debts (= intrinsic
value), taking into account future expected earnings
(= net income value).

.Hedge accounting Depiction of contrary
developments in the values of a hedging transaction
(e.g. an interest rate swap) and an underlying trans-
action (e.g. a loan). Hedge accounting aims to min-
imise the impact on the income statement of the val-
uation and the recording of valuation results from
derivative transactions where such valuation and
recording affects net profit or loss.
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Hedging Transactions aimed at protecting
against the risk of unfavourable price trends (e.g.
currency and interest rate risks). A matching posi-
tion is set up for each position, so that the risk is off-
set either in whole or in part.

Held to maturity Financial assets acquired by
third parties that have a fixed maturity and fixed or
determinable payments, where the holder intends or
is able to hold the asset until final maturity.

Hybrid capital instruments Investment instru-
ments that are characterised by profit-related inter-
est payments. Where interest payments that have
not been made'when losses have occurred are not
paid at a later date (non-cumulative hybrid capital
instruments) and the instruments do not have a
fixed maturity date and/or cannot be terminated by
the creditor, then in accordance with regulatory
requirements such instruments belong to the Tier-1
capital. In all other cases, they must be allocated to
the supplementary capital (e.g. cumulative hybrid
capital instruments}).

International Accounting Standards (1as)
Accounting standards issued by the IASC (Interna-
tional Accounting Standards Committee}, a special-
ist international organisation backed by professional
associations that deal with accounting issues. The
aim is to develop transparent and comparable inter-
national accouriting systems.

International Financial Reporting Standards
(1rrs) The IFRS include the present International
Accounting Standards (> I45) and the interpreta-
tions of the Standing Interpretations Committee as
well as all standards and interpretations issued in
future by the IASB (International Accounting Stan-
dards Board).

Issuer risk Losses of securities hold in one’s
own portfolio due to a deterioration in the credit
standing of or default on the part of an issuer.

Loan default risk Risk of partial or total loss of
a payment that has been contractually agreed in a
loan contract by a business partner. Loan default
risk includes credit rating risk, > collateral risk and
> secondary risk.

Loan-to-value (LTv) Relationship between the
funds loaned to the borrower and the value of the
collateral.

Market risk Market risk results from changes
in market prices and rates (including interest rates,
share prices, exchange rates and commodity prices)
and also from the correlations between them and
their levels of volatility.

Market risk position The market risk position
pursuant to Principle I includes foreign-currency,
commodity and options risks as well trading-book
risk positions such as risks relating to interest rates
and share prices as well as > credit risks pertaining
to the trading book.

MDAX Contains the securities of the 50 Prime
Standard companies from traditional sectors rank-
ing after the companies listed in the DAX index in
terms of order-book sales and market capitalisation
{midcaps). The index is based on the prices of the
Xetra electronic trading system. Calculation com-
mences at 9.00 a.m. and ends with the prices from
the Xetra closing auction that starts at 5.30 p.m.
Medium term notes (MTN’s)

Dsbenture programme for the issue of unse-
cured debt instruments at different times. Volume,
currency and term (one to ten years) can be adapted
according to funding requirements.




Medium term notes (mTN’s) Debenture pro-
gramme for the issue of unsecured debt instruments
at different times. Volume, currency and term (one
to ten years) can be adapted according to funding
requirements.

Mortgage-backed securities (MBs) Securitisa-
tion of mortgage loans for precise control and reduc-
tion of credit risks.

MBS are securities whose interest and
redemption payments are linked to the payment
performance of a pool of loans secured by real estate
liens.

Net income value Forrented investment
properties, the net income value represents the basis
for determining the lending value. It describes the
economic value of the property and is calculated
from the capitalised annual net earnings (income
from rents after deducting management costs)
attainable in the long term.

Operational risk The risk of direct or indirect
losses resulting from the inappropriateness or fail-
ure of human beings, technical systems, internal
procedures or external events (definition pursuant
to Basel II).

Operational risks are not usually entered into
consciously; such risks are not subject to diversifi-
cation and are difficult to narrow down.

Examples: human error, faulty management
processes, criminal actions, fraud, natural disasters,
(fire, ...}, technical failures, departure of key
employees.

Option An option grants the purchaser the
right to purchase (= purchase option or call) or sell
(= put option or put) a specific quantity of the item
underlying the option (e.g. a security or currency)
from or to a contracting partner (option writer} at a

Glossary

price determined when the contract is concluded
(= strike}. The option can be exercised either on a
date specified in advance or during a period speci-
fied in advance; the purchaser pays an option pre-
mium for this right.

Participation certificate Certification of par-
ticipatory rights issued by companies of all legal
forms and admitted to official {stock-exchange) trad-
ing. Under certain circumstances, participatory cer-
tificates may be allocated to liable equity capital.

PRIME BANKS The Prime All Share Index is
subdivided into 18 industry indices that serve to
differentiate between the Prime Standard compa-
nies. Before a company is allocated to a specific
industry index it is allocated to one of the 62 indus-
try groups.

Rating Risk rating of a debtor (internal)
and/or assessment of the credit standing of an issuer
and its debt instruments by specialised agencies
(external).

Real estate investment banking Structured
financing, consulting services for investors includ-
ing even the structuring of finance transactions, i.e.
their classification into different forms of financing.
Also referred to as: “real estate structured finance”.

Relationship banking Provision of services
and advice to customers throughout a particular
region by means of standardised products; the
classic approach in company and private-client
business.

Repo transaction Short-term money market
deal secured through securities.
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Return on equity Ratio showing the relation-
ship between the net income for the year, or a pre-
tax performance measure (e.g. pre-tax profit), and
average equity capital; indicates the return on the
capital put to work by the company or its owners.

Risk assets To be able to map the assets-book
> credit risks resulting from the differing credit
standings of issuers and/or business partners in
accordance with regulatory requirements, balance-
sheet assets, otf-balance-sheet transactions (e.g. war-
ranties and guarantees for balance-sheet assets) as
well as > forward transactions, > swaps and
> option rightsj are weighted with respect to risk
using rate-weighting factors that depend on the rat-
ing category ofithe issuers and/or business partners.
Under Principle I, these risk-weighted assets must
be backed by 8% liable equity capital.

Risk control Risk Control is responsible for
implementing the risk policy prescribed by the
Executive Board, for the neutral monitoring of
lending, market and operational risks, as well as for
analysing and reporting on the current and future
risk situation.

Risk Control is also responsible for specitying
measurement and evaluation methods as well as for
subsequently carrying out measurements and evalu-
ations of risk and risk results and/or limit controls.

Risk management The taking of business
decisions at operational level, portfolio manage-
ment and/or optimisation of risks in the widest
sense of the wofd on the basis of risk/reward factors
(e.g. assignment of lines for credit risks, credit deriv-
atives, etc.) within the strategic framework defined
by the Executive Board and in accordance with the
authorisations issued by the Executive Board
bestowing direct responsibility for risks and results.

Risk shelter Obligation of HypoVereinsbank
vis-a-vis Hypo Real Estate Bank to cover credit risks
in the latter’s loan portfolio.

Net losses for the years 2003 and 2004 will be
paid up to a maximum total of € 590 million, pro-
vided such losses resulted from specific charges
formed for bad and doubtful debts.

Risk-return profile Depending on the risk con-
tent of a transaction, an adequate return is ensured
through risk-oriented structuring of terms.

SDAX The select index for 50 smaller compa-
nies, referred to as smallcaps, ranking after the secu-
rities contained in the MDAX index in terms of order-
book sales and market capitalisation. The index is
based on the prices of the Xetra electronic trading
system. Calculation commences at 9.00 a.m. and
ends with the prices from the Xetra closing auction
that starts at 5.30 p.m.

Secondary risk Risk that any losses in rental
income on the part of the borrower may jeopardise
the capacity to meet debt service.

Securitisation Securities-based collateralisa-
tion and/or conversion of loans (e.g. through bonds)
to procure funds. The prime aim is to make the
loans tradable on organised investment markets
(e.g. stock exchanges). The supplier of capital (=
creditor) and therefore the purchaser of the securi-
tised loan takes the risk of fluctuations in market
prices and of loan losses; the borrower (= debtor)
must provide regular public proof of his credit
standing by means of regular reporting and/or of the
highest possible rating by a rating agency.

Segment reporting Breakdown of the total
consolidated values by individual segments, e.g. by
areas of activity (divisions) or geographical charac-




teristics (regions); this enables conclusions to be
drawn regarding performance in individual seg-
ments and their contribution to the consolidated
result.

Self-assessments Self-assessment is a process
whereby the operational risks and the measures
taken to minimise risks are regularly identified and
evaluated by process officers, i.e. by those individu-
als who are best able to assess the strengths and
weaknesses of processes.

In addition to identifying and evaluating
risks, self-assessment also provides the basis for
drawing up an action plan to open up opportunities
for improvement, as well as for the development of
risk awareness at all levels within the Bank.

Standard risk costs Average risk costs and/or
valuation adjustments due to loan losses that are
expected within a given year.

Swap In principle, an exchange of payment
flows: an exchange of fixed and variable interest-
payment flows in the same currency (= interest rate
swap) and/or exchange of payment flows in differ-
ent currencies (= currency swap).

TecDAX Maps the performance of the 30
largest Prime Standard technology companies rank-
ing after the companies contained in the DAX index
in terms of order-book sales and market capitalisa-
tion. The index is based on the prices of the Xetra
electronic trading system. Calculation commences
at 9.00 a.m. and ends with the prices from the Xetra
closing auction that starts at 5.30 p.m.

Tier-1ratio This ratio is also referred to as the
BIS Tier-1 ratio and represents the ratio of a com-
pany’'s risk assets determined in accordance with
the provisions of the Bank for International Settle-

Glossary

ments (BIS) plus its market risk positions to its Tier-1
capital {see also BIS equity funds).

Total return swap Swap between the assignee
and the guarantor with respect to the income from
and changes in valuation of the underlying financial
instruments. In addition to the credit risk, the
guarantor also assumes the price risk resulting from
the underlying financial instrument, in return for a
corresponding interest payment.

Trading book Banking regulatory term for
positions in financial instruments, interests and
tradable loans that are held by a financial institute
for the purpose of short-term resale, benefiting from
price and interest rate fluctuations. This also
includes transactions that are closely related to trad-
ing-book positions (e.g. for hedging purposes). Risk-
carrying positions that do not belong in the trading
book are assigned to the > assets book.

Transaction banking Range of complex finan-
cial services offered in connection with each indi-
vidual financing transaction.

Treasury Division responsible for the tasks of
refinancing and liquidity control, asset/liability
management, fixed-income and awn-account trading.

Vacancy rate Average percentage of all real
estate space that is not used or rented out.

Value at risk Method for quantifying risk;
measures the potential future losses that with a
certain degree of probability will not be exceeded
within a specified period of time.
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2004

March 29,2004
May 12,2004

 Publication of the full year results 2003 and analysts conference

Publication of the results for the first quarter of 2004'

June 4,2004

Augustn 2004{

" Annual General Meetmg

Publication of the results for the second quarter of 2004

November 10, 2004

Pubhcatlon ofthe results for the third quarter of 2004




Addresses and contacts

Hypo Real Estate Holding AG
Unsoldstr. 2

80538 Munich

Germany.

Telephon{e +49 89 203007-0
Fax ~ +49 89 20 30 07-783
Contact: Ulrich Kern (IR),
irinfo@hyporealestate.com
Falk Willing '
info@hyporealestate.com

Hypo Real Estate Bank International
3 Harbourmaster Place
IFSC Dublin 1

Ireland
Telephoné +353 1 61 16-100
Fax . +35316116-105

Contact: Carol Tancock
marketing@hypointernational.com

Amsterdam location

Amstelplein 1 (,Rembrandt Toren*}
1096 HA Amsterdam

The Netherlands

Contact: Erich Wagenlehner

Mobile +49172 834 3355

Armin GraBhoff

Mobile +49171 162 85 30

Hong Kong location

Hypo International

Suites 802-805

Two International Finance Centre
No. 8 Finance Street

Central Hong Kong

Telephone +852 3413-83 00

Fax +852 3413-85 00
Contact: Dr. Gerhard Hinterh&user
gerhard.hinterliaeuser
@hypointernational.com

London location

Hypo Real Estate Capital Ltd.

110 Cannon Street

London EC4N 6EW

GB

Telephone +44 207 743-77 43

Fax +44 207 743-77 00
Contact: Harin Thaker
Harin.Thaker@hypointernational.com

Luxembourg location

Pfandbrief Bank International S.A.
4, rue Alphonse Weicker

2721 Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Telephone +352 26 41-47 00

. Fax +352 26 41-47 99

Contact: Martin Schulte
info@pbi.lu

Madrid location

Hypo Real Estate Capital Iberia S.L.
Paseo de Recoletos, 3—4°

28004 Madrid

Spain

Telephone +34 91 59 50-420

Fax +34 91 53 29-748

Contact: Markus Beran
Markus.Beran@hypointernational.com

Milan location

Hypo Real Estate Capital Italia S.p. A.
C.so Vittorio Emanuele II, 37B

20122 Milano

Italy
Telephone +39 02 76 383-1
Fax +3902 76 383-870

Contact: Jobst Lehmann
Jobst.Lehmann@hypointernational.com




Munich location

Hypo Real Estate Bank International
Germany/CEE branch

Unsdldstr. 2

80538 Munich

Germany

Telephone +49 89 25 55 20-0

Fax +49 89 25 55 20-209

Contact: Christoph Donner
Christoph.Donner@hypointernational.com

New York location

Hypo Real Estate Capital Corporation
622 Third Avenue :

New York, NY 10017-6707

Us
Telephone +1 212 671-63 00
Fax +1212 671-64 02

Contact: Robert Dowling,
Robert.Dowling@hypointernational.com
Peter Hannigan ’
Peter.Hannigan@hypointernational.com

_Paris location

‘Hypo Real Estate Capital Fance S.A.
38, avenue de I’Opéra

75002 Paris

France

Telephone +33 1 53 05 74-00

Fax +33 1530574-09
Contact: Michel Koch

Michel Koch@hypointernational .com

Stockholm location

Hypo Real Estate Bank International
Scandinavia branch

Kungsgatan 17

11143 Stockholm

Sweden

Telephone +46 8 53 48 00-70 (switchboard)
Fax +46 8 2144 17

Contact:

. Constantin Graf zu Stolberg
Constantin.Stolberg@hypointernational.com

Tokyo location

Hypo Real Estate Bank International
Representative office Japan
Otemachi 1st Square East Tower 18F
1-5-1 Otemachi, Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo 100-0004

Japan

Telephone +81 3 32 85-14 40
Fax +81 3 3285-14 42
Contact:

Dr. Leonard Meyer zu Brickwedde
Leonard.MeyerzuBrickwedde
@hypointernational.com

Hypo Real Estate Bank AG (Germany)
Von-der-Tann-Str. 2

80539 Munich

Germany

Telephone +49 89 28 80-0

Fax +49 89 28 80-10 319
Contact: Reiner Barthuber
info@hyporealestate.de

Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank ac
Biichsenstr. 26

70174 Stuttgart

Germany

Telephone +49 711 20 96-0

Fax +49 711 20 96-345
Contact: Manfred Weil

{loan business), Dr. Robert Grassinger
(“Pfandbrief” business)
welcome@wuertt-hyp.de



Hypo Real Estate Holding AG
Unsldstr. 2 ‘

80538 Munich

Germany :

Telephone +49 89 203007-0
Fax +49 89203007-783

www.hyporealestate.com
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